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South River Board of Education 

March 9, 2022 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

South River School District 
South River, NJ 08882 

Dear Board Members: 

15 Montgomery Street, South River NJ 08882 
Tel: 732-613-4000 Fax: 732-238-8415 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the South River School District (the "District") for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the 
South River Board of Education (the "Board"). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data 
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to 
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical tables and single audit. The Introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's 
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial 
statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report thereon. The statistical tables section includes 
selected financial and demographic Information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District Is 
required to undergo an annual single audit In conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 
1984 and in addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed 
to meet the requirements of the Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New 
Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. Information related to this slngle audit, including the auditors' report on the 
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and 
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report. 
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The District Is an Independent reporting entity within 
the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds of the 
District are included in thi·s report. The South River Board of Education and all Its schools 
constitute the District's reporting entity. The District provides a full range of educational services 
appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12. These include regular, vocational as well as 
special education for disabled Pre-K youngsters. The District completed the 2021 fiscal year with 
an enrollment of 2,306 students as of June 30, 2021, which is 43 students less than the previous 
year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over 
the last seven years. 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30. 

2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

Average Daily Enrollment 

Student 
Enrollment 

2,306 
2,349 
2,262 
2,193 
2,210 
2,218 
2,277 

Percent 
Increase/( Decrease) 

(1 .83%) 
3.85% 
3.15% 
(0.8%) 
(0.4%) 
(2.6%) 
(1 .8%) 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: South River Is a community that has little to no 
ratables to establish a firm tax base to support its education program. There is an attempt to 
revitalize the downtown district and there are several new housing developments that have been 
approved and will add not only to the tax base but, more importantly, to the educational costs. 
The town receives funds as a result of a shared Host Community Benefits program for the 
Edgeboro Landfill. Land available for additional industrial development is not plentiful. 

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: South River Public Schools have continued to provide Internet access 
parent link to every student in the District to enhance our ability to utilize distance learning 
activities with our students and their parents. 

Our scholastic aptitude tests continue to meet state averages, with the mean SAT reading score 
of 549 and the mean SAT math score of 525. Seventy-eight percent (78%) of our 2021 graduates 
went on to further education; twenty-nine percent (29%) of them to four-year institutions. 

Moreover, we continue to attempt to maintain our class size at a reasonable level and have every 
student use technology as an educational tool. 

Finally, we continue to provide new programs or have enhanced our existing programs that tie 
into the State Contents Standards established by the New Jersey Department of Education. 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of 
the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data 
are complied to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The internal control 
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are 
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 
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As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring 
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to 
periodic evaluation by the District's management. 

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy 
of the internal control structure, as well as to determine that the District has complied with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains 
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls Is to ensure compliance with legal 
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the 
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue 
fund and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital 
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended 
for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An encumbrance accounting system is used 
to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year­
end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent 
year. These amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 
30, 2021. 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally 
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds as 
explained In the "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 2. 

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: The School District had outstanding debt as of June 30, 2021 of 
$5, 113,000.00 The remaining annual maturity schedule for principal as well as annual interest 
payments are detailed in the "Notes to Financial Statements'', Note 8. 

8. FINANCIAL STATUS: The Business Administrator and the Board of Education continue to guide 
the District with fiscal prudence while working within the limitations imposed by the state's 2% cap 
on the annual increase of the tax revenue collected from the Borough of South River. The 
business office utilizes purchasing co-operatives, state contracts and bids to purchase the 
materials needed to operate the District at the lowest possible price. 

9. OTHER INFORMATION: 

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants or registered municipal accountants. Gerard Stankiewicz, CPA, PSA of the 
accounting firm of Samuel Klein and Company, Certified Public Accountants, was selected by the 
Board's Finance Committee. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, 
the audit was also designed to meet the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also 
was designed to meet the requirements of the Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. The auditors' report on the 
basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is 
included in the financial section of this report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the 
single audit are included in the single audit section of this report. 
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1 O. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the South 
River Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and 
taxpayers of the School District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and 
maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been 
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff. 

Respectfully submitted, 

!ti.~~'1 
. nneth J. Kokosz 

Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY, LLP 
CERTIFI ED PUBLIC ACCO U NTANTS 

:)50 BHO,\j) STlH:Wl', ll' l' H l~J.0111~ 

Nl"W.\lm, N .. J. 07102·9969 
l-'uo::·m (!)7~~> !'i2..l- <H 00 
FAX (f)73) 112~·<H01 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

South River Borough Board of Education 
County of Middlesex, New Jersey 

Report on the Financial Statement 

:Jn W1•~T }Lux S •rJU:J•:'l', Rt ' l'l 'l<l !~08 

l•' l~•• •m<1 1.. 11. N .. J . 0772~·2201 
1'110:-:" <7!32> 7~0-2000 
F .L\'. (7H2 1 780-10!30 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type 
activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the 
South River Borough School District, County of Middlesex, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 and the related Notes to Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements, as listed In the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

M e:Me1ms AMIRl e AN IN:!STITUTI!: or C t!:RTIF'I EO Pueuc A ccouNTANTS 

www .semuelk !eln-cpa- rm a.com 
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Opinions 

INDEPENDENT AUDl!OR'S REPO.RT 
(CONTINUED} 

In our opinion, the flnanclal statements referred to above present fairly; in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the South River Borough School 
District, as of June 30, 2021 , and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required SUQplementarv Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management 
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information and schedule of the District's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability - PERS, schedule of District contributions, schedule of the 
State's proportionate share of the net pension lia.bility associated with the District - TPAF, the District's 
proportionate share of the net OPEB Liability - PERS and TPAF and budgetary comparison Information 
as identified In the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
lnforrnatlon, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic flnancial statements In an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Borough of South River School District's basic flnancial statements. The introductory 
section, combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules, and 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as required by the Division of 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial 
Assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by US Office of Management 
and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB's 
Circular 15-08, Single Audit Polley for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, 
respectively, and the other information such as the introductory and statistical sections are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(CONTINUED) 

The accompanying Combining and Individual Fund Statements, Long-term Debt Schedules and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying Combining and Individual Fund Statements. Long­
term Debt Schedules and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole_ 

The other information identified above has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 9, 2022, 
on our consideration of the Board of Education of the South River Borough School District's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations , contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of South River 
School District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the South River 
Borough School District internal control over financial reporting compliance. 

Freehold, New Jersey 
March 9, 2022 

Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY, LLP 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



South River Board of Education 

March 9, 2022 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

South River School District 
South River, NJ 08882 

Dear Board Members: 

15 Montgomcr;y Street, South River NJ 08882 
Tel: 732-613-4000 Fax: 732-238-8415 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The discussion and analysis of South River School District's financial performance provides an overall 
review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 . The intent of this 
discussion and analysis Is to look at the District's financial performance as a whole; readers should also 
review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their 
understanding of the District's financial performance. · 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A} is Required Supplementary Information specified in 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments issued In June 1999. 
Certain comparative information between the current year (2020-2021) and the prior year (2019-2020) is 
required to be presented in MD&A. The District has elected to prepare comparative data which includes 
prior year's financial statements. 

Overview of Flnanclal Statements 

The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) gove~nment-wide financia l 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This document 
also contains required and supplementary information and other Information in add ition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 

Financial Hlghllghts 

Key financial highlights for 2021 are as follows: 

In total, net position totaled $29,940,961 which represents a $1,707,910 or 6.05% increase from 2020 net 
position as adjusted, which is attributed to a higher level of revenues and an increase In expenditures. 

General revenues accounted for $45,514,988 or 91 .70% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in 
the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, accounted for $4, 119,832 or 8.30% 
of total revenues of $49,634,819. 
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Total position of governmental activities increased by $1,756,629: as cash and cash equivalents 
increased by $2,338,010, receivables increased by $219,649 and liabilities increased by $801,030. 

The District had $48,815,797 in expenses; only $4,974,204 of these expenses was offset by program 
specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily property taxes and 
state aid) of $43,841 ,593 were adequate to provide for these programs. 

Among major funds, the General Fund had $40,253,883 in revenues and $38,828, 727 in expenditures. 
The General Fund's fund balance increased $1,425, 156 over 2020 (as adjusted), which was caused by 
an increase in revenue in excess of expenditures. The General Fund's fund balance is $5,591,388. 

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole, an entire 
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an inoreasingly detailed look at specific 
financial activities. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the 
District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District's finances and longer-term view of those 
finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these 
statements tell how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
The fund financial statements also look at the District's most sign ificant funds with all other non-major 
funds presented in total in one column. In the case of the South River School District, the General Fund 
is by far the most significant. 

Reporting the District as a Whole 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

This document contains all funds used by the District to provide programs and activities, viewing the 
District as a whole and reports the culmination of all financial transactions. The report answers the 
question "How We Did Financially During Fiscal Year 2021". The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities provides the summary. The statements include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis 
of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in those assets. This change In net 
position is Important because they report on whether the District's financial position has improved or 
diminished. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two kinds of 
activities: 

Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here including, 
Instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and 
extracurricular activities. 

Business-Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all 
the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as a 
business activity. 
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Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds, 

Fund Financial Statement 

A fund Is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of 
the funds of the District can be divided Into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service 
fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue fund and debt 
service fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary 
information for the general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund to demonstrate compliance 
with this budget 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-27 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The District maintains one proprietary fund type. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions 
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The District uses an 
enterprise fund to account for the operations of its food service program, child care initiative and Falcon 
Care. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this report 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional Information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 32 to 86 of this report. 

The School District as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net 
position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's financial position. 

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the het results of 
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets and the 
depreciation of capital assets. 

The Statement of Net Position provides the financial perspective of the District as a whole. 

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the School District's net position for 2021 and 2020. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets, deferred Inflows and outflows and 
liabilities of the District, with the difference between the four reported as net positron. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the District is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the District changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flow. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave). 

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 24-25 of this report. 
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The Statement of Net Position provides the financial perspective of the District as a whole. Table 1 
provides a comparative summary of the School District's net position for 2021 and 2020. 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources by $29,940,961 at the close of fiscal 2021 . The following table provides a 
summary of net position at June 30, 2021 and 2020 relating to the District's governmental and business-
type activities: · 

Assets 

Current and other assets 

Capital asseti;, net 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Rosourcos 

Unamortiz~d Loss on 

Defeasance of debt 

Pension 

Total Oeferred outflows 

of resou1t:es 

Llabllltles 

Table 1 - Comparative Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Typo Activities Total School District 

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2019-2020 

$ 8,845,253 $ 6,274, 141 $ 673,275 $ 530, 174 $ 9,518,527 $ 6,804,315 

33,866,981 35,062,673 311 ,053 320,003 34, 180,034 35,382,675 

$ 42,714,234 $ 41,336,813 $ 984,328 $ 850 177 $ 43,698,562 $ 42,1 86,990 

$ 

$ 

133,549 $ 

588,540 

164,171 

749,632 

722,089 =$==9:::1=3,""60=3= ""===""""' ===== 

$ 

$ 

133,549 $ 

588,540 

164, 171 

749,632 

722,089 ,,,$===9=1=3,=80=3= 

Current and other liabilities $ 3,328,440 $ 2,489,268 $ 196,945 $ 

3,671,234 

66,648 $ 3,525,384 $ 2,555,916 

Net pension liability 3.317,319 3,31 7,319 3,671,234 

Long-term llablllties 

ou\i;tli!nding 5,971.329 7,202,684 5,971 ,329 7,202,684 

Totai Llablliti&s $ 12,617,088 $ 13,383,186 $ 196,945 $ 66,646 $ 12,814,032 $ 13,429,834 

Deferred Inflow of Re!lource!; 

Net Position 

Net investment In 

capita! asseh1 

Restricted 

Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total Net Position 

$ 1,665,657 $ 1,793,521 

$ 26,539,291 

1,303,609 

(689,322) 

$ 29, 153,576 

$ 28,532,988 $ 311,053 

623,577 

(2,062,655) 476,330 

$ 27,093,909 ""$==78._7 .... 3=63._ 
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$ 320,003 

463,526 

$ 763.529 

$ 1,665,657 . $ 1,793,521 

$ 28,850,344 

1,303,609 

(212,992) 

$ 29,940,961 

$ 28,852,990 

623,577 

(1 ,599.129) 

$ 27,877,438 



The District's combined net position were $29,940,961 on June 30, 2021 . This is an increase of 
$1,707,910 or 5.70% from the prior year. 

The largest portion of the District's net position Is its net Investment In capital assets (e.g., land, 
construction-in-progress, buildings and improvements, and machinery, equipment and vehicles), less any 
related debt (bonds payable) used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. Although ttie District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, It 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources 
(namely, property taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Capital assets, net decreased from the prior year due to the amount of new additions associated with the 
District's capital projects that were slgnlflcantly less than the amount of depreciation on capital assets in 
the current year. 

Long-term liabilities decreased due to the scheduled maturities of principal on debt. 

Unrestricted net position - Governmental Activities increased by $1 ,373,333 which was caused primarily 
by less operating expenditures. 

- 16 -



Table 2 shows the comparative change in net position from fiscal year 2021 and 2020. 

Table 2 - Comparative Statement of Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District 
2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-:2021 2011il-W20 

Revenues; 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 10,609 $ 295,137 $ 10,609 $ 295, 137 
Operating Grants and Contributions $ 4, 119,832 $ 2,879.200 843,763 835,965 4,963,595 3,715, 165 

General Revenue: 
Property Taxes 18, 146,571 17,765,370 18, 146,571 17,765,370 

Federal and State Aid 26,682,045 22.598,657 26,682,045 22,598,657 
Miscallaneous 686,372 429,879 686,372 429,879 

Total Revenue $ 49,634,819 $ 43,673,106 $ 854,372 $ 1,131,101 $ 50.489, 191 $ 44,804,208 

Expenses: 

Instruction $ 27,461 , 175 $ 23,329,572 $ 27.461 , 176 $ 23,329,572 
Tuition 666,949 1,131 ,987 666,949 1,131,987 

Student and Instruction 
Related Services 3,074,035 3,30a,818 3,074,035 3,308,618 

School Administration 4,675,804 4,346,642 4,675,804 4,346,642 
General Administration 3,305, 110 2,994,220 3,305, 110 2,994, 220 

Operation and Maintenance 

of Facilities 6,283,963 4,736,117 6,283,963 4,736, 117 
Pupil TransportaUon 1,843,716 2,285,841 1,843,716 2,286,841 

Interest on Debt 249,761 234,905 249,761 234,905 
Charter Schools 353,001 389,786 353,001 389,786 
Business-Type Activities $ 907,312 $ 982, 138 907,312 982, 138 

Total Expenses $ 47,913,514 $ 42,757,686 $ 907,312 $ 982,138 $ 48,820,826 $ 43,740,025 

Special and Extraordim1ry Items, Net p7,250l ~162,944! 56,794 39,544 i1621944l 

Change in Net Position 1,704,055 752,276 3,855 148,963 1,707,910 901,239 

Net Position • Beginning 27,093,909 26,341,633 783,529 634,566 27,877,438 26,976, 199 

Prior Period Adjustment 356,613 356,613 

27,449,523 26,341,633 783,529 634,566 28,233,051 26,976, 199 

Net Position • Ending $ 29,153,578 $ 27,093,909 $ 787,383 $ 783,529 $ 29,940,961 $ 27,877,438 
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Governmental Activities 

Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021 

The total revenues of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $49,634,819. 
Property taxes as approved by the District made up $18,146,571or36.56% of revenues for governmental 
activities for the fiscal year 2021 . Federal, state and local grants accounted for $26,682,045 or 53.76%. 

Other 
1.38% 

Grants and 
Entitlomonts 

63.76% 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 
8.30% 

Property 
Taxes 

36.56% 

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2021 

The total cost of all programs and services was $47,913,514. Instruction comprises 57.31% of the 
District's expenses. 

School 
Administration 

9.76% 

Plant 
Oporatrons and 
Maintenance of ______ ...,r 

Facllities 
13.11% 

Charter Schools 
0.74% 

Student and 
Instructional 

Staff 
6.42% 

Tuition 
1.39% 

-18 -

General 
Administration 
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Debt Service 
0.52% 
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Business-Type Activities 

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for 
services and federal and state reimbursements. 

Food service revenues exceeded expenses by $3,855 as charges for services represent $10,609 or 
1.24% of revenue. This represents the amount paid by patrons for daily food service and catering. 

Federal and state reimbursements for meals including payments for free and reduced lunches and 
donated commodities were $843,763 or 98.76% of revenue. 

Governmental Activities 

The Comparative Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services 
and grants offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. 
The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these 
functions. 

Table 3 - Comparative Statement of Activities 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services 
2020-2021 2019-20~0 1'~ ~bllCISIC 2020-2021 2019-2020 °12 Qh11ng~ 

Instruction $ 27,461,176 $ 23,329,572 17.71% $ 24,501 ,377 $ 21,425,549 14.36% 
Support Services: 

Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,074,035 3,308,818 -7.10% 1,914,001 2,333,641 -17,98% 
Tuition 666,949 1,131,987 -41 .08% 666,949 1, 131 ,987 ·4 1.08% 
General Adminiiotralion 3,305, 110 2,994,220 10.38% 3,305, 110 2,994,220 10.38% 
School Administration 4,675,804 4 ,346,642 7,57% 4,675,804 4,346,642 7.57% 
Operations & Maintenance of Facilities 6,283,963 4,736, 117 32.68% 6,283,963 4,736, 117 32.68% 
Pupil Transportliltion 1,643,716 2,285,841 · 19.34% 1,843,716 2,285,841 -19.34% 
Debi Service 249,761 234,905 6.32% 249,761 234,905 6.32% 
Transfer to Charter School 353 001 3891786 •9.44% 353,001 3891786 ·9.44% 

Total Expenses $ 47,21~ §14 $ ~li:,ZliZ !!!I§ $ 43,793,6~2 $ 39,!!ZM!!!! 

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of puplls and the interaction 
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities. 

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the District which are 
designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school and public events for the purpose of 
motivation, enjoyment, skill improvement, school spirit and leadership. 

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and 
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development. 

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with 
administrative and financial supervision of the District. 

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and 
equipment in an effective working condition. 

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, to 
school curricular and athletic activities and field trips as provided by state law. 

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other 
related charges to debt of the District. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The District budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes. The most significant budgeted fund Is 
the general fund. During the fiscal year, there were several differences between the original budget and 
the final amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain line items. These transfers 
were made between line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State guidelines. Readers 
should refer to Section C of the financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted amounts. 

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where the 
modified budgeted amounts differ from the origlnal budget by significant amounts. All other fluctuations 
were considered immaterial and no explanations were deemed required. 

Revenue 

Miscellaneous revenues of $678,088 exceeded the anticipated amount of $30,000 by $648,088 due 
primarily to refunds from prior year expenditures mostly in the area of health Insurance. 

Expenditures 

• Total regular programs - instruction final budget exceeded the original budget by $69,060 or 
0.76%. Actual expenditures of $8,926,499 represented 96.97% of budget. The increase in the 
budget was caused by additional expenditures for undistributed instruction. 

• Total Instructional expenditures final budget was lower than the original budget by $83,689 or 
0.55%. Actual total Instructional expenditures were $14,336, 196 or 95.41 % of the budget. The 
decrease In the budget was caused by reduced need for teacher salaries. 

• Undistributed - unallocated benefits - employee benefits actual expenditures were lower than the 
budget by $424,694 or 7.12%. Lower than anticipated health benefits were the principal cause. 

• Total undistributed expenditures final budget was lower than the original budget by $870,678 or 
4.33%. Expenditures, net of on-behalf payments, were $16,982,944 or 88.31 % of final budget. 
This was aided by favorable health benefits and lower than anticipated operations and 
maintenance costs and student transportation services. 

• Total undistributed expenditures - other support students - extraordinary services final budget 
was less than the original by $39,379 or 7.10%. Actual expenditures were $234,959 or45.61% of 
final budget. 

• Undistributed - student transportation final budget was lower than the original budget by $45,902 
or 2.62%. Actual expenditures of $1, 106,907 represented 64. 78% of budget. 

• Undistributed - other operating and maintenance of plant expenditures were higher than the final 
budget by $152,457 or 3.65%, primarily due to higher than anticipated cleaning and maintenance 
costs. Actual expenditures were $3,772,685 or 87.03% of the final budget. 
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The District's Funds 

Information about the District's major funds starts on page 21 . These funds are accounted for using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds, except for capital projects , had total 
revenues of $45,728,061 and expenditures of $44,336,066. 

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, 
the District continues to meet Its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules 
present a comparative summary of the revenues of the governmental funds exclusive of the capital 
projects fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the amount of Increases and decreases in 
relation to prior year revenues. 

Comparative Summary of Revenues 

Increase/ 
2020-2021 2019-2020 (Decrease) 

Percent ~Percent from 2019-2020 
Revenue Amount ofTotal Amount of Total to 2020-2021 

Local Sources $ 18,917,331 41.37% $ 18,194,349 43.66% $ 722,982 
State Sources 24,329,383 53.21% 21,928, 112 52.63% 2,401,270 
Federal Sources 2.481,348 5.43% 1,547,914 3.71% 933,434 

$ 451728,061 100.00% $ 41 ,670,375 100.00% $ 4,057,686 

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to an increase in miscellaneous revenue and tax levy. 

The increase in State Sources is attributed to an increase in general fund state aid and in on-behalf 
payments. 

The increase in Federal Sources is caused by the fact that more expenditures were incurred in 2021 
mostly attributed to Covid Aid. 

The following schedule presents a comparative summary of governmental fund expenditures exclusive of 
the capital projects fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 , and the amount of increases and 
decreases in relation to prior year expenditures. 

Comparative Summary of Expenditures 

Increase/ 
2020-2021 2019-2020 (Decrease) 

Percent Percent from 2019-2020 
Ex12enditures Amount of Total Amount ofTotal to 2020-2021 

Instruction $ 17, 120,238 38.61 % $ 15,472,187 38 .01% $ 1,648,051 
Undistributed 

Expenditures 24,845,390 56.04% 23,026,111 56.57% 1,819,278 

Capital Outlay 649,857 1.47% 418,868 1.03% 230,989 

Debt Service 1,367,580 3.09% 1,398,755 3.45% (31, 175) 

Charter Schools 353,001 0.79% 389,786 0.95% (36,785) 

$ 44,336,066 100.00% $ 40,705,707 100.00% $ 3,630,359 
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The Increase In Current - Instruction is attributed to the increased costs of salaries for teachers and the 
increased costs of other instructional programs and supplies. 

The increase in Undistributed Expenditures relates to increases in special education tuition and health 
benefits and other employee benefits. 

The increase in capital outlay is primarily due to a budgeted Increase from the prior year. 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for certain 
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant 
budgeted fund is the general fund. 

During the course of the fiscal year 2021, the District amended its general fund budget as needed. The 
District uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to tightly control total 
program budgets but provide flexibility for program management. Transfers from one program to another 
must be approved by the Business Administrator, Superintendent and Board of Education. Transfers 
were necessitated during the year were not significant in consideration of specific line items; however, a 
provision for unemployment was made for pending reduction of staff and retirement sick pay. 

While the District final budget for the general fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures would 
roughly equal, the actual results for the year shows a surplus Increase of $1 ,495,602 caused primarily by 
an increase in miscellaneous revenue and lower level of expenditures; 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2021, the School District had $33,868,981 invested in land, buildings, 
furniture and equipment and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal 2021 balances compared to 2020. 

Table 4 - Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30 

Governmental Actlvltlos Buslnoss-Typo Activities Total School District 

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Site and Site 

Improvements $ 987;011 $ 618,700 $ 987;01 1 $ 618JOO 

Building and Building 

Improvements 32,391 ,892 33,952,016 $ 165,082 $ 169,108 32,556,975 34,121,124 

Machinery and 

Equipment 490,078 491,957 145,971 150,895 636,049 642,851 
Total Capital 

Assets - Net of 
Depreciations $ 33,868,981 $ 35,062,673 $ 311 ,053 $ 320,003 $ 34,180,034 $ 35,382.675 

Refer to Notes to Financial Statements Note 7 for more detailed information. 

Overall capital assets (net) decreased from 2020 to 2021 . The decrease in capital assets is primarily due 
to annual depreciation was in excess of fixed asset additions. 
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Debt Administration 

At the end of the fiscal year 2021 and 2020, the School District had outstanding debt as follows: 

Compensated Absences 
Serial Bonds 

Totals 

Table 5 - Debt Administration 

$ 508,090 
5,113,000 

$ ==5:i::::,6:=:2,,,,;1 '=09=0= 

June 30, 

$ 508,828 
6,258,000 

$ ==6,;,,,, 7=66::,,;'=82=8= 

Refer to Notes to Financial Statements Note 8 for more detailed information. 

For the Future 

The District is sufficiently funded to meet the educational and capital requirements. 

The primary concern the District faces is the Borough of South River's Inability to increase the tax base. 
The town is primarily residential with very few commercial ratables; thus the burden of taxes levied by the 
District falls squarely on the homeowners. The Borough of South River in January 2020 went through a 
reassessment of properties. 

The Borough's tax base remains relatively flat and in light of the fact the town is at full build (which means 
there is no space available for future development which would increase the ratable base), the probability 
of a tax increase on the average homeowner next year is very likely. Additionally, the cost of three major 
bond issues, $6.1 million in 2003, $7.05 million in 2012 and $2.4 million In 2015, cost the District nearly 
$1 .3 million per year for debt service. 

In closing, the District's Board of Education practices long term financial planning. The District is proud of 
its system for budgeting and internal financial controls. Moreover, the Administration is determined to 
address the educational needs of the students while delivering a responsible budget to the taxpayers. 

Contacting the School District's Flnancial Management 

This financial report Is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact Kenneth J . 
Kokoszka, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the South River Board of Education, 15 
Montgomery Street, South River, NJ 08882. 

Respectfully submitted, 

±Zlt1 enneth J. Kokosz a 
Superintendent of Schools Board Secretary/Sc ol Business Administrator 
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit A-1 

§OARD OF EDUCATION 
~QBQ!.!GH OE SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities ~ 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6.449,795.51 $ 444,432.76 $ 6,894,228.27 
Receivables - Net 1,091,848.60 211,009.58 1,302,858.18 
Inventory 17,832.46 17,832.46 
Restricted Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,303,608.57 1,303,608.57 
Capital Assets, Net 33,868,981.26 311,053.12 3411801034.38 

Total Assets $ 42,714,233.94 $ 984,327.92 $ 43,698,561 .86 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Unamortized Loss on Defeasance of Debt $ 133,548.67 $ 133,548.67 
Pension 588,540.00 588,540.00 

$ 7221088.67 $ 722,088.67 
LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 2,974,338-76 $ 196,944.63 $ 3, 171,283.39 
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 59,433.51 59,433.51 
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 184,677.34 184,677.34 
Unearned Revenue 94,883.52 94,883.52 
Accrued Interest on Noncurrent Debt 15, 106.67 15,106.67 
Net Pension Liability 3,317,319.00 3,317,319.00 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 1,301,426.58 1,301,426.58 
Due Beyond One Year 416691902.13 4,669,902.13 

Total Liabilities $ 12,617,087.51 $ 196,944.63 $ 12 814 032.14 

DEFERRED !MFLOW QE BE~Q!JRCES 

Pension $ 116651657.00 $ 116651657.00 

NET POSITIQhl 

Invested in Capital Assets $ 28,539,291 .22 $ 311,053.12 $ 28,850,344.34 
Restricted 1,303,608.57 1,303,608.57 
Unrestricted (Deficit) (689,321 .69} 4761330.17 !212,991 .52) 

Total Net Position $ 29, 1531578.10 $ 787,383.29 $ 29,940,961 .39 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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N 
C1I 

Funct1ons/Programs 

Govemmenlal Adivilies: 
Instruction: 
Regular 
Special Educalion 
Other Special Instruction 
Other tnstruclion 

Support Services:: 
Tuition 
Student and lns1ruction Related SeMc:es 
General Administrative Sesvices 
School Actminislrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 

Transfer to Charter Schools 
Interest on ~rent Debt 

T olal Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activilies: 
Food Service 

Tolal Primaiy Government 

s 

s 

s 
s 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE. 30. 2021 

Program Revenues 
Opera~ng 

Charges for Grants and 
Expenses Servtoes_ CQ!ltJ'ibu1ions 

14,0868,401 . 75 
10,137,954.19 s 2,959,797.59 

1,402,754.65 
1,052,064.29 

666,949.02 
3,074,035.02 1, 160,034.08 
3,30'5, 109.95 
4,675,803.61 
6,283,962..91 
1,843, 716.31 

353,001 .00 
249,761.14 

47.913,513.84 s 4.119.831.67 

9(}7,311 .54 s 10,609.16 s 843,762.97 

48,1120.825.38 s 10.609.16 s 0 63,594.64 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

General Purposes 
Debt Service 

Federal and State Aid Not Restricted 

Miscellaneous Income 

Total General Revenues 

Exoess 

Special and Extraordinary Items, Net 

Change in Nel. Position 

Net Posilion - Beginning 
Prior Period Adjustment 

f'let P<lsilion - Ending 

See accompanying notes 10 financial statements. 

Exhibi! A-2 

Net ~Ex~se) Revenue a.nd Cha!!ee in Net Position 

Govemmenlal Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

s {14,868,401. 75) s {14,868,401.75) 
(7.178,156.60) {7. 178, 156,60) 
(1.402,754.65) (1,402,754.65) 
(1,052,054.29) (1,052,064.29) 

{666,949.02) (666,949.02} 
(1, 914,00C>.94) {1 ,914,000.94) 
(3,305, f09.95} (3,305, 109. 95) 
(4,675,803.61} (4,675,803.61} 
(6,283,962..91} (6.283,962.91) 
(1 ,843,716.31} (1,843,716.31) 

(353,001 .00} (353.001.0(}) 
{249,761.14! {249.761 .14! 

s {43, 793,682.17} s (43,793,682. 17) 

$ (52.939.41) s (52.939.41 ! 
s (43,793,682.17) $ (52,939.41 ) s ( 43,846,621 .58) 

s 16,820,436.00 s 16,82(},4:>6.0(} 
1,326,135.00 1,326.135.00 

26,682,044.66 26,682,044.66 

686,372..02 686.372.02 

s 45,514 ,!t87 .68 s -45,51-4.987.68 

1,721 ,305.51 (52,939.41) 1,668 .366.10 

(1 7,250.12} 56,794.06 39,543.94 

s 1, 704 ,055.39 s 3.854.65 s 1,707.9 10.04 

s 27,093,909.27 $ 783,528.64 s 27,877.437.91 
355,613.-44 355,613.44 

27,449,522.71 783,528.64 28,233.051 .35 

s 29, 153,578.10 s 787,.383.29 s 29.940,961 . 39 
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BOaB~ QE eDUCAIIQt! 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
fi!8~8r:i!:ii; iit:li;;t 
GENERAL F~NOS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Special Capital 
General Revenue Projects 
~ Fund __.E!!nQ_ 

~ 

Ca&h and Cash Equivalents $ 5,892,562.40 $ 354,145.93 $ 3,288.98 $ 
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable 518,347.03 536,903.96 
Accounts Receivable 34,597.59 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,494,387.58 

Total Assets $ 7,939,894.60 s 893,049.91 $ 3,28_8.98 $ 

LIABJUIIES ANO FU~O saLA~CE 

l.lab!lltles; 
Accounts Payable $ 2, 163,826.89 $ 559,843.87 
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 69,433.51 
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 184,677,34 
uneam11d Revenue 94,883.52 

Total Llabililies $ 2,348,506.23 $ 714,160.90 

fund Balances: 
Restricted: 
Debt Service $ 
Capital Projects $ 3,288.98 
Scholarships $ 23,684.64 
Student Activities 155,204.17 
Unemployment Compensation $ 194,076.36 
capital Reserve 927,354.22 
Maintenance Reserve 372,957.00 
Reserve for E~cess Surplus 2,300,455, 18 
Reserve ror Excess Surplus - Designat(ld 
ror Subsequent Yel!r's Expenditures 1, 593, 193.29 

Assigned: 
Assigned-Designated for Subsequent 

Year's E~pendltures 8,515,52 
Unassigned (Deficit) 194,836.80 

Total f1Jnd 6e!ences $ 5,591,388.37 $ 178,889.01 $ 3,288.98 $ 

Total Llabllltles and Fund Belance $ 7 .93ll,8Q4 ,60 $ 8Q3,049,91 $ 3,288.98 $ 

Total Fund Balance above 

Capital assets used In governmental activities are not flnanclal resources and thererore 
are not reported In the runds, The cost of capital assets is $60,734,403.64, and the 
accumulated depreciation is $26,865,422.38. (See Note 7) 

Noncurrent llabllltles, Including bonds, loans and lesses payable are not payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported as JJabilitios In the funds (See Noto 8). 

Total Noneurrent Llabllltles 

Deferred lo&s on defeasanee or debt, unamortized (See Note aC) 

Cert11.i11 liabilities are not due and payable in the eurronl period, and therefore, 
era not reported in funds: 

Accrued Interest Payable: 
(Accrued Interest is a current liability that will be paid from the debt service fund. 
Therefor(!, the liablllly reduces the restricted ror debt service net esset balance) 

Accrued Pension Liability: 
(Accrued pension is e current liability that will be palCI from the genoral fund, 
attributed to the fiscal year June 30, 2020, however will be raised In the buclget 
ror the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022) 

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and therefore Is not 
reported as a liability In the funds. (See Note Q) 

Net assets or governmental activities (A· 1) 

Sec accompanying Notes to Flnimcla! Statements 
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Exhibit 8-1 

Debt Total 
Service Governmental 
Fund Funds 

9,019.19 $ 6,259,016.50 
1,057,251.01 

34,597.59 
1,4941367,56 

9,019.19 $ 61645,252.66 

$ 2,723,672.76 
SQ,433,51 

184,677.34 
94 6133.52 

$ 3 062,667.13 

9 ,019.19 $ 9,019.19 
3,288.98 

23,664.64 
155,204.17 
194,076.36 
927,354.22 
372,957.00 

2,300,455.18 

1,593, 193.29 

8,515.52 
194.636.60 

9 ,019.19 $ 51782.585.65 

9,019.19 $ 8,8451252.68 

$ 5,782,585.55 

33,866,961 .26 

(5,971 ,328.71) 

133,548.67 

(15,106.67) 

(250,666.00) 

(41394,436.00) 

$ 29, 1531578.10 



Exhibit B·2 

B!!ARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENOIT!.!RE§, ANO CHANg!:;~ l!::l E'-!!::lC! li!8~6!::l~S~ 

~QVEB!:;lM~!::lI8~F!.!!::lC!~ 
FOB !HE FISC8L YEAR E!:;lDEQ .JUNE 3Q, 2021 

special C;ipit;il Debt Tot11! 
General Revenue Projects Service Government 
_fy.ru!_ _fyruL_ ___EimiL __..EimL Funds 

R11yenues 
Local sources: 

Local l<IX levy $ 16.820,436.00 $ 1,326, 135.00 $ 18, 146,571.00 
Mlscell11neous • Reslrfcted 25,995.98 $ 92,672.41 118,668.39 
Miscellaneous • Unrestrfcted 652,091.74 652,091.74 

Total - Local Sources $ 17 ,498 ,523. 72 $ 92,672.41 $ 1,326.135.00 $ 16.917,331 .13 

State Sources 22.653.671 . 66 1,676,710.97 24,329,382.53 
Feder;il Sourcea 1011687.52 2,379,660.17 2,481,3~7 .69 

Total Revenues $ 40,253,882.80 $ ~ , 148,0~3 .55 $ 1.326.135,00 $ 45.7261061.35 

Eisoendltyrns 
Current: 
Regular lnetructJon $ M26.499.45 $ 8,926,499.45 
Specie! EduC11lion lnstrvclion 3,935,903.83 $ 2, 784-042.39 6,719,946.22 
Oiiier Special Instruction 842,167.76 842,167.76 
Other Instruction 631,624.80 631 ,624.80 

Support Sorvlces and Undistributed Costs: 
Tum on 666,949.02 666,949.02 
Student and Instruction Related Servicei; 1,1 oe,73M7 95M32.92 2,063, 166.29 
Other Administrative Services 1,984,279.32 1,984,279.32 
School Administrative Services 2,807,198.72 2,807,198.72 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 3,772,684.68 3,772.684,68 
Pupil Transportation 1, 106,906.64 1, 106,906.64 
Employee Benefits 12,064,848.51 379,356.36 12,444,204.87 

Transfer to Chartor Schools 353,001.00 353,001 .00 
Debt Service: 
Principal $ 1, 145,000.00 1,145,000.00 
lntere$I 222,580.00 222,660.00 

Capital Outlay 6291929.42 191927.58 6491657.00 

Total Expenditures $ 38,828,726.52 $ 4, 139,759.25 $ 1,367,580.00 $ 44,336,065.77 

Exces!;/(DefiOlency) of Revenues 
Over/(Under) Expenditures $ 11425.156.26 $ 61264.30 $ ,41 1445.00l $ 11391 1996.66 

Other Financing Sources/(Uses): 
Excess Refunding Proceeds $ 9,019.63 $ 9,019.63 

Net Change ill Fund Balancei; $ 1,425, 156.28 $ 8,284 ,30 $ (32,425.37) $ 1,401 ,015.21 

Fund Balance (Deficit), July 1 3,996,161.71 (113,926.35) 3,268.96 41,444.Se 4,025,956.90 
Prior Period Adjustments 1661060.36 1871533.06 3561613.44 

fund Balance, July 1, Restated 4, 166,232.09 170,604.71 3,288.98 41 ,444.66 4,381,570.34 

Fund Balance (Deficit), June 30 $ s1ss1 1366.37 $ 11a1eas.01 $ 3,288,98 $ g 019,19 $ 5,782,565.55 

See accompanying Notes to Finencial Statements 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT - -

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances • Governmental Funds 

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the 
Statement of Activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as 
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, 
the cost of those assets Is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciated expense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 
Capital assets, other 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, 
but the repayment reduces long-term llablllUes In the statement of net 
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums and similar items when the 
debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized In the 
statement of activities. This represents the following related to the premiums 
on bonds. 

Amortization of premium 

Governmental funds report the effect of defeasances and similar items when 
the debt is first Issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized In the 
statement of activities. This represents the following related to the deferred 
loss of refunding. 

Amortization of deferred loss 

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued 
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, Interest Is reported 
when due: when the accrued interest is decreased, the difference 
is a reduction in the reconciliation. 

Net pension obligation related to PERS which is attributable to June 30, 2021 
is not reported in governmental funds; however, it is reported in the statement 
of activities. 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g. compensated 
absences (sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. 
In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these Items are reported 
in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount 
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction In the reconclllation; 
when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount, the difference is an 
addition to the reconciliation. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 
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$ 649,857.00 
(1,817,278.49) 

(!16,269.751 

Exhibit B-3 

$ 1,401,015.21 

(1.193,691 .24) 

1, 145,000.00 

85,617.56 

(30 ,622.80) 

3.441 .66 

292,557.00 

738.00 

$ 1,704,055.39 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 



Exhibit B-4 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRll;TARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable: 

State sources 
Federal sources 
Other sources 

Inventories 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Furniture, machinery and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Total current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Invested In Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

JUNE 30, 2021 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

$ 

Food Service 
Total Enterprise 

444,432.76 

4,522.49 
205,464.69 

1,022.40 
17,832.46 

$ ___ 67_3...._,2_74_._80_ 

$ 724,577.34 
413,524.22 

$ ___ 31_1..._,0_5_3._12_ 

<I: 984,327.92 
'f'===~== 

$ ___ 19_6~, 9_44_.6_3_ 

$ ===19=6=,9=4==4.=63= 

$ ===19=6.:., 9=44='=63= 

$ 311.053.12 
476,330.17 

$ ===78=7=,3=8=3.=29= 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEM!;NT Of REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND ~ET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Exhibit B-5 

Business-Type Activities -
Entererise Fund 

Operating Revenues: 
Local Sources: 

Daily sales - reimbursable programs: 
Miscellaneous Revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expem;es: 
Cost of sales • Reimbursable 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Insurance 
General supplies 
Cleaning, repairs and other expenses 
Depreciation 
Other Purchased Services 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income/(loss) 

Nonoperatlng revenues: 
State sources: 
State school lunch program 

Federal sources: 
Administrative reimbursement 
National school lunch program 
School breakfast program 
Food Distribution System 

Total nonoperatlng revenues 

lncome/(loss) before contributions and transfers 

Administrative Guarantee 

Change in net position 

Total net position - beginning 

Total net position - ending 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Food Service 
Total Enterprise 

5,320.87 
5,288.29 

10,609.16 

432.423.53 
244,507.50 
64,519.56 
10,564.35 
96,819.22 
8,077.08 

22,809.38 
27.590.92 

907 311 .54 

~896,702.381 

21 ,853.28 

3,063.00 
473,158.06 
274,280.38 

71,408.25 

843.762.97 

(52,939.41) 

56 794.06 

3,854.65 

7831528.64 

787 ,383.29 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND$ 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business-Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Cash Flows from Operatjng Activities 
Receipts from Customers 
Payments to Employees 
Payments for Employee Benefit 
Payments to Suppliers 

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Fjnancjng Activities 
State Sources 
Federal Sources 
Other Sources 

Total Cash Flows from Noncapltal Financing Activities 

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flow for Investing Actiyates 
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 

Net Cash Provided by/( Used for) Investing Activates 

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balanc~s - Beginning of Year 

Balances - End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating lncomel(Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided/(Used) bx O(lerating Ac!ivities 

Operating Gain/(Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash Provided/ 
(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 
Change In Assets and Liabilities: 
(lncrease)/Decrease Other Sources Receivable 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventory 
lncrease/(Decrease) In Accounts Payable 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 

$ 

Food Service 
Total Enterorjse 

9,669.26 
(244,507.50) 
(64,519.56) 

(440,266.86) 

$ _ __._(7_39 ..... 6_2_4._66_.} 

$ 21 ,301 .92 
681,481 .35 

56,793.39 

$ __ 7_5_9~,5_76_.6_6_ 

$ ___ 75_9.._,5_7_6._66_ 

(13,860.002 

$ _ ___.(,__13_...8_6_0._00_...) 

$ 6,092.00 

438,340.76 

$ 444,432. 76 ======== 

$ _.......,;(8..;..96""", 7"""0""'2 . ..;..36'-'-) 

$ 22,770.88 

(939.99) 
4,950.27 

130,296.56 

$ __ 1_57...,0_7_7 ._72_ 

$ (739,624.66) =========== 

fahibit B~6 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY 

The South River Borough School District (the "District") is a Type II district located in the County of 
Middlesex, State of New Jersey. As a Type II district, the District functions independently through a 
Board of Education (the ''Board")_ The Board is comprised of nine (9) members elected to three·year 
staggered terms. The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-12. The District had 
an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2021 of 2,306 students. 

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations 
that are included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary 
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate 
from the District For the District, this Includes general operations, food service and student related 
activities of the District. 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 
2100 of the GASS Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is 
whether: 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name) 
the District holds the corporate powers of the organization 
the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
the District is able to impose its will on the organization 
the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefiUburden on the District 
there Is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting prf nciples. The District also applies Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to 
its governmental activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
The most significant of the District's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that provide 
a more detailed level of financial information. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

A. Basis of Pr~sentation (Continued} 

1. Government~Wlde Financial Statements 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display Information about the 
District as a whole. These statements Include the financial activities of the primary 
government, except for fiduciary funds. 

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of 
the District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the District's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program 
or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function . Program revenues 
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as 
general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct 
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function Is 
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

During the year, the District segregates transactions related to certain District functions or 
activities In separate funds In order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal 
compliance. 

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the District at this 
more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. 
Each major fund is presented in a separate column. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined 
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

1. Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current 
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds 
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are 
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund 
assets and liabilities ls reported as fund balance. The following are the District's major 
governmental funds: 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

1. Governmental Funds (Continued) 

General Fund - The General Fund Is the general operating fund of the District. It is used 
to account for all firiancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable Instructional or 
noninstructional equipment that are classified in the Capital Outlay subfund. The fund 
also includes payroll agency, payroll net, and unemployment reserve accounts. 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes 
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) as they pertain to governmental entities state that 
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived 
Improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from 
unrestricted revenues. 

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New 
Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that 
result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, 
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of 
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred 
from and to Current Expense by board resolution. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Find is used to account for the proceeds 
of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital 
projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The fund also includes scholarship 
accounts and student activity accounts. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial 
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other 
than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from 
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a 
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major 
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs. This fund is not applicable 
in this fiscal year. 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
N()TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Fund Accounting <Continued) 

2. f roprietary Fund Type 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net f ncome, financial 
position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting prlnclples applicable are those 
similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary 
fund of the District: 

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the 
intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect 
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other 
purposes. 

The District's Enterprise Fund Is comprised of the Food Service Fund. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" 
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or 
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on the statement of net position. 
Their reported fund equity (net position) is segregated into net investment in capital 
assets and unrestricted net position, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive capital assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an 
expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary 
fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the equipment used in the 
operations of the Enterprise Funds are approximately 10 years. 

3. Noncurrent Debt 

Noncurrent liablllties expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted tor in 
the General Noncurrent Debt, not in the governmental funds. This includes the outstanding 
principal balance on capital leases. 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus 

1. Government-Wide Financial Stateme.nts 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are 
included on the Statement on Net Position. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
generally are included on the statement of net position. The statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other 
financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial 
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the 
government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements 
therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship 
between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are Included on the statement of net position. Fund equity (I.e., net position) is 
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type 
operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net 
position. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating 
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both 
measurable and available. ''Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined 
and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue 
during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year availability period is used for 
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recognized in 
the accounting period In which the fund liablllty Is incurred, except for principal and interest on 
general long-term debt which are recorded when due. 

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a 
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount 
voted upon or certified , prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire 
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both 
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established 
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable". 

In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASS) and its predecessor organizations Issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The District's 
proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards issued by FASB after November 30, 
1989. 

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of 
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Budget$/Budgetarv Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared In the winter of each year for the general, special 
revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are approved and voted on by the Board of 
Education of the District, submitted to the County office for approval and if determined to be 
within the allowable tax levy cap and within the allowable appropriation cap, become effective 
upon the holding of a public hearing and final adoption by the District. In accordance with P.L. 
2011 , c.202, which became effective 17, 2012, the district elected to move the annual School 
Board election to the date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote on the 
annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is 
established at line item accounts within each fund . Line item accounts are defined as the lowest 
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts 
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School 
Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year subject to the limitation of N.J.A.C 6A:23A-2.3 
(et seq.). All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution and certain 
others require approved by the County Superintendent of Schools. Budgetary transfers were 
made during the current year in accordance with statutory guidelines. The amendments made by 
the District were part of the normal course of operations. 

Formal budgetary Integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control 
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the 
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAP) with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last 
state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. 
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary Integration In the 
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fisoal year end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting 
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP In that the grant 
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are 
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports. 

The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments In the general fund are due to the inclusion 
of the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District 
expenditures. There amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not represent 
budgetary over-expenditures. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOJ_E_S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS1CONTINUED1 

YEA_R ENDED JUNE 30, _2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued) 

The following presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenue and special revenue fund 
revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, Special 
Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All 
Governmental Fund Types. 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ''revenues" from the 

budgetary comparison schedules. 

Difference - budget to GA.AP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP In 

that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, 
and the related revenue is recognized_ 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements In the 
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAAP statements. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes In fund balances - governmental funds. 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" 
from the budgetary comparison schedule. 

Differences • budget to GAAP: 
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 

not received are reported in the year the order is placed 
for budgetary purposes, but in the year supplies are 
received for financial reporting purposes_ 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes In fund 
balances - governmental funds. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General Fund 
Special 

Revenue Fund 

40,324,328.80 $ 4, 131. 115.20 

None 
None 

1 .483,321 .00 

(1,553,767.00) 

40,253,882-80 - $ 

38,828,726.52 

None 
None 

$ 

None 
None 

16,928.35 

None 

4,14BcQ43.55 

4, 139,759.26 

None 
None 

38,828,726_52 $ 4,139,759_26 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEl\llt:NTSJCONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

F. Encumbrances 

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open 
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as 
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services. 

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances, 
are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end. 

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be 
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected In the certified 
budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end. 

G. Assets. Llabllltles and Equity 

1. Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost 
plus accrued interest. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid securities that are 
both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present 
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, only 
securities with original maturities of three (3) months or less meet this definition. U.S. Treasury 
and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when 
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial 
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible 
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public 
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit 
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA") . GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units 
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 

N.J.SA 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of 
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a 
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories 
include savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks 
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having 
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public 
funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it 
has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, Is avallable to pay the full amount 
of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

2. Inventories and Prepaid ExRenses 

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded In the 
enterprise fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. 

Inventories In the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the 
first-In-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments 
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2021 . 

3. Allowance for Uncollectlble Accounts 

No allowance for uncollectlble accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered 
collectible. 

4. Tuition Receivable 

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The 
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. 

5. Tuition Payable 

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 were based on rates established 
by the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been 
determined. 

6. Short-Term lnterfund Receivables/Payables 

ShorMerm lnterfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges 
for goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one 
year. 

7. Capital Assets 

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are 
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position 
but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions 
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as 
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00. 
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

7. Capltal Assets (Continued) 

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over 
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation Is computed using the 
straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Asset Cl.ass 

School Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Electrical/Plumbing 
Vehicles 
Office and Computer Equipment 
Instructional Equipment 
Grounds Equipment 
Food Service Equipment 

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Estimated Lives 

50 years 
20 years 
30 years 

8 years 
5-10 years 

10 years 
15 years 

7-20 years 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to 
liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

9. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation , 
sick leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that Is outside the 
control of the District and Its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the 
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are accounted for in the 
period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide financial 
statements. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

9. Compensated Absences (Continued) 

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences 
is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are 
recorded in the account "compensated absences payable" in the fund from which the employees 
who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not 
reported. 

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and 
liability of the fund that will pay for them. 

10. Accrued Liabilities and Noncurrent Oblig~tions 

All payables, accrued liabilities and noncurrent obligations are reported In the government-wide 
financial statements. 

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that once Incurred are paid In a timely manner and in 
full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the governmental funds. 
However, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans payable that 
wlll be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements 
only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable, available financial 
resources. 

11. Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt 

Deferred loss on refunding arising from the issuance of the refunding bonds is recorded as a 
deferred outflow of resources. It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the 
duration of the related debt as a component of interest expense. (Refer to Note_8-C). 

12. Net Position 

GASS Statement Number 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and established standards for reporting deferred outflows 
of resources, deferred inflows of resources and net position. Net Position represents the 
difference between assets, deferred outflows, deferred Inflows and liabilities in the government­
wide financial statements. Net position Invested In capital assets, net of related debt consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any 
noncurrent debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported as restricted 
in the government-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use 
through external restrictions Imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other 
governments. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

13. Unearned (Deferred} Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents federal and state grants that have been 
received but not yet earned. 

14. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from 
other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for 
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent 
plans for future use of financial resources. 

15. Fund Balance Reserves 

GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
("GASB 54") established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 
on the extent to which a government Is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the 
resources reported In governmental funds. Under GASS 54, fund balances in the governmental 
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and 
classified Into the following five (5) categories, as defined below: 

a. Nonspendable - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets 
Included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, noncurrent 
receivables and corpus of any permanent funds. 

b. Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 
by constitution , external resource providers or through enabling legislation. 

c. Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed 
by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The 
District's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the 
''Board") and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. 
Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revised 
or changes the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) taken to originally 
commit these funds. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets. Llabilities and Equity (Continued) 

15. Fund Balance Reserves (Continued) 

d. Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do 
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Interest is expressed by 
either the Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering 
of funds. 

e. Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in 
the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned 
to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific 
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a 
position unassigned fund balance amount In the other governmental funds, if 
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or 
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund 
balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the 
unrestricted fund balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and 
finally, unassigned funds. 

16. Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School 
District enterprise fund, (the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of food service. 

Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expense and depreciation on Capital Assets. Ali revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

17. On-Behalf Payments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New 
Jersey for social security, post-retirement medical pension and contributions for the certified 
teachers and other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. The 
amounts are not required to be included in the District's annual budget. 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabiliti~~ and Eguirl ((;ontim..i.ed} 

18. Non-Monetary Transactions 

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the district 
and are recorded as nonoperatihg revenue when received in the food service enterprise fund at 
market value. The use of the commodities Is included in cost of sales. 

19. Allocation of Expenses 

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Employee benefits, including the employer's 
share of social security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated 
based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically 
identified by function and is included in the direct expense column of the Statement of Activities. 
Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific function is reported separately on 
the Statement of Activities . No expenses were allocated as "Indirect Expenses". 

20. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary Items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special Items are transactions or events that are within the control of management 
and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

21 . Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

The District implemented GASS 68 which amends GASB Statement No. 27. It improves 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves 
Information provided by state and local government employers about financial support for 
pensions that is provided by other entities. 

The District has also implemented GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment to GASS No. 68. The objective of 
this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to 
amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or 
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of 
the government's beginning net pension liability. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE _30, 2021 

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

21. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Continued) 

Statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer contributing entity 
in a special funding situation) to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date (the 
measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. If a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension 
plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the 
government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the government recognize fts 
contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. 

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability of a state or focal government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity that arise from other types of events. 

22. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPES") 

In 2018 the District implemented GASB #75 which addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This 
Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, revenues and expense/expenditures. The Statement 
GASB #45 supersedes Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits with 
other than Pension. 

The participating local education employer allocations included in the supplemental Schedule of 
special funding amounts by employer are provided as each local education employer is required 
to record in their financial statements, as an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective 
amount of total OPES expense attributable to the State of New Jersey under the special funding 
situation and to include their respective amount of total OPEB liability In their notes to their 
financial statements. 

23. GASB St~tement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities 

The District implemented GASS Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities on July 1, 2020. The 
objective of this Statement is to improve reporting of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities. 
The focus of the criteria generally ls on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the 
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate 
criteria are Included to Identify component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that 
are fiduciary activities_ The District reclassified the payroll agency, payroll net and unemployment 
reserve accounts to the General Fund. The Special Revenue Fund was adjusted to Include 
student activity and scholarship accounts. There was no adverse impact on the financial 
statements of the District. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

24. Management Es$irn!!tes 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

H. Other Accounting Standards 

The District is currently reviewing the following for applicability and potential impact on the 
financial statements: 

• GASS Statement No. 87. Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as 
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the 
contract. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 89. Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting 
period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is encourage. The requirements of 
this Statement should be applied prospectively. The District does not expect this Statement 
to impact its financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 91. Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2021 . The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statements. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTE~ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR i:NDED J~N_E 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASS Statement 92. Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of 
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows: 

(a) The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation 
Gulde 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative 
instruments are effective upon issuance. 

(b) The requirements related to Intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the 
applicability of Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2021. 

(c) The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit 
arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or 
liabilities are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 

(d) The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) 
associated with AROs in a government acquisition are effective for government acquisitions 
occurring In reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. Implementation has been 
postponed to June 15, 2021 . The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statement. 

• GASB Statement 93. Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The objective of this 
Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that 
resu lt from the replacement of an IBOR. Some governments have entered into agreements 
in wh ich variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR) -
most notably, the LondM Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). 

Effective Date: The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective 
for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021 . All other requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier 
application is encouraged. The District does not expect this Statement to impact its financial 
statement. 

-49 -



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASS Statement 94. Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Aval/ability 
Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement Is to Improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership 
arrangements (PPPs). 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2022 and all PPPs should be recognized and measured using the facts and 
circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period of implementation (or if applicable to 
earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest period restated). Implementation has been 
postponed to June 15, 2021 . The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statement. 

• GASS Statement 95. Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritat!Ve 
Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement Is to provide temporary relief to 
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is 
accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions In Statements and 
Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2019 and later. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective Immediately. The District 
does not expect this Statement to impact Its financial statement. 

• GASB Statement 96. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
Information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). 
This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use 
subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) 
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including 
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA To 
the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established In 
Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application Is encouraged. 
Assets and liabilities resulting from SBITAs should be recogn ized and measured using the 
facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning of the fiscal year in which this 
Statement is implemented. Governments are permitted, but are not required, to include in 
the measurement of the subscription asset capitalizable outlays associated with the initial 
implementation stage and the operation and additional implementation stage incurred prior to 
the implementation of this Station .. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASB Statement 97. Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and Financial 
Reporllng for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASS 
Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency 
and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in 
which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would performs; (2) mitigate 
costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined 
contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other 
than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component 
units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and 
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 
Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a 
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and 
financial reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2021 . For purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable 
for a potential component unit, the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all 
other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the 
appointment of voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the 
duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and 
permitted by requirement as specified within this Statement. 

The Board considered the effective dates for the requirements of this Statement In light of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective 
Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. 

I. Subsequent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions from June 30, 2021 
through March 9, 2022, the date that the financial statements are issued for possible disclosure 
and recognition in the financial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the District 
that would require disclosure. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are defined as sort­
term, highly liquid securities that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near 
their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes In interest 
rates. Generally, only securities with original maturities of three (3) months or less meet this 
definition. 

Investments are stated at fair value. which is In excess of cost value. The District classifies securities 
that have original maturity date of more than three months from the date of purchase as investments. 
The District Is In compliance with GASB Statement No. 3 as amended by GASB Statement No. 40. 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in 
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of 
the United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also 
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that 
exceed depository insurance limits as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of 
collected public funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital 
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 
100% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal ReseNe 
Bank of Philadelph ia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York or a banking institution that is a 
member of the Federal ReseNe System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000. 

- 52 -



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUN!! 30, 2021 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Investments 

New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities: 

• Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by 
the United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes 
and bonds. 

• Government money market mutual funds. 

• Any federal agency or Instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures 
within 397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent 
on any Index or external factors. 

• Bonds or other obligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is 
a part. 

• Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the 
Division of Investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury. 

• Local government investment pools. 

• New Jersey State Cash Management Fund. 

• Repurchase agreements of fully collaterallzed securities, subject to special conditions. 

Custodial Credit Risk - The District had no securities as of June 30, 2021 that could be 
categorized as an investment as defined by GASB No. 3 as amended by GASB No. 40. 

New Jersey Cash Management Fund 

All investments In the Fund are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which 
prescribe specific standards designed to insure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks 
related to investments. In all the years of the Division of Investment's existence, the Division has 
never suffered a default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the 
bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a 
reserve Is being accumulated as additional protection for the "other-than-State" participants. In 
addition to the Council regulations, the Division sets further standards for specific investments and 
monitors the credit of all eligible securities issuers on a regular basis. As of June 30, 2021, the 
District had $178,446.49 on deposit with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {_CONTlNUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Allocation of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

As of June 30, 2021, cash, cash equivalents and investment of all funds of the District consisted of 
the following : 

Allocation: 
Unrestricted 

Restricted: 
Maintenance Reserve 
Capital Reserve 
Unemployment Compensation 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Checking Accounts, interest bearing 
New Jersey Cash Management Fund (NJCMF) 

$ 372,957.00 
927,354.22 
194,076.36 

Investment- US Treasury Note 6.375% due August 15, 2027 
(Face Value $16,000.00) 

Reconciliation: 
Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds 

$ 8,422,382.99 

1,494,387.58 

$ 9,916,770.57 

$ 9,717,256.56 
178,446.49 

21,067.52 

$ 9,916,770.57 

$ 9,472,337.81 
444,432.76 

$ 9,916,770.57 

Risk Analysis - All of the balances were covered by either federal depository insurance or 
Government Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA") and are considered to have rninimal custodial 
risk. Obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government 
are not considered to have concentration of credit risk. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

4. RESERVE ACCOUNTS 

A CAPITAL RESERVE 

A Capital Reserve Account was established by Board Resolution and Budget Appropriation in a prior 
year for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. 
The combined Capital Reserve Account balance at June 30, 2021 is $927,354.22 and is reflected in 
the General Fund. 

The cumulative activity of the capital reserve as of June 30, 2021 fiscal year is as follows: 

Board Contributions: 
Prior to June 30, 2020 $ 1,002,931.26 
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 749,999.58 $ 1,752,930.84 

Interest Earnings: 
Prior to June 30, 2020 $ 1,822.38 
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 1,822.38 

Withdrawals: 
Prior to June 30, 2020 $ 384,466.00 
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 442,933.00 827,399.00 

Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 927,354.22 

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's approved 
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may 
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end. A district may also appropriate 
additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate 
proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the fou r special elections authorized 
pursuant to N.J. S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A. C. 6:23A-5.1 (d) 7, the balance In the account cannot 
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in !ts approved LRFP. 

B. MAINTENANCE RESERVE 

The School District established a maintenance reserve account for the accumulation of funds for 
use as required maintenance of a facility in subsequent fiscal years. 

Funds placed in the maintenance reserve account are restricted to maintenance projects in the 
School District's approved Maintenance Plan (M-1). A School District may increase the balance 
In the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at yearend of any unanticipated revenue or 
unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. The balance in the account cannot at any 
time exceed four (4) percent of the replacement cost of the school district's school facilities for the 
current year. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

4. RESERVE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) 

B MAINTENANCE RESERVE (CONTINUED) 

Contributions from Board 
Prior to June 30, 2020 
During year ended June 30, 2021 

Less Withdrawals: 
Prior to June 30, 2020 
During year ended June 30, 2021 

Balance June 30, 2021 

5. INTERGOVl:RNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

$ 230,000.00 
247,957.00 

$ 44,000.00 
61,000.00 

$ 477,957.00 

$ 105,000.00 

$ 372,957.00 

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2021 consisted of Federal sources, State 
sources and State aid. All receivables are considered collectible in fu ll. A summary of the principal 
items of intergovernmental receivables follows: 

General Fund: 
Federal - Medical Assistance 
State: 

Extraordinary Aid 
Non-Public Transportation - Cost Reimbursement 
TPAF FICA Reimbursement 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Federal: 

Title I 
Title I Reallocated 
Title I SIA 
Title II - Part A 
Title Ill - Part A 
Title Ill - Immigrant 
Title IV 
IDEA Part B 
Cares Act 
CRRSA ESSER II 
CRRSA Learning Acceleration 
CRRSA Mental Health 
Adult Basic Education 
Perkins 

Local - ESCNJ Non-Public 

Total 
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Goyernmental Fund 

$ 3,137.95 ---------
$ 422,011 .00 

34,510.00 
58,688.08 

$ 515,209.08 

$ 518,347.03 

$ 209,459.58 
5,917.62 
3,327.64 

33,480.12 
13,318.29 

1,034.43 
28,491 .73 

109,815.75 
46,267.51 

6.445.24 
550.00 

1,132.00 
13,900.45 
6,330.11 

$ 479,470.47 

$ 59,433.51 

$ 538,903.98 

$ 1,057,251 .01 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

5. INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 

Proprietary Fund: 
Enterprise Fund 

Federal Sources: 
Breakfast 
Lunch 
Administration 

State Sources: 
Lunch 

Other 

Total 

6. INVENTORY 

$ 

Busine~i; Type 

48,840.86 
153,560.83 

3,063.00 

$ 205.464.69 

$ 4,522.49 
-~ ........... ---

1.022.40 

$ 416,474.27 = ====== 

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A of $71,408 (required by the 
Single Aud it Law of 1984) Is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the 
date of the purchase and has been Included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial 
statements. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the federal donated commodities food inventory of 
$6,780 was Included In the year end food and supplies amount of $17,832. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

7. CAPITAL ASSETS; NET 

The following schedule is a summarization of the changes in capital assets by source for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2021: 

Beginning Transfers Ending 
Balance Additions (B~ll~al!i:alil Balance 

~'2ll~C1Jlll~Dlli!I ti~liVlli~i ; 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Site and Sile Improvements $ 2,453,626.77 $ 442,932.42 $ 2,896,559.19 
Building and Building Improvements 54,923,704.55 107,452.00 55,031, 156.55 
Machinery and Equipment 2,600,665.47 99,472.58 $ (26,269.75) 2,673,868.30 
Vehicles 132,819.60 132,819.60 

Totals at historical cost $ 60, 110,816.39 $ 649,857.00 $ (26,269. 751 $ 60,734,403.64 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Site and Sile Improvements $ (1,834,927.25) $ (74,620.97) $ (1,909,548.22) 
Building and Building Improvements (20,971 ,688.36) (1,667,576.08) (22,639,264.44) 
Machinery and Equipment (2.108, 708.68) (75,081 .44) (2,183,790.12) 
Vehicles ~132,819.601 (132,819.60l 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (25,048, 143.891 $ p ,817 ,278.49) $ (26,865.422.38) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, 
net of accumulated depreciation $ 35.062.672.50 $ (1 .167.421.49) $ ~26.269. 751 $ 33,868,981 .26 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 35,062,672.50 $ (1,167.421.49i $ i26,269. 75) s 33,868,981.26 

~!.!!!ln~ss-T)ll:lB Activities: 
Furniture, machinery and equipment $ 516,660.20 $ 13,860.00 $ 530,520.20 

Building Improvements 194,057.14 194,057.14 

Totals at historical cost $ 710,717.34 $ 13,860.00 $ 724,577.34 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Furniture, machinert and equipment $ (365,655.53) $ (18,893.90) $ (384,549.43) 

Building improvements i25,059.31) (3,915.48) (28,974.79) 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (390,714.841 $ !22.809.38) $ (413,524.22) 

Business type activities capital assets, net $ 320,002.50 $ (8,949.38) $ 311 ,053.12 

Detail of Additions: 
General Fund $ 629,929.42 
Special Revenue Fund 191927.58 

$ 649 857.00 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
.NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

7. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Regular Instruction 
Special Education Instruction 
Other Special Instruction 
Other 
Support Services and Undistributed Cost: 

Student and Instruction Related SeNlces 
School Administrative SeNices 
General and Business Administrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 

$ 562,198.28 
423,227.74 

53,040.42 
39,780.25 

129,939.91 
176,799.68 
124,971 .54 
237,606.78 

69,713.89 

$ 1,817,278.49 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the following changes occurred in liabilities: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due Within Non current 
Balance Retirements Balance One Year Portion 

~Ol£§l(DQJ~1Jl~l 8g!jllili~~ ; 
Bonds Payable • 

General 
Obligation Debt $ 6,256,000,00 $ (1, 145,000.00) $ 5, 113,000.00 $ 1, 165,000.00 $ 3,948,000.00 

Add - Premium on 
Sale of Bonds 435.856.27 ~85 , 617.56~ 350,238.71 85,61 7. 56 264,621,15 

6,693,856.27 (1 ,230,617.56) 5.463,238. 71 1,250,617.56 4,212,621.15 

Compensated 
Absences Payable 508,828.00 (738.00) 508,090.00 50,809.00 457,281 .00 

$ 7,202,684.27 $ (1 ,231 ,355.56) $ 5,971,328.71 $ 1,301.426.56 $ 4,669,902. 15 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
. . YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality(ies) through 
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. 
Bonds issued by the District are general obligation bonds. As of June 30, 2021, the District had 
the following serial bonds outstanding. 

General Serial Bonds: 
$3,845,000 of Refunding School Bonds, Series 2012 -

Refinance $3,953,000 of the General Obligation Bonds 2003. 
Annual maturities of $425,000 to $445,000 through June 1, 2023 
at interest rate of 4.00%. The bonds are not subject to redemption 
prior to maturity. 

$2,453,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015 -
District's share of improvements to the schools. Annual maturities 
ranging from $225,000 to $450,000 through June 1, 2025 at 
interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.50%. The bonds are not 

$ 870,000.00 

subject to redemption prior to maturity. 1,328,000.00 

$3,425,000 of Refunding School Bonds Series 2020 -
Refinancing $3,680,000 of 2011 Series bonds maturing on or 
after June 2, 2021. Annual maturities commencing June 1, 2021 
ranging from $340,000 to $515,000 at an interest rate of 4.00%. 
The bonds were sold at a premium of $389,966 and resulted 
in a loss on defeasance (retirement) of $134,966. The bonds are 
not to redemption prior to maturity. 2,915,000.00 

$ 5, 113,000.00 

The Bonds are general obligations of the Board and are secured by a pledge of the full faith and 
credit of the Board for the payment of the principal thereof and the interest thereon and, un less 
paid from other sources, the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable 
real property in the school district, without limitation as to rate or amount. The Bonds are 
additionally secured by the provisions of the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act. 

The District, In conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds, has agreed to undertake and provide 
certain Information to Bondholders on a continuing basis. The Securities and Exchange 
Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2~12(b)(5) "Continuing Disclosure" requirements, which the District 
has adopted, requires that various financial information about the District and the Municipality be 
provided annually to various Information repositories. This requirement has been complied with 
for the year ended June 301 2021 . 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable (Continued) 

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows: 

School District Refunding Bonds 2012 

Year Princi1;1al Interest Total 

Next two (2) year 

2022 $ 425,000 $ 34,800 $ 459,800 

2023 445,000 17,800 462,800 

$ 870,000 $ 52,600 $ 922,600 . 

School District Bonds Series 2015 

~ Ecia~i12sil Interest IQ!fil 

Next four (4) year 

2022 $ 225,000 $ 29,880 $ 254,880 

2023 225,000 25,380 250,380 

2024 428,000 20,880 448,880 

2025 450,000 11.250 461,250 

$ 1,328,000 $ 87,390 $ 1.415,390 

School Refundlns Bonds Series 2020 

:::wi: Ecia~i12~1 ~ Total 

Next five (5) year 
2022 $ 515,000 $ 116,600 $ 631,600 

2023 515,000 96,000 611 ,000 

2024 515,000 75,400 590,400 

2025 515,000 54,800 569,800 

2026 515,000 34,200 549,200 

2,575,000 377,000 2,952 ,000 

Thereafter 

2027 340,000 13,600 353,600 

$ 2,915,000 $ 390,600 $ 3,305,600 
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SO_LI!H RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A. Bonds Payable (Continued) 

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 

Year Princi!'.!al J.alm.§.1 

Next five (5) years 

2022 $ 1, 165,000 $ 181 ,280 

2023 1,185,000 139,180 

2024 943,000 96,280 

2025 965,000 66,050 

2026 515,000 34,200 

4,773,000 516,990 

Thereafter 

2027 340,000 13,600 

$ 5,113,000 $ 530,590 

B. Bonds and Notes Authorized But Not Issued 

$ 1,346,280 

1,324,180 

1,039,280 

1,031 ,050 

549,200 

5,289,990 

353,600 

$ 5,643,590 

As of June 30, 2021 there were no bonds and notes authorized but not issued. 

C. Defeasance 

As a result of the accounting requirement under GASB#23/65, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Refunding of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities, the recording of the 
transaction related to the new vs. old debt and related costs resulted in accounting losses which 
in conjunction with the premium will be amortized over the remaining life of the respective bond 
issues using the "straight-line". 

Unamortized Loss on Defeasance of Debt 

Beginning Ending 
Refunding Bonds Loss Balance Amortization Balance 

2012 Series $ 136,103.00 $ 34,025.83 $ 11 ,341.96 $ 22,683.87 
2020 Serles 134,965.85 130, 145.64 19,280.84 110,864.80 

Total $ 164,171 .47 $ 30,622.80 $ 133,548.67 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

8. NONCURRENT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

D. Compensated Absences 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed 
by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for 
Compensated Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already 
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and 
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

District employees earn sick leave at the rate of one day for each month of service. Upon 
departure from the district, teachers who have obtained tenure and ten month support staff who 
have completed three or more years of employment shall be paid for accumulated sick leave at 
the rate of X of the unused accumulated sick leave multiplied by 1/200 of the last annual 
contracted salary. Twelve month employees who have completed three or more years of 
employment shall be paid at the rate of Y.. of the unused accumulated sick leave multiplied by 
1/240 of the last annual contracted salary. 

For teachers employed after September 1, 1981 , the sick leave payment shall be limited to no 
more than $15,000.00. For all support staff employed after September 1, 1981 , the sick leave 
payment shall be limited to no more than $15,000.00. 

Twelve month employees earn vacation, the carryover of which is limited to August 31 , of the 
year following the time earned. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded in the 
statement of net position in the current and noncurrent liabilities. The current portion of the 
compensated absence balance of the governmental funds is shown separately from the 
noncurrent liability balance of compensated absences. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within 
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2021 no llabll lty existed for 
compensated absences in the proprietary fund types. 

E. Operating Leases 

The District leases non6 capitalized equipment that are deemed operating leases. The lease 
payment schedule is as follows: 

2017-2016 Lease Principal 

2022 $ 62,443.89 
======= 

$ 1,929.49 
= = === 

$ 64,373.38 
===== 

- 63 -



9. PENSION PLANS 

SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Description of Plans: All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public 
Employees' Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund that have been 
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits 
(Division) . According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems 
will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division of Pension 
issues a publicly available financial report that Includes the financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension 
and Annuity Fund. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity fl)JJd ff PAF) 

The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special-funding situation, by which the State of New 
Jersey (the State) is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contribution, excluding any local 
employer early retirement incentive (ERi) contributions. TPAF is administered by the State of 
New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about 
TPAF, please refer to the Division's annual financial statements, which can be found at 
www. state. n j. us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports. shtm I. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66, TPAF provides retirement, death 
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, 
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are 
always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become 
vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before 
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts. 
The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF: 

Tier Definition 
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 

28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Description of Plans (Continued) 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund <TPAF) (Continued) 

Service retirement benefits of 1/551
h of final average salary for each year of service credit is 

available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching 
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1 /601

h of final average salary tor each year of service credit 
is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. 
Early reti rement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 
and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or 
more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that 
a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is 
available to members who have at least 1 o years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) 

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division 
of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about PERS, please refer to 
the Division's annual financial statements, which can be found at 
www.state.nj .us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43: 15A. PERS provides retirement, death 
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, 
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following 
represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 

28,2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Description of Plans (Continued) 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is 
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching 
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/601

h of final average salary for each year of service credit 
is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. 
Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 
and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or 
more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that 
a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits rn 
accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from 
age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to 
members who have at least 1 O years of service credit and have not reached the service 
retirement age for the respective tier. 

Funding Policy: The contribution policy is set by New Jersey Statutes and contributions are 
required by active members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions 
may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, 
employee contribution rates for TPAF and PERS are 7.5% of employees' annual compensation. 
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. 
The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, 
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the 
District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are 
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State Is 
treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not 
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension 
liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report In the financial statements of the local participating 
employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating employers must 
disclosure the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities total proportionate share of the net 
pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. 

During the year ended June 30, 2021 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding 
situations, the annual pension costs equals annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost 
sharing multi-employer pension plan, the annual pension costs differs from the annual required 
contribution due to the enactment of Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2021 --

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Funding Policy: (Con~in_u_ed} 

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS 

Fiscal Year Ended Net Cost Percentage 
June 30, to District of APC Contributed 

2021 $ 222,536 100% 
2020 198, 188 100% 
2019 206,520 100% 

Employee 
Contribution 

$ 114,978 
115,487 
109,832 

Three-Year Trend ltlformation for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District) 

Fiscal Year Pension Paid on-behalf of District 
Ended Cost APC Total Employee TPAF 

June 30 .(.8.E.Ql Cootrjbuted On-Behalf of Contribution FICA 

2021 $ None 100% $ 4,054,832 $ 1,240,924 $ 1,198,347 
2020 None 100% 2,856,697 1, 177,943 1, 167,662 
2019 None 100% 1, 194,739 1,098,076 1, 117,484 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the State of New Jersey contributed $4,054,832 to the 
TPAF for normal pension. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66.-66 the State of New Jersey 
reimbursed the District $1, 198,347 during the year ended June 30, 2021 for the employer's share of 
social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount 
has been included in the basic financial statements, and the Individual fund statements and 
schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24. 

Public Employees Retirem~ntSyst_em (PERS) 

The information for PERS was abstracted from State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement 
System Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer as of 
June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Report dated June 4, 2021 and June 5, 
2020, respectively. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

The District reported a liability of $3,317,319 and $3,671,234 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 (the Measurement Date), and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating school districts. actuarially determined. The District's proportion of the collective pension 
liability is as follows: 

District Proportionate Share 

Difference - Decrease 

June 30 

0.0203424369 % 

(0.0000323850) 

0.0203748219 % 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension benefit of $292,557. At June 30, 
2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
PERS from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Changes of Assumptions $ 107,618 $ 1,388,993 

Difference between expected and actual experience 60,403 11,731 

Net difference between projected and actual 
savings on pension plan Investments 113,389 

Changes in proportion 56A64 264,933 

District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 250,666 

Total $ 588,540 $ 1,665,657 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

The $250,666 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school 
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 
2021, the plan measurement date is June 30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30 Amount 

Additional Information 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

$ 

Collective balances of the Local Group are as follows: 

Collective deferred outflows of resources 

Collective deferred inflows of resources 

Collective net pension llability 

Collective pension expenses 

District's proportion (of Local Group) 

Actuarial Assumotions 

$ 

2020 

2,347,583,337 

7,849,949,467 

16,435,616,426 

407,705,399 

0.0203424369 

(416,263) 
(379,505) 
(216,878) 

(87,702) 
(18,968) 

June 30, 
~019 

$ 3, 149,522,616 

7,645,087,574 

18, 143,832, 135 

974,471 ,686 

% 0.0203748219 % 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used the 
following assumptions, applied to all periods In the measurement. 

Inflation Rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary Increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

2.75% 
3.25% 

2.00-6.00% (based on year of service) 
3.00-7.00% (based on year of service) 

7.00% 
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9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Emplovees Retirement System CPERSl (Continued) 

Mortality Rates 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2000 General Below-Median Income Employee 
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with 
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality 
rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table 
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99. 7% adjustment for females, and with future Improvement 
from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled 
retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% 
adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base 
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018. It is likely that future 
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience 
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. 
The more the experience deviates, the larger Impact on future financial statements. 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2020 measurement date) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the 
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees 
and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class Included in PERS's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 (measurement date) are summarized in the following table: 
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued) 

Target Long-term Expected 
Asset Class 

U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 
Emerging Market Equity 
Private Equity 
Real Assets 
Real Estate 
High Yield 
Private Credit 
Investment Grade Credit 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Risk Mitigation Strategies 

Discount Rate 

. .811ocation Real B.ate of R.etyrn 

27.00 % 7.71 % 
13.50 8.57 
5.50 10.23 

13.00 11.42 
3.00 9.73 
8.00 9.56 
2.00 5.95 
8.00 7.59 
8.00 2.67 
4.00 0.50 
5.00 1.94 
3.00 3.40 

100.00 % 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020 
(measurement date). The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members wlll be made at the current member contribution rates and that 
contributions from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be based on 78% of the 
actuarially determined contributions for the state employer and 100% of actuarially determined 
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

S_eDsitivity of The Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. 

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30, 
2020 respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the 
collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage 
point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than the current rate: 
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9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Public Employees Retirement System <PERS) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of The Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate (Continued) 

June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date] 

District's proportionate share 
of the pension liability 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. 

1% Decrease 
6.00% 

$ 4,175,951 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

7.0Q% 

$ 3,317,319 

1 % Increase 
8.00% 

$ 2,588,746 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position Is avallable in the separately 
issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) or 
by visiting their website at www.state.nLus/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices.shtml. 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) 

Data for the TPAF was abstracted from the State of New Jersey Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by 
Employer and Nonemployer as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Reports 
dated June 11, 2021 and June 1 o, 2020. 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these looal participating employers are 
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State Is 
treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute 
directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or 
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. 
However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the 
portion of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability 
that is associated with the local participating employer. 

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District recognized at June 
30, 2021 (measurement date of June 30, 2020) was as follows: 

Net Pension Liability: 
District's proportionate share None 
State's proportionate share associated with the District $ 84,252,393 

$ 84,252,393 
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9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAFl (Continued) 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The net 
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's long-term share 
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school 
districts and the State, actuarially determined. The proportion of the TPAF net pension liability 
associated with the District is as follows: 

June 30, [Measurement Date] 

District Proportionate Share 0.1279482654 % 0.1311757516 % 

Difference - Increase (0.0032274862) 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue of 
$5,239, 173 for contributions provided by the State. 

Actuarial Assumgtions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation Rate: 
Price 
Wage 

Salary Increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

2.75% 
3.25% 

1.55% - 4.45% (based on year of service) 
2.75% - 5.65% (based on year of service) 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income 
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and 
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement 
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree 
mortality table with a 114. 7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future 
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Dlsabillty mortality rates were 
based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for 
males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 201 o 
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018. 
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAFl (Continued} 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the 
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2020 (measurement date) are summarized in the table as follows: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

U.S. Equity 27.00 % 7.71 % 
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50 8.57 
Emerging Market Equity 5.50 10.23 
Private Equity 13.00 11.42 
Real Assets 3.00 9.73 
Real Estate 8.00 9.56 
High Yield 2.00 5.95 
Private Credit 8.00 7.59 
Investment Grade Credit 8.00 2.67 
Cash Equivalents 4.00 0,50 
U.S. Treasuries 5.00 1.94 
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00 3.40 

100.00 % 
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.40% as of June 30, 2020. This 
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 2.21% as of June 30, 2020, based on the Bond 
Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of ANAa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on 78% of the actuarially 
determined contributions for the state. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members 
through 2062. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
projected benefit payments through 2062, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected 
benefit payments after that date In determining the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 
as of June 30, 2021 (measurement date June 30, 2020) calculated using the discount rate as 
disclosed above as well as what the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated 
with the District would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 
1-percentgae-point higher than the current rate: 

State's proportionate share of the net 
pension associated with the District 

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position 

1% Decrease 

~ 

$ 98,996,632 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

~ 

At 
1% Increase 

6.40% 

$ 84,252,393 $ 72,009,777 

Detailed Information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
Issued TPAF financial report. 

Collective balances of the Local Group are as follows: 

June 30, 
2020 2019 

Collective deferred outflows of resources 

Collective deferred inflows of resources 

Collective net pension liability 

$ 9,589,140,982 $ 10,077,460,797 

17,525,379, 167 
61,370,943,870 

3,642,191,152 

0.1311757516 % 
Collective pension expenses 

District's proportion (of Local Group) 
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14,409,361 ,877 
65,848,796,740 

4, 114,319,534 
0.1279482654 % 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR END.ED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Data for the IPAF was abstracted from the State of New Jersey Local Education Retired Employees 
Plan as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 Independent Auditor's Report dated January 21 , 2022 
and December 8, 2020, respectively. 

The State provides post-retirement medical (PRM) benefits for certain State and other retired 
employees meeting the service credit eligibility requirements. In fiscal year 2020 the State paid PRM 
benefits for 143,053 State and local retirees. 

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a "pay-as-you-go" basis, which means that the 
State does not pre-fund or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM 
expenses that the State may incur in future years. For fiscal year 2020 the State contributed $1 .5788 
billion to pay tor pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State's pay-as­
you-go contributions have remained consistent with fiscal year 2019 amounts. Reductions are 
attributable to various cost savings initiatives implemented by the State, including new Medicare 
Advantage contracts. The State has appropriated $1 .775 billion in fiscal year 2021 as the State's 
contribution to fund pay-as-you-go PRM costs. 

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, the State is required to qualify and disclose its 
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. The new 
standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, effective for fiscal year 2018. 
The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language names the 
State as the legal obliger for benefit payments. For fiscal year 2020 the total OPES liability for the 
State is $65.5 billion, a decrease of $10.5 billion or 13.8 percent from the re-measured total OPEB 
liability in fiscal year 2019. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes 
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. Seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the 
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASS No. 75. 

At June 30, 2019 the following employees (statewide) were covered by the benefit terms: 

Active Plan Members 
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries currently Receiving Benefits 
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Not Yet Receiving Benefits 

Total Plan Members 

- 76 -

216,804 
149,304 

None 

366,108 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPl:B) (CONTINUED) 

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF Medical (Paid on-behalf of the District) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2021 
2020 
2019 

Post-Retirement Medical 

$ 1,270,721.00 
1,059,783.00 
1,194,739.00 

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make 
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District's 
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASB No. 
75 is zero percent. 

The District is required to record in their financial statements, as an expense and corresponding 
revenue, their respective amount of total OPEB expense attributable to the State of New Jersey 
under the special funding situation. Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the 
collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The following OPES liability note 
information is reported at the State's level and Is not specific to the board of education/board of 
trustees. Note that actual numbers will be published In the NJ State's ACFR: 
(httRs://www.nj.gov/treasury/omb/fr.shtml). 

The portion of the TPAF OPEB Liability that was associated with the District recognized at June 30, 
2021 was as follows: 

Net OPEB Liability: 
District's proportionate share None 
State's proportionate share associated with the District $ 80,948,524 

$ 80,948,524 

The proportion of the PERS and TPAF Net OPES Liability associated with the District's liability Is as 
follows: 

June 30, [Measurement Date) 
20~0 2019 

0. 1193755620 % 0.1198334080 % 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO .FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Total None111ployer OPES Liability 

The total nonemployer OPES liability as of June 30, 2020 [measurement date] was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The actuarial 
assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. 
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the 
measurement: 

Salary increases: 
through 2026 

Thereafter 

TPAF/ABP 
(based on service years) 

1.55 - 4.45% 

1.55 -4.45% 

PERS 
(based on service years) 

2.00- 6.00% 

3.00 - 7.00% 

Preretlrement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP), 
"General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully 
generational mortality Improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. 
Postretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 "General'' classification headcount­
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality Improvement projections from the central 
year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 ''General" classification 
headcount-weighted disabled mortality tale with fully generational mortality improvement projections 
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018, July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2018, and 
July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF and PERS, respectively. 

100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to continue with that 
coverage, 100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement, having 
a coverage blend of 85% and 15% in PPO and HMO, respectively. 

Health Care Trend Assumptions 

For pre~Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term 
trend rate after seven (7) years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare 
Advantage trend rate for fiscal years 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical 
trend Is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate Is 7.0% and 
decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven (7) years. For the Medicare Part B 
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The discount rate utilized was 3.87% for June 30, 2018 and 
3.50% as for June 30, 2019. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
N<;>TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as 
chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which 
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 
As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the 
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate. 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPES Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 
30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total 
nonemployer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date] 
At 1 % At Discount 

Decrease (1 .21%) Rate (2 .21%) 

$ 97,587,624 $ 80,948,524 $ 

At 1% 
Increase (3.21%) 

67,938,350 

Sensitivity of Total Nooemployer OPES Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB associated with the District liability as of June 
30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total 
nonemployer OPEB liability would be If It was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-
percentage point rower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2020 {Measurement Date] 
Healthcare Cost 

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase 

$ 65,344,378 $ 80,948,524 $ 99,529,593 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPES Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate 
(Continued) 

Shown below are details regarding the Total OPEB Liability for the measurement period from June 
30, 2019 to June 30, 2020: 

Balance as of June 30, 2019 [Measurement Date] 
Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year: 

Service Cost 
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 
Difference between Expected and Actual Expenditure 
Changes of Assumptions 
Gross Benefit Payments 
Contributions from the Member 

Net Changes 

Balance as of June 30, 2020 [Measurement Date] 

Total OPEB Liability 

$ 50,005,380 

$ 2,105,105 

$ 

1,800,158 
13,617,900 
14,786,514 
(1,409,247) 

42,714 

30,943,144 

$ 80,948,524 ========= 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.50% as of June 
30, 2019 to 2.21% as of June 30, 2020. 

The components of the Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Net OPEB Liability 
Net Position as a Percentage of OPEB Liability 
OPES Expense 
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[Measurement Date] 
June 30, 2020 

$ 80,948,524 
None 

$ 80,948,524 
0.0% 

$ 3,993,138 



SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 301 2021 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

OPES Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPES 

For the year ended June 301 2021 1 the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $3,993, 138 
determined by the State as the total OPES liability for benefits provided through a defined benefit 
OPES plan that Is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASS No. 
75 and In which there is a special funding situation. 

In accordance with GASB No. 75, the District proportionate share of school retirees OPES is zero, 
there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2020, the State reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employee's OPES from the following 
sources: 

The following table illustrates the Deferred Inflows and Outflows as of June 30, 2020 under GASB No. 
75 prior to any reduction due to the Fiscal Year 2021 amortizations. 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

Changes of Assumptions 13,769,077 $ 9,236,685 
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 12,290,095 10,947,579 
Changes in Proportion $ 114931231 111031615 

Sub-total 27,552,403 21,287,879 
Contributions made in Fiscal Year Ending 2021 

After June 30, 2020 Measurement Date None None 

Total $ 27,552,403 $ 21,2871879 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

10. OTHER POST~EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB <Continued) 

Amount recognized in the deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in the OPEB expense/(revenue) as follows: 

Measurement Period Ending June 30, 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Total Thereafter 

Addltlonal Information 

$ 51,857 
51,857 
51,857 
51,857 
51,857 

5,615,622 

Collective balances of the Local Education Group are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Net OPEB liability 

OPEB Expense 

$ 24,023,298,802 
19, 101,933,244 
67,809,962,608 

3,337, 755,596 

June 30, 

$ 1,921,145,183 
20,887,639,826 
41.729,081 ,045 

1,015,664,874 

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit 
obligations that are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are 
the responsibility of the individual local education employers. 

11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The District offers Its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the 
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts 
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are AXA Equitable and Met Life. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

12. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Property and Llabllity Insurance: The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for 
property, l!abllity and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the 
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance: The District has elected to fund its New 
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under 
this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits 
paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly 
for amounts due to the State. 

Health Benefits: The Board of Education has procured medical insurance coverage for Its 
employees und1~fr-·a monthly per employee premium (traditional plan) . 

Other Coverage: The Board has contracted with a commercial insurance company to provide 
coverage for various losses. The coverages are subject to various deductibles and coverage limits 
based on the type of policy coverage included. The coverages and Its l!mits are detailed in the 
statistical section. The Board also maintains surety bond coverage on key financial employees. 

13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

There was no intertund balance remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2021. 

14. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 

General Fund - Of the $5,591,388.37 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2021 , $927,354.22 is 
restricted for Capital Reserve; $1,593, 193.29 is restricted - excess surplus - designated for 
subsequent years expenditures, $8,515.52 is assigned-designated (FFCRNSEMI) for subsequent 
year's expenditures, $372,957.00 is restricted for maintenance reserve, $194,076.36 is restricted for 
unemployment compensation, and $2, 300,455.18 is reserved for excess surplus. 

Special Revenue Fund - Of the $178,889.01 Special Revenue Fund fund balance, $23,684.84 is 
restricted for scholarships and $155,204.17 is restricted for student activities. 

Capital Projects Fund - Of the $3,288.98 Capital Projects Fund balance at June 30, 2021, all is 
restricted for capital projects. 

Debt Service Fund - Of the $9,019.19 Debt Service Fund balance at June 30, 2021, all is restricted 
for debt service. 

- 83 -



SOUTH RIVER_ BOROUGH S(::H_QOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

15. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS - BUDGETARY BASIS 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7 as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance ~ 
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational 
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve 
General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required 
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. There was excess 
fund balance as a result of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 of $1,593, 193.29 and as a result of 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 of $2,300,455. 18. 

16. RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND 

The surpluses are presented on a GAAP basis and reconciliation to the budget basis is as follows: 

Balance on a Budget Basis on the General Fund 
Budgetary Basis Comparison 

Less: 
Allocation of State Aid Payment of $1,553,767.00 
not Recognized on GAAP Basis 

Balances on a GAAP Basis on the Governmental 
Fund Balance Sheet 

17. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Unassigned 

$ 1,748,603.80 

1,553, 767 .00 

$ 194,836.80 
==;;;;;;i;;;;;== 

The District had no deficit fund balance in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2021 as reported 
in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a 
state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the 
last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The 
bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. 
For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, 
expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the 
other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two (2) state aid 
payments In the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last state aid 
payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the 
timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the Special Revenue Fund balance deficit 
does not alone Indicate that the district Is facing financial difficulties. 

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that 
is reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is 
not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. 
There is no deficit in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2021 due to the fact that the 
expenditures did not exceed the recognizable revenue (under GAAP). In fact Unearned Revenue 
was credited in the amount of $98,388.52. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A. Grant Programs - The school district participates In state and federally assisted grant programs. 
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the granters or their 
representatives. The school district Is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed 
pursuant to the terms of those grant programs. Management Is not aware of any material items 
of noncompliance which would result In the disallowance of program expenditures. 

B. Pending Litigation - As of the date of this report, in the opinion of the Board Attorney and 
management, there was no litigation pending of which, in the event of an adverse or unfavorable 
outcome, would materially impair the financial position of the District. 

c. C()nJra,ctu<1I Commitments -The District has no contractual commitments at June 30, 2021 . 

19. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A 
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the District's 
programs and activities. 

20. NET POSITION- Nl!T INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Net Investment In capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced 
by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. The net 
Investment in capital assets of $28,539,291.22 is calculated as follows: 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 

Bonds payable (used to build or acquire capital assets) 

Deferred loss on defeasance of debt 

Unamortized deferred premium 

21. TAX ABATEMENTS 

$ 

Amount 

Governmental 

33,868,981 .26 

(5, 113,000.00) 

133,548.67 

(350,238.71) 

$ 28,539,291.22 
========== 

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS), a tax abatement is an 
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to 
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that 
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. However, 
the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement 
agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or 
municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the 
school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that 
amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school 
district. 
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SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {_CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202.1 

21. TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise 
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A.18A:7F-5(b), the loss of 
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is 
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the 
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth. 

The Borough of South River provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey 
State Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property 
taxes can and are abated. The exemptions provided by the Borough of South River are for two (2) 
senior citizen housing projects and religious entities. Taxes abated include municipal, local school 
and county taxes. 

The Borough of South River recognized revenue of $79,227 from the ahnual seNice charge in lieu of 
payment of taxes in 2021 and taxes in 2021 that otherwise would have been due on these long-term 
tax exemptions amounted to $243,682 based upon the assessed valuation of the long-term tax 
exemption properties. A portion of the $164,455 tax abatement would have been allocated to the 
District. 

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENT: COVID-19 CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC 

The COVID-19 Coronavirus outbreak in the United States has caused the Governor of the State of 
New Jersey to mandate closures and a curfew for all nonessential citizens and businesses. The 
management of the District (which is essential) has evaluated the impact of the situation and has 
determined that overall there is no adverse impact on its June 30, 2021 financial statements 
(audited) . Financial impact for year ending June 30, 2022 is uncertain at this time. A significant 
portion of the revenue to support the District operations is state aid and taxation; however, the 
outcome is uncertain at this time. It is not known at this time if there are any federal or state funds 
available for impact relief. 

23. PRIOR PERIOD ~ADJUSTMENT - GASB No. 84 

The District implemented GASS No. 84 related to former Fiduciary Funds accounting being 
reclassified into the Governmental Funds. The reasoning related to the fact that the District has 
control of the funds and as such, are more properly reflected in the Governmental Funds. The 
reclassification was reflected as a prior period adjustment to the Governmental Funds (basic financial 
statements B-2) and the Statement of Activities (A-2), effective July 1, 2020, and no retroactive 
restatement of financial statements were done since financial statements are not comparative. The 
reclassification involved liabilities and fund balance with no adverse impact on the financial position of 
the District. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- PART II 



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 



Exhibit C-1 
BOARD OF EDUCATION Sheet 1 or11 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNlY OF MIDDLESEX 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR 11-tE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J UNE. 30, 20 21 

Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Transfers .!!Y!!9fil Actual Final to Actual 

REVENUES: 
Local sources: 
Local tax levy s 16,320,436.00 s 16,820.436.00 s 16,820,436.00 
Mis.celtaneous - Restricied 25,995.98 $ 25.995.98 
MisceOaneous - Unrestricted 30,000.00 30.000.00 652,091.74 622..091.74 

Total - local sources 16.850.436.00 16,850,436.00 17 .496,523. 72 648.087.72 

State souroes: 
Categorical Transportation Aicl 502,.357.00 ~2,,357.00 502,357.00 
Categorical Special Eclucafion Aid 1.910,696.00 1,910,698.00 1, 910,698.00 
EqualizaJioo Aid 14.090, 100,00 $ (1,407 ,357.00) 12,682, 7 43.00 12,682,743.00 
Categorical Security Aid 645,142.00 645,142.00 645,142..00 
Extraon:inaiy Aid 422,011.00 422,01 1.00 

Q:) 
Non-pubfic transportatioo aid 34,510.00 34,510.00 

-..:I TPAF - on behalf or pension contribution (on behialr - non budgeted} 4,054 ,83.2.00 4,054,832.00 
TPAF - on behalf of post reti'ement medical (on-behalf - non buctgeted) 1,270,721.00 1,270,721.00 
TPAF - on behalf or long-term disability (on-behalf - non budgeted) 2,757.00 2,,757.00 
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-budgeted) 1.198,346.56 1, 198.346.56 

Total - state sources 17,14a.297.00 !1.407,357.00) 15,740,940.00 22,724.117.56 6,983.177.56 

Federal sources: 
Medical Assistance Pfogram 93,172.00 93,172.00 93,172.00 
FFCRAJSEMI 8,515.52 8,51 5.52 

Total - federal sources 93.172.00 93,172.00 101,687.52 8 515.52 

Total revenues $ 34,091. 905.00 $ (1.407, 357 .00) s 32,684.548.00 $ 40,324,328.80 s 7,639,780.SO 



EXP END ITU RES: 
CURRENT EXPENSE: 

Regular programs - instruclion: 
Salaries of teachl!l'S: 

Kindergarten 
Grades 1 - 5 
Grades 6- 8 
Grades 9-12 

Total Regular Programs - Instruction 

Home inS1Juciion: 
Salaries orteachers 
Purchased professional - education sl!f\lic.es . 

CD 
T otal home instruction O> 

Regular programs - undisbibuled instruction: 
Purchased professional - educalional services 
Purchased technical se.Moes 
Olher purchased services (40C>-500 series) 
General supplies 
Textbooks 
Other objects. 

Total regular pmgrams - undistributed instruction 

Total regular programs 

Special education insbuction: 
Leamlng andf-0r langu~e disabili1ies: 
Salaries of teachefS 
PL1Jcflased profess.ional educational services 
General supples 

T otal learning and/or language disabilities 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL. DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

$ 

Original 
Budge1 

SSB,400.00 
2.814,950.00 
2.252,288.00 
3.161,520.00 

8.587.158.00 

15,000.00 
10,000.00 

25.000.00 

9,274.00 
137,765.00 
376.362.00 

650.00 

524.051.00 

9 ,136.209.00 

119,500.00 
43,913.0Q 

526.0Q 

163.939.00 

$ 

Budget 

~ 

(27 ,700.00) 
(69,800.00) 

(150,980.96) 
pso.111 .76) 

~408,652. 72) 

536,000.00 
(1 ,620.00) 
(9.829.82) 

(5Q,893.64) 
4 .0~.00· 

4n.112.54 

69.059.82 

{5Q,899.50} 

(50.699. 50} 

s 

Final 
Budget 

330.700.00 
2.,745,150.00 
2., 101,307.04 
3.001 ,348.24 

8, 178,500.28 

15.<J00.00 
10.000.00 

25.000.00 

536,000.00 
7.654.00 

127,935.18 
325.468.36 

4.0"...6.00 
65-0.00 

1,001.763.54 

9.205.268.82 

68.600.50 
43.913.00 

526.00 

113,Ct39.50 

s 

Actual 

330,700.00 
2,704,363.35 s 
2,006,8tl6.26 
2, 987 ,541.28 

__ 8,029,410.89 

3.395.00 
7,787.50 

11,182.50 

535,922.00 
700.00 

99,233. 10 
245,994.96 

4,056.00 

885,906.06 

8,926,499.45 

54,869.38 
34,358.68 

432.81 

a.9,660.87 
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Variance 
Final lo Ac1ua1 

40.786.65 
94.500.78 
13.806.96 

149.094.39 

11,605.00 
2.212.50 

13.817.50 

78.00 
6.954.00 

28.702.08 
79,473.40 

650.00 

115.857.48 

278.769.37 

13,731 .12 
9.554.32 

93.19 

23.37.6.63 



EXPENDITURES {CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

Multiple Disabilities: 
Salaries of leachers 
Purchased professional educational services 
General Suppies 

To1al Mvffiple Disabilities 

Resocsce roomlresource oentef; 
Salaries of teachers 
Purchased professional - educational services 
General supplies 

co Total resource roomrresource center 
co 

Autism: 
Salaries of teachers 

Purchased professional educational services 
General Supplies 

Total Alrlism 

Preschool clisabi!ilies - ru1r-11me: 
Salaries of teachers 
Purchased professional educational services 
General supplies 

Total preschool disabilities 

Total special educalion - ins.tructlon 

Basic skills/remedial: 
Salaries of teachers 

Total ba.siC skills/remedial 

Bi lingual educalion: 
Salaries or leachers 

Total bilingual education 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL OISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHED ULE 
FOR THE FlSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2.021 

s 

Original 

~ 

271,150.00 
2.22,453.00 

3,652.00 

497.255.00 

2.571,040.00 
552,377.00 

44.575.00 

3.167.992.00 

69,800.00 
87,826.00 

913.00 

158,539.00 

140,700.00 
154,273.00 

1,500.00 

296.473.00 

4.284.198.00 

272.650.00 

272.65().00 

701,55().00 

7()1,55().00 

s 

Budget 
Transfers 

(8,423.38) 

!8.423.38) 

9,606.00 

j18,971 .51) 

(9.365.51) 

1,800.00 

1.800.00 

(6,235.00) 

j6.235.00l 

Q:3, 123.39l 

{56.431.25) 

{56.431.251 

s 

Final 
Budqe.t 

262,72£.62 
222.453.0 0 

3,652.0() 

488.631 .62 

2.580,646.00 
552.3n.OG 

25.603.49 

3,158.£26.49 

71.600.00 
87,826.00 

913.00 

160.339.00 

134,465.00 
154.273.00 

1.500.00 

290,238.00 

4 .211 074.61 

216218.75 

216,218.75 

701.550.00 

701 .550.00 

s 

Actual 

210,200.00 s 
193,706.42 

1,164.27 

4()5,07().69 

2,580,376.75 
526,077 .G2 

15,36().36 

3.121 ,814.13 

52,807.50 
50,228.96 

442..74 

103,479.2() 

133,879.0() 
81 ,011 .97 

987.97 

215.878.94 

3,935.903.83 

215,916.0() 

215,916.0() 

626.251.76 

626,251 .76 
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Variance 
Fmal to Actual 

52,526.62 
28,746.58 

2.487.73 

83.760.93 

269.25 
26.299.98 
1G.243.13 

36,812.36 

18.792.50 
37,597.04 

470.26 

56 .. 859.80 

586.00 
73.251.03 

512.03 

74.359.06 

275.170.78 

3()2.75 

3()2.75 

75.298.24 

75.298.24 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

School sponso.red cofextracurriculas adli~ i ~es: 

Salaries 
Purchased services {300..500 series) 
Suppies and materials 
Other objects 

Total school sponsored colextraculicular activities 

School sponsored athletic activities: 
Salaries 
Purchased services {300-500 series) 
Suppfles and materials 

l.O 
Otner objects 

0 
Total school sponsored athl~c activities 

Alternate programs: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of T eac:hers 
General Supplies 
F>rogram Support Salaries 

Total alternative programs 

Total lnstruclianal programs 

BOARO OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL OISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
GENERAL FUNO 

BUOGETARY COMPARISON SCHEOULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EN:OEO JUNE 30, 2021 

$ 

Original 

~ 

87,743.00 
12,176.00 
8 ,000.00 

780.00 

108.699.00 

432,016.00 
22,749.00 
33,380.00 
78,787.00 

566.932.00 

19,075.00 
4,.600.00 

15,750.00 

39.425.00 

15.109.663.00 

$ 

Budget 
Transfers 

(10,24-0.00} 
2.350.00 

iz.890.00) 

(1.2.00.00) 

9J.'3.10 
(15.037 .46) 

(15.304.36) 

(83.689.18) 

s 

Final 

!!Y.!!9!tl 

77,503.00 
14,526.00 

8,000.00 
780.00 

100.809.00 

4'30,816.00 
22,749.00 
34,313.10 
63.749.54 

551.627.64 

19,075.00 
4,600.00 

15,750.00 

'39.425.00 

15.025.97'3.82 

s 

Actual 

67,545.33 $ 
12,2.CIO.OO 

2,nz.90 

82,468.23 

430,814.72 
18,373.97 
34,251.93 
49,038.45 

532,479.07 

8,968.75 
2. 100.00 
5.808.75 

1s .sn.50 

14,336.195.84 
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Variance 
Fin.al to Actual 

9.957.67 
2.326.00 
5.277.10 

780.00 

18.340.77 

1.28 
4,375.03 

61.17 
14.711.09 

19.148.57 

10,106.25 
2,500.00 

10.141.25 

22.747.50 

689.777.98 



EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

UndistnlJuted expenditures: 
Instruction: 
Tuition to other LEAs within the state - regular 
Tuition to other LEAs within the state - special 
Tuition to CSSD and regufarday schools 
Tuition l.o private schools-disabled v.ithin tile S1ate 
Tuition State Facilities 
TuiUon - ottler 

Total undistributed expenditures - instruction 

Attendance and social work: 

w Salaries 
...... Purchased professional and technical services 

To1al attendance and social work 

Heallll services: 
Salaries 
Purchased professional and ledloical services 
S(Jpprtes and materials 

Tctal health services 

Othef' support services - student-related services: 
Salaries 
Purchased professional - educational services 
Supplies and materiaJs 

Total other support services - s1udeot-relaled services 

Other support services - student-extra. ordinary services: 
Purchased professional - edUcational seivioes 

Tolal olher support seMc:es - s1udent-ex1ra sefVioes 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30., 2021 

$ 

Or1ginal 
~ 

55,000.00 
36,486.00 

656,326.00 
39,872..00 

787.684.00 

29,572:.00 
1,200.00 

30,772..00 

217,068.00 
45,175.00 

3,431 .00 

266,674.00 

517,511.00 
54,342:.00 
6,346.00 

578,199.00 

554,580.00 

554.580.00 

$ 

Budge! 
Transfers 

24,701.00 
6,320.12 

120,514.24 
(193,736.91) 

~901.55 

{16,300.00} 

493.99 

493.99 

66,625.50 
(1,547.00) 

66,073.50 

~39.378.50) 

(39,378.50) 

s 

Final 
Budget 

24,701.00 
61,320.12 

157,000.24 
462,589.09 
39,872.00 
25,90 t .55 

771 ,384.00 

29,572.00 
1,200.00 

30.772.00 

217,068.00 
45,175.00 
3,924.99 

26S, 167 .99 

584, 136.50 
52,795.00 
6,346.00 

64'.3,277.50 

515.201 .50 

515,201 .50 

s 

~ 

24,701.00 
59,520.00 

157,000.24 
359,954.23 

39,872.00 
25,901.55 

666.949.02 

29,572.00 
1,071.56 

30.643.56 

204,366.88 
36.e45.64 

2:.035.85 

243.348.37 

547.421.50 
44.850.50 

5.510.90 

597.782.90 

234.958.54 

234.958.54 

s 
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Variance 
Final to Actual 

1,800.12 

102,634.86 

104,434.98 

128.44 

12a44 

12,701.12 
8,22!}.36 
1.889.14 

22.819.62 

36,715.00 
7,944.50 

835.10 

45,494.60 

280.242:.96 

280.242.96 



Exhibit C-1 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RJVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MlDDLESEX 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202:1 

Original Budget Flllal Variance 
~ Transfers ~ Ac1ual Final to Actual 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED}: 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED}: 
'Undistributed expenditures (continued): 

Other support seMc:es • students - regular. 
Salaries of o1her professional staff s 549,173.00 $ 1,700.00 s 550,873.00 $ 541,300.20 s 9,572.80 
Salaries or seaetarial and clerical assislants 123,705.00 (19,888.06} 103,816.94 85,.236.46 18,580.48 
Olher JMCllased seivioes (40Q..SOO series) 512.00 512..00 512.00 
Supplies and materials 8,579.00 8,579.00 6 ,982.78 i ,596.22 
Olher objects 7.520.00 7 ,520_00 5.512.00 2008.00 

Total other support services -students - regular 689.481l.0(} ~18, 188 .06~ 671,300.94 639.543.44 3\.757.50 

Other support s!!Mces - students • special: 
Salaries of other professional staff 681 ,585.00 18,660.55 700,245.55 6.91,644 .23 8,601 .32 

I Salaries of seaetarial and clerical assistants 103,.22:9.00 103,229.00 101,696.88 1,532.12 
tO Purchased proress.ional - educalional services 3.90,725.00 (156,260. 55) 234,464..45 201l, 5D9.63 25.954.82 I'\.) 

Other Purchased Services (4{)()..500 Series} 1,587.00 1,587.0() '1,587.0() 
Supplies and materials 11.829.00 (1,000.•0()) 10,829.{)0 9,232.10 1,596.90 
Other objects 1,150.00 1.150.{)0 124.71 1 ,025.29 

Total other support services • students - special 1.190.105.00 (1 38.600.00} 1.051 .505.00 1.011,207.55 40.297.45 

Improvement of instructional seNices: 
Sararies. of supervisors of inslruction 3.06.7 44.00 (60,000.0D} 246.744.00 243,355.05 3,388.95 
Salaries of other professional staff 85,.23.8.00 (13,706.0D} 71 ,532.00 63, 137.00 8,395.00 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 19,935.00 19,935.0(} 19,935.00 
Purchased professional - educational services 283,366.00 (283.366.00} 
Supplies and materials 4,009.00 5.000.00 9.009.00 7, 101.28 1.907.72 

Total improvement of instructional services 699.292.00 (352.072.00) 3.4 7.2"'.dl.00 333,528.33 13.691 .67 

Educational media/school library: 
Salaries 117,600.00 944.25 118,544.25 118,544.25 
Purchased professional and technical services 514.00 514.00 514.00 
Supplies and materials 9.061.00 (862.50) 8.198.50 6,114.58 2.063.92 

Total educational medialschool library 127.175.00 8 1.75 127 .25-6. 75 124,658.83 2,.597.92 

lnslruclional s1aff training services: 
Purchased prof'essional - educalional services 13,000.00 7,690.00 2D,690.00 11 ,243.54 9,446.46 
Other purchased seivices (40().500 series) 40,.210.00 (27,840.00) 12.370.00 4,415.40 7,954.60 
Supplies and materials 3,150.00 3,150.00 1,999.20 1.150.80 

Total instruciional staff training selVices 56,360.00 (20, 150.00) 36,.210.00 17,658.14 18.551.&6 
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BOROUGH OE SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRK:T 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

GENERAL. FUND 
BUOGET~RY COMP.ARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Adual 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

Undis1ributed expenditures (conlinued}: 
Support services - general admlnis11ation: 

Salaries $ 300,482.00 $ 354.00 s 300,836.00 s 300,713.28 s 122.72 
Legal services 42,000.00 42,000.00 32,750.00 9.250.00 
Audit fees 40,000.00 40,000.00 39,750.00 250.00 
AlchitecturallEnginel!I' Services 12,000.00 30,800.00 42,800.00 42,800.00 
Other purchased professional services 16,500.00 16,500.00 16,000.00 500.00 
Cornmunicaoonsltelephone 90,000.00 90,000.00 87,214 52 2.785.48 
ROE olher purchased senrices 6,000.00 6,000.00 450.00 5.55-0.00 
01her purchased setVices (400-SOO series) 54,400.00 (31 , 154.00) 23,.246.00 15,552-96 7,693.04 
Supplies and materials 8,000.00 20.000.00 28,000.00 24,571.52 3,42.8.48 
Judgments a!Jaln.sl the school district 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 

1 
Miscellaneous expenditures 8,000.00 8,000.00 3,451.12. 4,548.88 <O 

w ROE membership dues and fees 17,000.00 17,000.00 12,516.60 4.483.40 

Total support sefVioes - general administration 602.382.00 20,000.00 622.382.00 575.no.oo 46.612.00 

Support seMc:es - school admlnis1ration: 
Salaries of principals/assistant principals 1,078, 094.00 (25,000.00) 1.053.0!M.OO 1,052,978.91 115.09 
Salaiies or secretarial and clerical assi!>lallts 346,..253.00 (28,878.97) 317.574.03 31:6,735.25 838.78 
Purchased professional and technical seivices 15,540.00 15.540.00 15,540.00 
Other purchased seniioes (400-SOO series) 5,51 0.00 5.510.00 250.00 5,2.60.00 
Supplies and malerials 19,210.00 5,512.03 25.822.03 17,267.55 8.554.38 
Other objects 250.00 2.50.00 2.50,00 

Tolal support seNices - school adminis1ration 1.<149,317.00 p1.526.94) __ f,41i.790.06 1.402.771.81 15.018.25 

Central services: 
Salaries 407,343.00 407.343.00 396, 920.95 10,422.05 
Purchased Technical Services 71 ,000.00 (10,232.62} 60.767.38 49,733.97 11,033.41 
Miscellaneous purchased services (400-SOO series) 5,.200.00 5,200.00 1,402.SC 3,797.50 
Suppli.es and mal.erials 12,500.00 10.232.62 22.732.62. 22,263.12 469.50 
Other objects 1.000.00 1.000.00 448.75 551.25 

Total oentral seMc:es 497.043.00 497.043.00 470,769.29 25,273.71 
Administration information technology: 

Salaries 202.418.00 2.402.56 204,820.56 204,820.56 
Othl!I' purchased services (400-500 series) 10.200.00 (100.00} 10.100.00 8,063.75 2,036.25 
Supplies and materials 11,042.00 140.00 11.18200 2,686.34 8,495.66 

T olat adminislration information tedmoklgy 223.650.00 2.442.55 225.102.55 215,570.65 10,531.91 

Total central seNices aoo adminis1ration inr0tmation technology 720.7()3,00 2,442.55 7.23.145.55 6&6,339.94 35.605.62 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIODLESE2!; 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR TI-lE FISCAL. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

Original Budgel Final Variance 
Budget Transfers BuOOel Aclual Final to Actual 

EXPENDITURES {CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 
Undistributed expenditures (continued): 

Required maintenance ror school facilities: 
Sa lanes s 430.695.00 s (19,3n.OO) s 411 ,318.00 s 407,101.13 $ 4.216.87 
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services 396.020.00 172.179.01 568,199.01 500,001.46 68.197.55 
General supplies 137.995.00 122,000.00 259,995.00 231,937.75 28,057.25 
Ottler oti;ects 8.500.00 937.58 9.437.58 9,437.58 

Totll requlred malntenan.re ror school facililies 973.210.00 275,739.59 1 ,24BJ~49 .59 1.148.477.92 100.471.67 

Other operation and maintenance of plant 
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides 135.288.00 (12.200.70) 123,087.30 100,737.04 22.350.26 
Salaries - Other 11.925.00 2.640.00 14,565.00 8, 138~00 6.427.00 
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services 8.51 , 193.00 (22,930.81) 826,262.19 827,271.44 990.75 

<D Purchased professional and technical services 13,607.00 (13,007 .00) 600.00 200.00 400.00 .:... 
Rental or land & Bld\g. Other than Lease Purc hase Agreement 1,000.00 4,250.00 5,250.00 5,138.20 1\ 1.80 
Other purchased property services 497,062.00 (85,704.(10) 411,358.00 378,681:76 32,676.2-~ 

Insurance 221,000.00 221,000.00 214,049.98 6.950.02 
Miscellaneous purdlased services 2,000.00 2.000.00 432.50 1.567.50 
Energy (Natural Gas) 184,000.00 184.000.00 184,000.00 
Energy (Gaso6ne) 4,700.00 4,700.00 4,325.20 374.80 
Energy (Electricity} 1.128.000.00 1.126.000. O(} 742,670.87 385.329.13 

Total operation a nd maintenance or plant 3.049.775.00 (126.952. 51 } 2.922.822.49 2.465,644.99 457.177.50 

Care and up 'keep of grounds 
Cleaning, rep<W and mmtenanc:e services 31,700.00 11,755.12 43_-455.12 43,068.86 386.26 
General Supplies 20,000.00 !6.C>85.12) 11.91.4.88 7,492.91 4.421.97 

Total Care and upkeep or grounds 51.700.00 3.670.00 55.370.00 50,561.77 4.808.23 

Security 
Professional & Technical Services 108.000.00 108.000.00 108,000.00 

Tola.I Security 108.000.00 108.000.00 100,00(}.00 

To1al 01her operation and maintenance or plant 4.182.68.5.00 152.457.08 4 ,335.142.0B 3,772,084.66 562.457.40 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SC1-IOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MLDOLESEX 

GENERAL. FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARfSON SCHEDULE. 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Budget Final Variance 

~ Transfers ~ Actual FinalloAclJ.Jal 

EXPENDITIJRES (CONTINUED): 
CURRENT EXPENSE (CONTINUED): 

Undlstribulecl expenditures {oonlinuecl): 
Student transportalioo seMc:es: 
Management Fee - ESc & CTSA Trans. Program s 50,000_00 $ 50,000_00 $ 30,869.75 s 19,130.25 
Contracted services - aide in lieY payments - nonpublic schools 63,000_00 s 56,800_()() 119,800_00 116,136.85 3,66115 
Conlracied services- aide in lieY payments - charter schools 47,000.00 (4,800JJO) 42,200.00 22, 186.90 20,013.10 
Contracted seMc:es (between home and school) - vendors 338,742.00 (90,557.10) 248,184.90 121,248.84 126,936.06 
Contracted sel\llces (o1her than between home and school) - vendors 178,360.00 178,360.00 100,093.49 78,266.5\ 
C'<lnlraded services (between home and sehool) - joint agreements 29,rno.oo 29,100_00 1,000.00 28.100.00 
Contracted senrices {special ·educatlon students) - joint agreements 45,240.00 45,240.00 45,240.00 
COntraded SeMces (special education students} - ESC and CTSA 1,003,210.00 Q'..345.QQl 995.865_00 715.370.81 280,494.19 

Total s1udent transportation 1,754.652.00 (45,902..10) , • 708, 7 49_90 f, 106.906.64 601,843.26 

' co Unallocated benefits.. employee bene1ils: "1 
Social security oontribuUoo 345,000.00 {100, 715.19) 235,284..81 219,651.03 15,633.78 
Other retirement contn'butions - regular 295.000.00 (:W,000.00) 275,000.00 225,898.59 49,101.41 
Unemployment oompensalioo 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 
Workmen's oompensaUoo 210,000.00 210.000_00 164,489.86 45,510.14 
Health benefils 5,446.000.00 (588,578.63) 4,857,421 .37 4,571,606.48 285,814.89 
Tuition reimbursemait 20.000.00 1,3Q5.19 21,305.19 21,305.19 (0.00} 
Other employee benefits 71 ,000.0(} 267,874.63 336,674_63 310.240.80 26,633.83 

Total unallocated benefits- employee benefi.ts 6,412..000.00 £449, t 14.00) 5.962.886c00 5,538, 191 .95 424,694.05 

On behalf - TPAf - pension contributions (non budgeted) 4,054,832..00 (4,054,632.00} 
On behalf - TPAf - post retirement medical (non budgeted) 1,270,721.00 (1.270, 721.00} 
On behalf - TPAf - long-term disability insuraoce (non budgeted) 2,757.00 (2,757.00} 
Reimbursed TPAF social security oonlributions (non budgeted) 1 , 198, 346.56 (1, 19!1,346.56) 

Tolal on behatf- Cclnlributions 6,526,656.56 i6,526.656.56) 

To1al unalocated benelils including on-behalf 6,412..000.00 (449.1 14.00) 5.962..880.00 12..064,848.51 £6.101.962.51) 

T olal Wldistributed expenditures s 20,101 ,069.00 s (870,677.72! s 19.230.391 .28 s 23.509,600_26 s {4.279.208.98) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - CURREITT EXPENSE s 35,210,732.00 s -~54,3§6 .90} s 34,256.365. 10 s 37 .84.S, 796.10 s {3,§89 ~31.00) 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX. 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR lllE FISCAL YEAR !:NOED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Rud get Final Variance 
Budget Transfers ~ Actual Fina11o Actual 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED): 
CAPITAL OUTLAY: 
Equipment 
Grades6-8 $ 6.819.75 s 6.619.75 :S 6,354.65 s 464.90 
Grades9-12 7.427.00 7.427.00 7,427.00 
Resource room/resource center 14.505.00 14,505.00 14,505.00 
School-sponsored and o1her lnstructional program 8.654.36 B.654.36 8,654.36 
Operation and maintenance or plant services 35,216.93 35.216.93 35,216.93 
Non-lnslructional services 7.38S.86 7,386.86 7,38ll.B6 

TOia! equipmenl 80.0()9.90 81J,009.90 79.545.0() 464.90 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Archi1ed.uraVEngineering services 21 .425.00 21,425.00 21.425.0() 

I Construction Services s 442,933.00 (21. 425.00) 421,508.00 421,507.42 0.58 co Assessment for Debt Seivice on SDA Funding 107 452.00 107.452.00 1()7.452.0() ()) 
I 

Total facilities acquisition and cons1ruction services 550,385.00 550,385.00 550.384.42 0.58 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL OUTLAY 550,385.00 80.000.90 630,394.90 629,929.42 465.48 

Transfer of funds to dlal1er schools 384,721.00 384,721.00 353,001 .00 3 1,720.00 

Tola.I transfer otrunds lo charter schools 384,721 .00 384,721.00 353.001 .00 31,720.00 

TOT Al GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 36.145.838.00 (874.357.00) 35.271.461.00 38,828.726.52 !3.557,245.52} 

Excessl(deficiency) or revenues and other financing sources 
over/(under) expenditures and other financing sourcesl(uses) $ i2.053,933.00~ $ !533,000.00) s (2.586,933.00) $ 1,495.602.28 s 4.082.535.28 

Fund Balance, July 1 5,481,472..71 5.481,472. 71 5,481 .472.71 

Prior Period Adjustment 168,()80,38 !168.080.38) 

Fund Balance, July 1, Restated 5,481,472..71 5.481,472..71 5,649.553.09 (168.080.38! 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 3 .. 427,539.71 s (5,33,000.00) $ 2.894,539. 71 s 7, 145.155.37 s 3.914 ,454.90 
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Reconciliation of Original Budget 
Fund Balance Appropriated 
Withdr.rwal from Capital Reserve 
Wilhdrclwa.1 from Maintenance Reserve 

E~cessl(deliciency of' revenues} over/'(under) expenditures 

Recapitulation of Fund Balance: 
Restricted: 

Capital Reseive - unassigned 
Capital Resetve - designated for subsequent year's expenditures 

Maintenance Resenre - unassigned 
Maintenance ResetVe - des1gnated for subsequent year's expenditures 

Unemploymen.I Compensation 

Reserve forexoess surplus (2022-2023) 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNlY OF MJDDLESEX 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

s 

Original 
Budget 

1,550.000.00 
442,9l3.00 
61 .000.00 

S 2,()53.9l3.00 

s 

Budget 
Transfers 

533,000.00 

s 533.000.00 

s 146.654.22 
780.700.00 

27.2,957.00 
100.000.00 

Reslrided-Excess Surplus designaled ror subsequent yeaf s expenditures 
Assigned FFCRAISEMI designated for subsequent year's expendilures 

1,593, 1 !*3.29 
8.515.52 

Unassigned 

Reconciliation to governmental lunds statements (GAAP): 
Last lwo {2) Slate Aid Payments not recogni2'ed o;n GAAP basis 

Fund balance per governmemal funds {GAAP) 

s 

Final 
BudQel 

2,083,000.00 
442,933.00 
61.000.00 

s 2,586.933.00 

s 

$ 

$ 

Adual 

92:7,354.22 

372,957.00 

194,076.36 

2,300 ,455.1B 

1,601, 708. 81 

1,74B.603.80 

7, 145.155.37 

1 ,553.767.00 

5,591.388.37 

Exhibit C-1 
Shee! 11 c>t 11 

Variance 
F111al to Actual 



Exhibit E-2

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES:
  State sources 1,601,030.00$  1,723,502.00$  1,472,082.13$     251,419.87$     

      Total revenues 1,601,030.00$  1,723,502.00$  1,472,082.13$     251,419.87$     

EXPENDITURES:
  Instruction:
    Salaries of teachers 613,925.00$     617,325.00$     568,245.00$        49,080.00$       
    Other salaries for instructors 31,000.00         27,062.50            3,937.50           
    Purchased professional and technical services 7,000.00           16,971.93         15,870.00            1,101.93           
    General supplies 55,293.00         99,968.57         96,573.64            3,394.93           

      Total instruction 676,218.00$     765,265.50$     707,751.14$        57,514.36$       

  Support services:
    Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 106,770.00$     106,770.00$     106,770.00$        -                    
    Salaries of other professional staff 47,967.00         47,967.00         47,967.00            -                    
    Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 13,125.00         38,150.00         31,632.64            6,517.36$         
    Salaries of master teacher 60,950.00         61,350.00         61,350.00            -                    
    Personal services-employee benefits 201,200.00       204,319.02       176,938.23          27,380.79         
    Purchased professional/educational services 434,300.00       403,525.00       244,638.97          158,886.03       
    Contract services - transportation 60,000.00         67,133.83         67,133.83            -                    
    Miscellaneous purchased services 500.00              4,250.20           3,750.00              500.20              
    Supplies and materials 4,842.92           4,222.74              620.18              

      Total support services 924,812.00$     938,307.97$     744,403.41$        193,904.56$     

  Facilities acquisition and construction services:
    Instructional equipment 19,928.53$       19,927.58$          0.95$                

      Total facilities acquisition and construction
        services 19,928.53$       19,927.58$          0.95$                

      Total expenditures 1,601,030.00$  1,723,502.00$  1,472,082.13$     251,419.87$     

Total 2020-2021 PreK Aid Allocation 1,601,030.00$  
Add: Actual PreK Aid Carryover June 30, 2020 122,472.00       

Total Funds Available for 2020-2021 Budget 1,723,502.00$  

Less: 2020-2021 Budgeted PreK (Including prior year budgeted carryover) 1,472,082.13$  

Available & Unbudgeted Funds as of June 30, 2021 251,419.87$     

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID EXPENDITURES

PRESCHOOL - ALL PROGRAMS
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT
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Exhibit C-2

Sheet 2 of 2
SOUTH RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Transfers/ Final Variance

Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual

Expenditures

Instruction:

    Salaries of Teachers 1,095,041.00$      1,095,041.00$      1,027,774.75$      67,266.25$           

    Other Salaries for Instruction 34,920.00             34,920.00             34,109.50             810.50                  

    Purchased Professional and Educational Services 206,187.36           206,187.36           130,406.44           75,780.92             

    Other Purchased Services 799,923.50           799,923.50           767,306.50           32,617.00             

    General Supplies 815,581.38           815,581.38           793,132.20           22,449.18             

    Textbooks 31,584.00             31,584.00             29,899.00             1,685.00               

    Other Objects 7,260.00               7,260.00               1,414.00               5,846.00               

          Total Instruction 2,990,497.24        2,990,497.24        2,784,042.39        206,454.85           

Support Services:

    Salaries of Supervisor for Instruction (Directors) 235,553.45           235,553.45           220,571.38           14,982.07             

    Salaries of Other Professional Staff 57,042.00             57,042.00             57,042.00             -                        

    Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 38,150.00             38,150.00             31,632.64             6,517.36               

     Salaries of Coaches 61,350.00             61,350.00             61,350.00             -                        

     Purchased Professional and Technical Services 80,288.00             80,288.00             46,768.21             33,519.79             

     Miscellaneous Purchased Services 4,250.20               4,250.20               3,750.00               500.20                  

     Employee Benefits 412,207.69           412,207.69           379,356.36           32,851.33             

     Purchased Professional/Educational Services 403,525.00           403,525.00           244,638.97           158,886.03           

     Other Purchased Services 34,875.50             34,875.50             11,021.00             23,854.50             

     Leases/Rentals 60,873.45             60,873.45             47,787.20             13,086.25             

     Contracted Services Field Trips 67,133.83             67,133.83             67,133.83             -                        

     Supplies and Materials 78,637.69             78,637.69             77,583.43             1,054.26               

     Other Objects 266,043.27           266,043.27           87,154.26             178,889.01           

          Total Support Services 1,799,930.08        1,799,930.08        1,335,789.28        464,140.80           

Total Expenditures 4,790,427.32        4,790,427.32        4,119,831.67        670,595.65           

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

    Instructional Equipment 71,123.53             71,123.53             19,927.58             51,195.95             

Total Outflows 4,861,550.85$      4,861,550.85$      4,139,759.25$      721,791.60$         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)

  Expenditures -$                      -$                      (8,644.05)$            8,644.05$             

Prior Period Adjustments 187,533.06$         

Fund Balance July 1 (Restated) 187,533.06           

Fund Balance June 30 178,889.01$         

Recapitulation:

    Restricted:

      Scholarships 23,684.84$           

      Student Activities 155,204.17           

Total Fund Balance 178,889.01$         

- 98 (ii) -
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3Q, 2021 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and 
Outnows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

Sources/Inflows of Resources: 

General 
.h!!!L 

Exbjbit C-3 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ''revenue" from the 
budgetary comparison schedule C-1 $ 40,324,328.80 C-2 $ 4,131 ,115.20 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in 

that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and 
the related revenue is recognized. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the 
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAAP statements. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. 

Uses/Outflows of Resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ''total expenditures" from 

the budgetary comparison schedule 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received is reported in the year the order is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplles are 
received for financial reporting purposes. 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. 

~ 99 -

None None 
None None 

1,483,321.00 16,928.35 

(1 ,553,767.00) None 

B-2 $ 40,253,882.80 B-2 $ 4, 148,043.55 

C-1 $ 38,828,726.52 C-2 $ 4,139,759.26 

None 
None 

None 
None 

8-2 $ 38,828,726.52 B-2 $ 4,139,759.26 
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0 
0 

Year 

202.1 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY IN.FORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) 
LAST EIGHT (8) FISCAL YEARS*' 

District's 
proportionate 

share of the net 
Districrs pension liability 

proportionate (asset) as a 
District's propor1ion share of the net Districl's percentage of its 
of the net pension pension liability covered- covered-employee 

rtability (asset) (asset) employee payroll payroll 

0.0203424369",{, $ 3,317,319 $ 1,547,595 214% 

0.02037 48219";{, 3,671,234 1,556.388 236% 

0.0207625200% 4,088,037 1,464,424 279% 

0.0223976169% 5,213,807 1,457,479 357% 

0.0214386607% 6,349,516 1,459,577 435% 

0.0230460420% 5,174.474 1,487,597 347% 

0.0241030000% 4,512,839 1,457 ,609 309% 

0.0256904111 % 4,909,948 1,542,101 318% 

Exhibit L-1 

Plan fiduciary 
net position as 
a percentage 

of the total 
pension 
liability 

58.32% 

56.27% 

46.10% 

48.10% 

40.14% 

47.92% 

48.72% 

52.08% 

Note: Only the last eight (8) years of information are presente<l as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
Eventually a full ten (10) years schedule will be compiled. 

Notes to Required Supplementary l'.nformation: 
Benefit Changes - There were none. 
Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 628% as of June 30. 2019 to 7 .00% as of June 30, 2020. 
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Contractually 
required 

Year contribution 

2021 $ 222,536 

2020 198,188 

2019 206,250 

2018 207,490 

2017 190,458 

2016 198,134 

2015 198,706 

2014 193,572 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

SCHEDULE OF DtSTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM {PERS} 

LAST EIGHT (8) FISCAL YEARS• 

Contributions 
in relation to 

the 
contractually Contribution 

required deficiency 
contribution (excess) 

$ 222,536 None $ 

198,188 None 

206,250 None 

207,490 None 

190,458 None 

198,134 None 

198,706 None 

193,572 None 

Exhibit l-2 

District's Contributions as a 
covered- percentage of 
employee covered-employee 

payroll payroll 

1,547,595 14.38% 

1,556,388 12.73% 

1,464,424 14.08% 

1,457,479 14.24% 

1,459,577 13.05% 

1,487,597 13.32% 

1,457,609 13.63% 

1,542,101 12.55% 

Note: Only the last eight (8) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
Eventually a fuU ten ( 10) years sohedule will be compiled. 
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Dislricfs 
Proportion of Net 

Year Pension Liabil~ District 

2021 0.1279482654% $ None 

2020 0.1311757516% None 

2019 0.1275931009% None 

2016 0.1302826775% None 

2017 0.1272410992% None 

2016 0.1243058644% None 

2015 0. 1211042219% None 

2014 0.1234879961 % None 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDL ESEX 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND ITPAF) 

LAST EIGHT (8) FISCAL YEARS" 

Proportionate Share of District's 
Net Pension Liabili~ ~Asset~ Covered-E mp!oyee 

Stale Totar Payroll 

s 84,252,393 s 84,252,393 $ 16,772,638 

80,503,797 80,503,797 16,283,156 

87,171 ,990 67,171,990 14,640,989 

87,841,279 87,841,279 13,851 ,680 

100,095,950 100,095,950 13,781,318 

78,566,615 78,566,615 13,150,301 

64,7.26,265 64.726,265 13,198,273 

62,409,862 62,409,862 12,707,624 

Note: Onty the last seven (7) years of information are presented as GASB 

Notes to Required Supplementary lnfonnation: 
Benefit Changes - There were none. 
Changes of Assumptions - The discount rale changed from 5.60% as of June 30, 2019 to 5.40% as of June 30, 2020 

Exhibit L-3 

District's 
Proportionate Share 

of Net Pension 
Liability (asset) Plan Fiduciary 

as Percentage of Net Position as 
Covered-Employee Percentage ofT otal 

Payroll Pension Liability 

None 24.60% 

None 26.95% 

None 26.49% 

None 25.41% 

None 22.33% 

None 28.71% 

None 33.64% 

None 33.76% 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE Dl:STRICrs 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY FOR PERS AND TPAF AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST FOUR(4) FISCAL YEARS• 

2021 2020 

Total OPEB Liability 

SeJVice cost s 2,105,105 s 1,959,806 s 
Interest 1,800,158 2,129,973 

Changes of assumptions 14,786,514 745,584 

Differences between expected and actual experience 13,617,900 (7,156,403} 

Benefit .payments (1,409,24 7) (1,535,016} 

Contributions from members 42J14 45,502 

Net changes in total OPEB liability 30,943,144 (3,810,554) 

Total OPEB liability- beginning 50,005,380 53,815,934 
Total OPES riability - ending $ 80,948,524 s 50,005,380 s 

Covered-employee payroll (PERS and TPAF) s 18,320,233 s 17,839,544 s 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll None None 

2019 2018 

2,264,418 s 2,734,975 

2,334,261 2,016,938 

(6, 175,648) (8,445,012) 

(6,844,759} 

(1,439,019) (1,473,735) 

49,735 54,267 

(9,811,012) (5, 112, 567) 

63,626,946 68,739,513 

53,815,934 s 63,626,946 

16 ,105,413 s 15,309,159 

None None 

Nol.e: Only last four (4) years of information is presented as GASB 75 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Eventually a full 
ten (10) years schedule will be compiled. 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information: 
For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long-teml trend rate after seven (7) years. For post-65 
medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal years 2021 through 2-022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 
medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to 4.5% long-term trend rate 
after seven (7) years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. 

Economic Assumptions - The discount rate utilized as of June 30, 2018, June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2020 was 3.87%, 3.50%, and 2.21 %. 

Exhibit M-1 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 



~ 
BOARQ QE §l~!!Qtj 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER §CHOOL O!§Il!!;T 
CO!!Y!I~ SCtjEOUL§ OF ~NUES AND ~NQ!I!,!R§ 

§PECIAL REVE~E Elli::!! · BUDGETARY BASIS 
FQR THE ASCAL YEAR ENDED JUlllE JO, 2021 

Total l.D.E.A. Pan B Tile I Tt.!e I Reallocaled liUe 1 SIA n1o11 liUe Ill 
Brooght 
Fccwarll Reglia- Tolals 

~ ~ ~ Pa<i" r.u• • l!!!lr!smrl 1QZ! 

R~lJES: 
Sla'k! SDUTC2:$ s 1.658.782 .. 112 $ 1,656, 1eza2 
Federal Scwa!S 909,4.uJ.16 $ 633.701.75 :s "17,200.90 $ 607.e:re.ce s 5 •1,l!()l .20 s 26,s:lS.64 $ 77,713..69 $ "43;065.31 $ 9,.50Q.43 .2,379,660 17 
Local !SO Ureas 92,572.41 92.672.41 

Total rever.,.s s 2,UQ,!;01.19 $ 633. 701.75 $ __!L200.SO s e o7.o76.ce s S4.&l120 s 26,535.64 $ n .71369 $ 43,065.31 $ 9, 505...t:3 $ -4, 131, llS.20 

EXPalCfTURES 
IMll'Ueticn: 
Sal•ri.s of Deaclle<s s SS!!,738-50 $ 410,641.25 s 14,895-00 s 2,520.00 $ 980.IXI $ 1,027.774.75-
Clcl1er salaries or aldes 3'1, 10~. 50 34,109-50 
l'<m:hased p rofessiona l and 1ed"olicall .,,,,,k:es 104,197.4-4 $ 17.(l65_00 2,255.40 3,900.00 2,S88Jl() 130 ,406.44 

o:he< purcha .. d """'Ices 13S,1J9.50 s 617,367.00 11,600.00 7a7,3116.50 
.. ~laneous purcha.sed .ser1ioes 
General "'4'J>lia• 7S2.696.41 10,2 1L36 19,062.73 7,023.ES 3 ,937.B-4 793, 132.2() 
Texibcds 2!1,899.00 29.89900 
Otha- cbjecls 1,414.00 1414 00 

~ 
Tola! inslruction 1,659,394.35 ____fil?:,367 .co 17,065.00 423,109.01 37,857.73 21.3't1sa 7,£05.44 2,784 042.39 

0 
Support.se..,;ces: .:.. 

Salaries 
Salaries <>I olhor profCMio""' se:vices 57,042.00 57.042.CO 
Salaries cl !.eClelarial and derical assislanls 31,632.64 31,632.64 
sa1.,;.s cl dl*'*>1$ 129.051.43 $ 61.807.45 21,000.00 $ 11712.50 220,571..36 
SDias cl coaches 61,350.00 61,350.00 
f'e's:inal sa..,;ces-employm benefits 187,073..62 173,234.82 1,139.47 192.7a B.038.07 8,997.67 679_!13 379,355,35 
Pl.FChased pc"Clas"""alfeducalional sel'>ices 244.631197 244,636.97 
Pl.l"cl'.ased pn:lessiionalltodlnic:ai ..,,,.;ces iC0.00 16,134.75 10 .~.48 9.C77.00 S,000.00 4,620,00 46.76821 
C<lnlra.ct se#Jo:es •· ll'llnspo~tion 67.13383 e1.133a3 
Other purdlased ser.iicas 2,252.00 416.00 3,192.00 5,161.00 '1.021.00 
Leasl>SIReM<!Js 47.7a7-21> 47.711720 
Pllscellaneous ~ sl!Mces 3.75-0.00 3.7sogo 
SUjlplies and malefla1s 70,65-7.36 144.90 699.00 S,913..00 56.17 113,00 n ,583.43 
Other objects 87.15426 87.154.25 

let.al SUFpo~ ~..,;cos 990.22331 16 334.75 14.t:.ro 164 S70.oa 16945.47 5.192.711 77713.69 35 156.87 9,505.43 1,335,789 28 

Fatiittes acq.iisitJan .and c:o.nstructi:m serYiatS: 

l'ns':ndalal equll'menl 19 .. 927. 58 19927..58 

Total laciJOJe. acqcisl5on and c.cnstrudal 
s.mc.e. 19 .927.56 199Z7.58 

Total .. pe.-..res s 2.669.545,2~ s 633 701.75 s 17.209.90 $ 607 678.09 s 54,8il'l.2D $ 26.5311.64 s 77711 69 s '3 065'3t $ 9 ,505.43 s 4 139759.25 

Excess/(tlelici1} of Re•enues 
0.-ed(Under} ~ndb:J11>s (8,644.05) 411.644.06) 

Fund Balance,. Jul)' 1 
Prior Period AdjllSlmlnlS 1B7~.C6 187~.06 

fund BaJanoe. July I , Rest»ed ts7 5:33.(16 167,533.06 

T~er (lo)/llc>rn SbJdenl ActiWI/ Finl 

Mind Balance .. June 30 s 178,689.01 s 178,86'9.01 



BOARD OF EQ!.!!;A1]Qrt 
~ 

!!QROUGH QF ~Q!l!!:! RIVER SCHOOb DISTRICT 
COMS'INING SCHEDY!,E Qf !!EVE"1UES AND EXl'~rtDIJJJRE:s 

S!PEC:U.t. R~~!i; F!,!li!J • &IOGETARY BA~I~ 
FOR TIE FISCAL YEAR ENIJED J UNE 30 2021 

Tolal CRRSA Td..ats 
Brought A.dull Corona Brilfging Carried 
FO<Want Basie ens Relief The NP Leaming ~lemal 1'<>1W3111 

!Exh E-1b) Tille IV Education Reret Fuocf Og'bl o;vOe D!llilal CWld" ESSER II Acceleta5cn Health ?Q1:1 

REYaUJES: 
Strn! SCU!a!S s 1,1>Se.132.e2 s 1,f6.8 , 782.62 
Fe<lenlsources 20.780..U s 44,957.73 s 35.417.45 s 46'1l,177.51 $ 201,416.00 s t 16,ll70.12 s 22,490.00 s 6 ,445.24 s 550.00 $ 1,132.00 509.~ . 16 
L.ccal sources. 9l..B72.41 92 672.41 

TOlal re..erv.JeS s 1 772.235. 14 $ 44 95773 s ~5.417AS s 460 177.51 s 2'.11,41&.00 s 116.070.12 s 22.400.00 s 6A~5.24 s 550.00 $ 1.132.00 s 2 ,660,001. 19 

EXP~CfTlJRES: 
lnslrudion: 
Salaries al teachels s 569.688.00 $ 8,.339.00 s 17,atlLSO $ 2 ,910.00 s 595,738.50 
Oller salaries or aJdes 27.002.SO 3 .'Y&OO 3,127.00 34,109.50 
P\lrchased prof1>Ssional and 1echriical se<Yices 90.087.~9 10.428.00 1.999.96 s 550.00 $ 1,132.00 104, 197,4'1 
O..er pun:l1ased servXe. 1.S00..00 136,639,50 138, 13~.50 
~l<!ceHaneous purduseO ..,,.ices 
General slllpSJlies 1C8,.246.38 16.839.09 2116,264.00 s 201.4 t ll00 s 116,070.12 s 22,4911.00 s 1,570.24 752,895.4 \ 
Te:dbodi.s 29.H9.00 29.1199.0D 
Othe<~,rects 1414,00 1.4M.OO 

Total ir>Struction 826463.35 37.020.09 
0 

23.721.45 428,941.10 2()1,_.C1_6.00_ 1 16,070.12 Zl.~~.00 . 1,!;70.24 !;50,00 __j,132.00 1.659.594.35 

01 Suppol1 services: 
Salade.s 
Salaries of other piMessianal service$ 47.967.00 9,075.00 51,042.00 
Salaries of ~rial and deril:al assistams l1,632.64 31.632..64 
s-iu ot dl:ecors 11l6.770.00 22,281-43 129.051 . .03 
Salaries of coadles 61,?SIJ.OO 61,350.0 I) 
P<f'sDNl sef'liceHt:llptoyee ~enefits 1n.~.62 637.94 2,J.21.00 7.065..0S 187.07$.62 
Purchased protessicr'laUeduc.aUonal 5e:Mces 244,639.97 244,638.91 
~ poral.essicrlalfted"tni:a15eMces 700.00 700.00 
Col!lracl so1Vlcas • b'ansporlation 67,133.&'.3 6T.13l.83 
Other purdlas~ seNices $3.00 300.00 1,3'39.00 2,2!>2.011 
L.easeSJRer¥ah 47,767,2:0 4 7.787.20 
PJiscdaneO<Js pm:l1a$ed sernces 3,750.00 l .750.00 
5'41pfoos and malef.ats 58.562.74 6,609.70 1.886..92 l,476.00 70.6S7.36 
Other o~jects 67,154.26 87.154.26 

T°"'I support selVices 93-Q,46&26 7947.64 1\,695.00 31236..411 4,875..011 990.22l.31 

F•cltties acqu.srtlon and C011struc1X>n s~ 
~cnal•Mment 19,927.58 ~27.511 

Total fadll5es acquisian and cans.lnldicn 
serrices 19927.58 19,927..58 

Total "°""'ndlures s 1. 180,879. 19 s 4'1,967.73 $ 3S,417.~5 s .OS0,177..51 s 201416.00 s 1Hl.0 7012 s 22.490.00 s 6 .445.24 s !611.00 s 1.132.00 .s 2.669,5 45 24 

ExccSS'{Oe~d!) al Re .. nues 
Oted'(Under) Expendtures (8,644.05) {8.64<1.0S) 

Mind Bat.nee. .JulJ 1 
Prior Period Adjustments 167 533-06 187,533.06 

Fund S.lana • .July 1, Restal2d 167 533-00 t67 533,ts 

Trans!er [lo)llrc<n Sludenl AciMly Fund 

Fund Balance, Jur"" 30 s 173,889.0 t s 178,B&9.01 



El<l!bit E-1b 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BCRQ!!ltl OF SO!l!J:! Rill§! ~HOOL D«STRIC'T 
gQM~N!i! S!:HEDUlE OF REV!i~ES AJJD EXPfi~QII!,!RES 

SPECI&,. REVENUE Fl!!l!Q • BUDGET!'lfil: BA:lil~ 
FOR THE ASCAL YEAR Er«lED JUNE 30, Wt 

~Jersey Ne'WJ ... ey 
Tola Cha~r226 Cll;!!!ler 192 ALO.i!;!l: Toi» 

Braugltl f>aonplblic No~ublic Pfanl!<i>ic. Carried 
F.,...w Per!Oru Kursing Secunty NCfllul>1iC C0011>. ~publir. "1onpubfo:; F°"''3ld 
~ Grant ~ Grant TeJdu1oks ~ M.l... ~ 2021 

REVENUES; 
s1a1 .. souraos $ 1,466,579.34 s 2ll,451>.00 s 89,065.00 s 29.899.00 s 19,160.02 $ 1,776.26 s 3,833.00· s 1,658,782.62 
F<uileral sourcm s 20.780. 11 20)8G.11 
Local !.OUroes 92.672.41 92,672.41 

Total reyenoes $ 1 .. 579.251 .75 $ 20.780.11 s 28.4SO.OO s 89035.00 $ ~89900 s 1-!l,16002 s 1.776.26 s 3 ,833.00 s 1 .m.ns.1~ 

EXPENDITURES: 
lr>Slrudiorr 
5'alari1!$ a1 ieachers $ $68.245.0D s 1,443.00 s 569.61la.OO 
Oltler .salar.es or llldes 27.052..50 27.062.50 
PIJrchased professional and :eclvical seMc.es 30.957.21 6.001.00 s 28,450.00 s 19,160.02 s 1,776.26 s 3.833.00 50.067.49 
Cleler pun:hased SeMces 1.500..00 1,500.00 
MScellar.eous purchased servioe.s 
Genenil supples 97,073,.64 \1,172..72. 1116.246.JS 
Tu1bocl<s s 23.l!W.OO 29.899..00 
Other ot;oct< 

Toialins~ 72l.2.;6..35 _ _ 20. l_Hl.72_ 2~450.<IO -~·~00 - Jl!c 160.02 - _1.776.26 3833.00 826.483.35 
0 
O> Support ....vioest 

Salaries 
Salaries or cdler proressicnal .s-erfloes <7,957.0!l 47,$700 
5"laries of secrelarial and clerical asmtoms 31,632.64 :n.632.64 
Salaries cd dlrectol$ 105,770.00 106,770..00 
Salal1es cd coaches 61,356.00 61.350.00 
Penonal semces-em~ benefits 1i6,938.23 s 110.3'3 177,048.62 
Pl.ln:hased prcdessionalleduca&lnaJ ser.ices 244.638.97 244,63&97 
Purchased pmCessianalftedlnical semces 
Conlnet services - ....,!ipGrtation 67',133.83 ii7, 13$.83 
Other pl#diase<l semces 563.00 55$0!! 
Leases/Rer.iai. 13,162.20 s 34,625.00 47,787.20 
Miscellaneous porchaSecl s9Mces 3,750.00 3,75D.OO 
SUpFlies and moleria 4 ,222.74 54,"60.00 58,662.74 
Otherobje<:ts 87,154.26 87154.26 

TC<lal suppo~ semoes .SM,719.87 663.3.9 89 0SS.OO 934.466.2S 

Facilitiesac;qUsition andconstrucmn s~ 
l~onal e""""'1enl 19.927.se 1'3 927.58 

Toul fadllies aoquisilion and ~on 
.seMces 19 !127.Ea 19,927.58 

Total expe<Hf~LAS s 1.587,895.60 s 20,I® 11 s 2~,450. 00 $ 89,085.0!I s 29.899.00 s 19, teo.02 s 1.176.26 s 3 ,1!33.00 $ - 1 ,760,879.19 

e.iceul(Defldl) of R......,ues 
Owir~IAl~ E>opendHures f8.644.ll5) (8,644.05) 

Fund e-.ce. Jul>t 1 
Pllor Period M;J.iinoms 147~Ja.06 187,533.00 

Fund Balance, July 1, Rest:aled 187~33..06 187 533.06 

Transl.,. (!<>)/from 5audenlA.divi!y Funcl 

Fund Balance, J..,. lO s 17B.889.G•1 S __ _!]8,Ba9.D1 



BOARD Qf: EDUCATIO~I 
~ 

SOROUGH OF SOUTt! 81VER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CO.lll!INllNG SOiEDULE OF ~ENI!§ AND ~PENDl'TURES 

li~IAL REVENUE FUP«I • B!.!!l§ETAB)'. B~ 
FQR TliE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3?, 2021 

f>lewJelSIO'/ Local 
Cha~r 1!Kl Hanllita!!!!d Si::HrentA.Cti\ir FLO! Totajs 

ftonpllblic: ttonp<Jbfc tloop<A>li: c.ame.d 
&a~and SUpP!elnen\al Ce<redl'le Preschool MJS3G Scholarship Mddlo Higlt Forw3'd 

~ ~ ~ Educ:a1lol\ ~ ~ Fund ~ ~ Allletics ~ 

REVENllES: 
Stale .s.oun::es s 11.~s s 1,618.96 s 6,380.00 s 1,4n.082.13 s 1 ... 86,579..34 
F'edeml sour<:es 
local SOl.M'CH s a,162.20 $ 1 191.98 s 1,162.39 $ 6Jl95.13 s 68258.71 $ 2.00 ~2.672.41 

Toi.al ~..,enues s 6.498.25 s 1616.9!1 s 6.:la0.00 s 1.472.082.13 s 13,162.20 $ 1 191.98 s 1 162.39 $ 6 555.13 s 68..55871 $ 2 .00 s 1.579.251.75 

EXPENDfTl.JRES: 
lhs':ndon: 

Salaries of 1eachers s 568.245.00 s S!le.245..00 
Ot,,.,. sataries DI aid'es 27,062.50 27,052".50 
p,..<llased pn:f<!ssional 11<111 ledlnical SBMces s 6_.q98.25 s 1,618..96 s 6,381>.00· 15,870.00 s 500.00 Jll,.857.2 1 
Other purdlased .. ..,;cu 
Ml<Oelaneoos P<Seha>ed Sl!<VlCl!S 

General StJppiies 96,573.64 500.00 97.07l.64 
T«xlbooks 
Other objects 

' _., T eta! ns1lu:lion 6 .45'825 1.616..91> 6 ,380.00 7()7.751 1~ 1,000.00 _____Rs..246.35 
0 ........ Supflcrt senOces: 

Slmrles 
Salaries cl! eeter P<Ofessicnal SOMces <17 ,!l67 .00 47.967.00 
s-les cl! secrelarial ~nd derical as"'5tanls 31,632..64 31.632.64 
Sallaries a! llireclO<S 105,7i0.00 1()6.770.00 
Salarles cl! c:oa<ties 61,350.00 61,350.00 
Pessonal s~mpoyee benefi!s 178,938.23 17&.93623 
Purchased professiona6'edUca:mlaJ serW:es 244,638.97 244,636.97 
Purchased prmessio-chllieal semces 
Conlrad se..,;oes - llanspc<\a6orl 67, 13l.B3 67, 13l.B~ 
COier J><.Rhased serv.ces 
Leases/Rentals s 13,162.20 13.1&2.20 
Miscellaneous p<1rchased seivi::es 3,75D.00 :usooo 
SUP!'ies ""d materials 4,222.7-4 4,222-74 
Clelllf cbje<:ls s 191.98 s 4 398.64 $ 8.773.4S $ 73,800.19 87.154.25 

Total suppcrt sen'icH 7L4.40l.41 13 162 .. 2<1 ;91.96 4 381!.6'1 8773.45 73,80019 844.719.87 

F.aclities ao::rui.si:ticn .and canrstruction servar. 
lnstrucfonal equipment 19927.58 19.927..58 

Total tacilHias aaµ$ilion and constnJdian 
semce. 19 927.58 19.927.58 

Tolal eiqiendl!ures $ 6.498.25 $ 1_6,B.95 s 6,38D.OO s 1.472,082. 13 s 13162.2G $ __ 1_.t91.9B s 4,388.64 $ 1177345 $ 1_~800.19 s 1,587.855..80 

Exees"1t()ekil) of R"""'1U6 

0.-eo~l.lml e<} Elqpend~res (3,22625> ( \78..32) 45.241.48) 2 .00 48..644.0S) 

Fund Balanoe, July l 
Prior Penod A~ams 35,367.52 24 137112 127248.22 779.50 167,.!!33.00 

Fund Balance, July 1, Restated 35,367.52 24,1!!.7.82 127248.22 779.50 187 533.06 

Trans1er (lo)lfro.m S11ufentltdivq f~d (S.,456.43) 8.456.43 

Fund Ba!a'1ce, J..,,., W . s 23,684.84 s 23..959.50 $ \30.463.17 s 781.50 s 178,81!9.01 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SPECIAL. REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDUl.E OF PRESCHOOL. EDUCATION AID EXPENDITURES 

PRESCHOOl.-Al.l.PROGRAMS 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

REVENUES: 
State sources 

Total revenues 

l;XPENDITURE;S; 
lnstn,Jction; 
Salaries of teachers 
Other salaries for instructors 
P1,m;h11sed professional and technle<il services 
Gener;il supplies 

Total instn,Jction 

Support services: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principala/Progrern Directors 
Salaries of other professional i;taff 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerie<1I A$sist;;mts 
Salaries of master teacher 
Personal servlc:e&-employM benefits 
Purchased profossional/educ:auonal services 
Contract services - transportation 
Instructional equipment 
Miscellaneous purchased services 
Supplies and materials 

Total support services 

Total expenditures 

Original 
~ 

$ 1,601,030.00 

s 1,601,030.00 

$ 613,925.00 

7,000.00 
551293.00 

$ 676.218.00 

$ 106,770.00 
47,967.00 
13,12~-00 
60,950,00 

201 ,200,00 
434,300.00 

60,000.00 

500.00 

$ 924,812.00 

$ 1,601 ,030.00 

Final 
Budget 

$ 1,723,502.00 

$ 1,723,502.00 

$ 617,326.00 
31 ,000.00 
16,971.93 
991968.57 

$ 7651266.50 

$ 106,770.00 
47,987.00 
38, 150.00 
61,350.00 

204,319.02 
403,525,00 
67,1 33.83 
19,928.53 
4,250.20 
4,842.92 

$ 958,236.50 

$ 1,723,502.00 

$ 1.472.082.13 

$ 1,472,082.13 

$ 666,245.00 
27,062.50 
16,870 .00 
96 673.64 

$ 707.751 .14 

$ 106,770.00 
47,967.00 
31 ,632.64 
61 ,350.00 

176,938.23 
244,638,97 

67,133.83 
19,927.58 

3,750.00 
4,222.74 

$ 764,330.99 

$ 1,472,082.13 

Exhibit E-2 

$ 251,419.87 

s 251.419.87 

s 49,080.00 
3.937.SO 
1,101.93 
3 394.93 

s 57,61 4.36 

$ 6,517.36 

27,380.79 
158,886,03 

0 ,95 
500,20 
620,18 

$ 193,905,51 

s 251,419.87 

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER 

Toi.el 2020-2021 PreK Aid Alloc;ition 
Add: Actual PreK Aid Carryover June 30, 2020 

Total Funds Available for 2020 ·2021 Budget 

Less; 2020.2021 Budgeted PreK (Including prior year budgeted e<irryover) 

Available & Unbudgeted Fund$ as of June 30, 2021 

-108 -

$ 1,601,030.00 
122,472,00 

$ 1,723,502.00 

$ 1.412i082.13 

$ 251,419.87 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 



....... 
0 
ID 

Project Title/Issue 

Various Improvements (2015) 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRJCT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Expenditures to Date 
Original 

Date Appropriations 
Prior Current 
Years Year 

Roof Replacement - Elementary/Middle School 02/10/15 $ 2,786,485.97 $ 2,783,196.99 

Exhibit F-1 

Unexpended 
Balance 

June 30. 2021 

s 3,288.98 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Exhibit F-2 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE · BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Fund balance, beginning $ 3,288.98 --------
Fund balance, ending $ 3,288.98 

======= 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF M!DDLES§X 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCH!;PULE OF PROJECT REV§NUES, EXPE;NPITURES, PROJECT BALANCE 
AND PROJECT STATUS -BUDGETARY BASIS 

Exhibit F-2a 

ROOF REPLACEMENT AND BUILDING ENVELOPE UPGRADES - ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL 
FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues and other Financing Sources 
State sources - sec Grant 
Bond proceeds 

Total revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
Purchased professional and 

technical services 
Construction services 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over/(under) expenditures 

Additional project information: 
Project Number 
Grant Date 
Bond Authorization Date 
Bonds Authorized 
Bonds Issued 
Grant Awarded 
Original Authorized Cost 
Additional Authorized Cost 
Revised Authorized Cost 

Percentage Increase over Original 
Authorized Cost 

Percentage completion 
Original target completion date 

Memo: Expenditures 
Grant Proceeds (K-4) 
Bond Proceeds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Prior Periods 

1,476,245.15 
1,310,240.82 

2,786,485.97 

230,985.19 
2,552,211 .80 

2,783, 196.99 

3.288.98 

4920-055-14· 1004 
5/1/2015 

2/10/2015 
$ 1,312,714.47 

1,312,714.47 

2,794,593,68 
(8,107.71) 

$ 2,786,485.97 

99.91% 
9/1/2016 

$ 1,476,245.15 
1,306;951.84 

$ 2,783,196.99 

- 111 -

Revised 
Authorized 

Current Year Totals Cost 

$ 1.476,245.15 $ 1,476,245.15 
1,310,240.82 1,31 0,240.82 

$ 2,786,485.97 $ 2.786,485.97 

$ 230,985.19 $ 223,000.00 
2,552,2 11 .80 2,571,723.00 

$ 2,783,196.99 $ 2,794,723.00 

$ 3 288.98 



NONCURRENT DEBT 



..... 

"' 

r,ssue 

Series 2012 Refunding Bonds 

School Bonds Series .2015 
(Various Improvements) 

Refunding School Bonds -
Series 2020 

Total 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
NONCURRENT DEBT 

SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS 
JUNE 30, 2.0.21 

Original 
Date of Amount of Annual Maturities lnleresl 

Original Issue Issue . Dale Amount Rale 

61112012 s 3,845,000.00 6(1/2022 s 425,000.00 4.00% 
6(1/2023 445,000.00 4.00% 

51612015 $ 2,453,000.00 6f1/2022 s 225,000.00 2.00% 
6(1/2023 225,000.00 2.25% 
6/1/2024 428,000.00 2.25% 
6/1/2025 450,000.00 2.50% 

611/2021 $ 3,425,000.00 6/1/2022 s 515,000.00 4.00% 
6/1/2023 515,000.00 4.00% 
6/1/2024 515,000.00 4.00% 
611/2025 515,000.00 4.00% 
611/2026 515,000.00 4.00% 
6/1/2027 340,000.00 4.00% 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

Balance 
July 1 2020 

1,280,000.00 $ 

1,553,000.00 

3,425,000.00 

6,258,000.00 s 

Exhibit 1-1 

Balance 
Retired June 30. 2021 

410,000.00 s 870,000.00 

225,000.00 $ 1,328,000.00 

510,000.00 $ 2,915,000.00 

1, 145,000.00 $ 5,113,000.00 



Exhibit i-2 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Original Final Variance 
Budget Budget Actual Final to Actual 

REVENUES: 
local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy $ 1,326,135.00 $ __ 1,326, 135.00 $ 1,326, 135.00 

Total - Local Sources 1,326, 135.00 1,326,135.00 1,326,135.00 

Total Revenues $ 1,326,135.00 $ 1,326, 135.00 $ __ 1,326,135.00 

EXPENDITURES: 
...... Regular Debt Service: ...... 

Interest on Bonds $ 222,580.00 $ 222,580.00 $ 222,580.00 w 
Redemption of Principal 1 ' 145, 000.00 1,145,000.00 1, 145,000.00 

Total Regular Debt Service 1. 36 7 ,580.00 1,367,580.00 1,367 ,580.00 

Total Expenditures $ 1,367,580.00 $ 1,367 ,580.00 $ __ 1,367,580.00 

EXcess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ (41,445.00) $ (41,445.00) $ (41,445.00) 

Olher Financing Sources: 
Excess Refunding Proceeds $ 9,019.63 $ __ 9,019.63 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues and other Financing 
Sources Overl(Under) Expenditures $ (41,445.00) $ (41,445.00) $ (32,425.37) $ 9,019.63 

Fund Balance, July 1 41,444.56 41 ,444.56 41,444.56 

Fund Balance. June 30 $ (0.44) $ (0.44) $ 9,019.19 $ 9,019.63 



STATISTICAL TABLES (SECTION) 

(UNAUDITED) 



Contents 

SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

!NTR()OUCTION TO STATISTICAL TABLES (SECTION) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the district's financial peliormance and well being have 
changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
district's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
district's outstanding debt. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help 
the reader understand the environment within which the district's 
financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information in the district's financial report 
relates to the services the district provides and the activities it performs, 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year. 
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FINANCIAL TRENDS 
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01 

2012 

Governmental ac1ivities 
lnvesred in capital assets, ne1 or re'laled debt $ 1'7,659.301 
ReSlrid.ed 3,034,972 
Unrestrided 1.224.305 

Total gOYemmental adM1ies net posruon s 21,918.578 

Business-type activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt s 80,263 
UnreSlrlc1ed 1n442 

Total buslness-type adivities nel position s 252.705 

District-wide 
ln'leSted in capit.al assets s 17 .739,564 
Restricted 3.034,972 
Unrestricted {Deficit) 1.396,7<17 

Total district net position s 22.171,283 

Source·: ACFR Bmilli1 A-1. 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

2013 

s 23,919,454 
867,976 
370,670 

s 25.158,1_01 _ 

s 67,873 
160,2.63 

s 228,136 

s 23,987,327 
867,976 
530,933 

s 25.385,237 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN !tOI FISCAL YEARS 

!UNAUDlTEOI 

(aC'Ctllat oo.sis of acoo1mling} 

2014 2015 

s 25,708,.837 s .23,918,290 
146,522 5 ,111.611 
363,857 (6,367.573} 

s 26.219.216 -s 22.662.328 

s 81.156 s 127,822 
159.277 170.~ 

s 240.433 s 2.97.851 

$ 25,789,993 $ 24,046.112 
146,522 5, 111,611 
523.134 (6.197.534} 

s 26,459.649 s 22,960.189 

2016 

$ 26,943.,881 
2,466,373 

@.668.297! 

s 25,741 ,957 

s 190,893 
170,343 

s 361.236 

s 27, 134,725 
2,466;373 

(3,497,193! 

s 26.103.905 

Eldibil J-1 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

s 28.643,432 s 29,027.869 s 23.904,507 s 28,532,988 $ 28,539,291 
470,477 341 ,130 591,728 623.sn 1,303,609 

@.800.159) !3.553,741! @.154,601} (2,062.~ (689,322) 

s 25..313.750 s 25.815.258 s 26.341,633 s 27,093.909 s 29.153.578 

s 242,156 s 291,583 s 330,561 s 320,003 s 311,053 
162 453 178,,401 304,006 463.526 476.330 

s 404.609 s 469.984 s 634,566 s 783.529 $ 787,383 

s 28.885,588 s 29.319.452 s 29.235,067 s 28,852,990 s 2.!1.850,344 
470,477 341.130 591,728 623,577 1,303,609 

@.637,706) !3.375,340! {2.850.596! (1,599.129) (.212.992} 

s 25.718,359 s 26.28.5.242 s 26,976.199 s 27.877.438 $ 29,940,961 

No1e: tn 2015, 1he effectille da1e of GASB No. 63 related to pension llabifili'es (TPAF' & PERS), an adJuS1menl was made for 1he provision of the net peoolon liability for PERS. Amounts from years prlor lo 2015 are not~. 

In 201 B, 1he effective da1e Of GASB No. 75 related to po5t..employmenl benefrts (heallh benefrts), an adjuS1menl was made for the j)CO\llslon of the liability • amounts for years prior to 2017 are not available. 

In 2021 , GASS No.84 related to fiduciary accounting was Implemented.. 
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BOROUGH OF SO!,!nt RIVER SCHOOl. DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDl1ES§l! 

CHANGE IN NET POSfTlON 
LAfil: llJ!i [101 FISCAL YEARS 

fYNAOOIT§Qt 
(Dcc:mal/JJ1s/$d&CCOW1flQg:/ 

Fiscal YearE~Jullo lll. 
2012 2013 211H 2015 20\6 2017 2018 201!1 21>20 ~ 

EJ:penses 

Ga"'""'""lal a=..lle• 
lns1n:dcn 

Regular s 11,551_328 s 11.957,961 $ 12,241 ;777 s 13 ,420,S.SO $ 14,068,135 s 16,11-40.567 s 13.704,007 $ U ,330,211 $ 12.829,743 s 14,13611,402 
Special educ8tlon 3,179.808 3.762,012 3,769,556 4,455.953 5,0S1,42.7 5,815,225 7.523,Cl!2 1.eo1.101 8.405,073 10,137 ,954 
Other sp«ial - 551.501 4f2.~ 464,961 532,00 748,ll0'1 a74.350 821,318 1,:!39,957 1.156.134 1,402,756 
OU-ins1roclion 799,5\7 822,004 821,453 921,934 998,756 1.150,.549 1.086,'788 975,1112 938,622 1,052,1>64 

Suppc<1. SerYices: 
Tuition 1,584,402 1 .456·.1~ 1,459,2!14 1;390,316 1,456.789 1.579.407 1.7'54.2.46 1,2'3;Z,G33 1.131,987 666,11-49 
Student & Frsarucllon. related: sen.i::::e:s 3,806.831> 4.137,274 3.~.5119 4.536,243 4,71>U 64 5,UD.139 S..600,662 5,668,671> 3,;JQ!l,818 3'074,1135 
~l Adminish.live sel"lices 1,134,349 1,257,402 1,707,106 1.963.2:16 2,1:81.7311 2.53.7 .395 2..415,281 2,318,410 4.~.642 4,675,804 
Ge<Mlrol adminislnUon 1 ,~,561 1.729,541 1,4l9,557 1.620,0S'il 1,&51>.649 2.084,0Sil 1.112ll.S35 1,8'10,4TI 2,994,220 3,:!05,,110 
Central Senrices 
Pia<'< Qper;lllDllS and mainlenanoo 3,118.•96 3,6t9,811 3,768,275 4.482,9" ~.199.132 6.212,261 5.380.033 5,2&3,669 4,736,117 6 ,283,95l 
f'>41J l<anSpclf1ali® 1,687.175 1,9.55,25! 1,1!87,978 2..017.717 1,994.186 2.473,0lll 2.5<8.teo 2 ,227,a63 2,28.5,1141 1,843,716 
CJcher Sup;>Or1 .setYioeS 

Charter s::hools 4,251 41,437 160,833 198,091 199.526 2411,46\ 295,331 401. t61 389,7116 353,001 _.. lnl.e<!!SI en ""1g-6mm debL ~737 566576 513;367 447 051 417.363 367 T.l5 ~144 301 809 2:34,905 2.C.9 761 _.. 
O') Talaj gi:wemrr__artal ·ilctMUet e:icpemes s 29.903.951 $ 31.717 949 S 3 2 CISS.148 $ l!S.986 751 s 38,233.656 s 46.153. 1311 s 43,375,637 s .(2,!;17,0 74 $ .42, 7S1 all6 s 47.913,514 

Business-type ~i1ies: 

Food sertic.e s 1127~51 s 859761 $ S74 1118 $ 885215 s !t10.7M $ 9961555 $ 1,029,656 s \ 1111,337 $ 9!2 138 s 9<17 312 

Tolal busines.$-tjpe ac:MHes upense $ 627.551 s 8 59.761 $ 574 11111 s M 5,215 s !110.714 s 996,SSS s 1.029 6!16 s 1 116,337 s 9!2,1311 s oor,3t2 

Total dis1rid eoq:oemes S 30J~15t8_ s 32..577,7 10 s 32.!!62.936 s 36.871,S66 s 39.144.381> s 47.149',7C3 $ 44,405,J ;):l._ s C3,7~.4U _$ •3 740.025 . -~8.1120,825 
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BOROUGH OF ~Q!.!!l! RIVER SOlOOl. ~TR!CT 
coum OF MID<X.ESEX 
C~lGJ; IN NET POSmlON 

LAS! TEM (1!n FISCAL YEARS 
(!,!N'AUOITED! 

(occiw.I basis ol 1ooounfin!l) 

Fiscal Year E"l>dm .June 30 
2012 2013 2014 2015 21116 2()17 21116 2019 ~ 20'21 

Progr.1m Rew.nue1 
Gaverrmental ~rtt..S"' 

Opetaling granls and cctrlrilx:fi:m s 1 711 U4 $ '1 435427 s 1 006324 s 1,867.726 s 1,750,606 $ 1 ,•116.S2!i s 1,2?1,4'17 $ 2 a·10764 s 2.1179200 s 4.119,832 
Total i10Yemmen1al .actMHes program revenues· 1.71 1,l!7• _ _ _ 1 .~ ... _27 1.931>.~ - _1,667,72£) _ _J,!50.6115 1.o40SS~_ 1_.571417 2.310,7114 2 .679.200 '4.119,1132 

Business-type adivi6es:: 
Charges rcr semen 

Food se<Vice s 3!n .~ll $ 348,677 $ 381,611 s 371l.447 s 377,5"5 s 377,711 s 375,7811 s 426,t71 s 295,137 s 10,E09 
Opera!i'19 grants and conlritulion> 449~0 4116514 504 674 ~508 5116,5"3 662 217 719 284 71!6 748 835 565 943 763 

To1al bUl51ness l:ype adiv.ties s:wogram rev1mues 640.921 835.191 -.~65 ~44 . 955 974.088 1 .039928 1.0il5 Dn t ,282,919 1. 131 l01 854 372 

Total districi Frogr.;1m rcYenue:s 5 2 552,894 $ 2.6 711.618 s 2.1!22.809 s 2.812-681 s 2.n 4 .694 s 2.446,4'54 s 2.655.41!9 s ~.S:.."3 .700 s 4..010.302 $ 4 974.204 

Net (E•r-ise)IR>ewnue 
GaverrvnenlaS adMties s (28, 191,9 87) s (29,852,523) s (30.152,424) s ~.119,025) S (36,'433,G60) s (44.7 44,6621 s (41,61.14,221) s (40,366,289) S (39,SiB,686) s (43,793,682} 
Busane:ss-type- ac::tiyt1ies 13354 g• 570t 12.297 S9.7MJ 63 374 43 373 65 376 154.582 148 !l63 l52.9l9i .... .... 

-...J 
Tola.I dis1rict""'ilride- ne1 eiq>en.se $ '2U 76.624l s j29,9C7.lmt $ pll.140, 1271 s ~,05.9.2851 S !36,41U~ s f44.7111,2e9! s 141, 738,6451 s f.(.1().201 ,7061 s j39.729.723l s j43.846,622) 

General Rlrt.terwues. and Otbe.r Cbillnge1 kl Plet .Assets 
GOYemmemal actMU11s: 

Prqpecy taioos le'lied le< general - nel $ 12.~636 $ 12,.885,209 $ t3.394,657 s 14,015.039 $ 1'4,474,933 s 14,977,299 $ 1$.Z76,646 s t6,005;J33 $ 16.325, 440 s 16.820.~ 
Tues le..;ed lot debl S I Mce 1,905.846 1,92S,S611 1,978,S30 1.956.5 10 1,9'1,922 1,467,020 1,448,003 1.~.869 1.439,930 1.321>,135 
Umislti:led grants and ex>ntriiMA!cns 1'1,S2a,709 15.359,n• 15,494,146 16.984.-1-42 20,283,606 27.~72.018 24.n1 .s.1 22,596,361 22.638,657 26.682,0C.S 
Res~gnnt. 3,!132.58t 2,.255,5(.5 191,453 2 ,345-,614 2,359,714 296,693 
Tuificw'I Received 93,65S Ull,229 60,266 37,155 40,411 411,.525 ~.ireo 23.722 
l""·estmenl eanUngs 5. 646 
P6see'Csrw:au5 income· 341,527 577.~1. 164,350 32&.392 364,650 t 47.523 825,2te 495,632 oC29,1179 686,ln 
Tr.arukrs 
Write ca af f.x.ed as.sets (183,283) 
Special a:r.d ex:raardinary revenue 42.447 97~CI! 7.078 i12,~ 'J(f1 7 49 i162,944j lt1,~ 

Tctalp'ell!mOni.11 adiv4es S 33 440.6 U s 33, 122J)'6 $ 31.100,119 s 35,711,599 $ 39,562, 444 s 44.31!!,~55 s 42,305,728 s .<O,e.92,666 s 40.0ill.!!62 s 45 "'37,735 

Business.fype acthlties: 
Sp«ial and -.tinary ~ue s $ $ s (2.311} s 56,794 
T r3<ukrs 

T olall t:usine.15·1ype .acfr.tties s 1 s s j2.311! s s s s $ s 56794 

Tctll cfslrict,...,de s 33 440.611 s 33.122,0'6 s 31, 100.1 19 s 35.709.m s 39,562,444 s 44 316.455 s 42,.305,728 s 40.1!92.6~ s 40.670 !l62 $ 45554.532 

Cllanlll' In Net Position 
Gotemmentat acti'..mes s 5,248,624 s 3.239,523 s 947.695 s 1 ,592..57~ s 3,079,384 s (42S,2()71 s 501,507 s 526,37& s 792,215 s 1,71l4,055 
&Jsfne:s.s,.,,'t)'pe actMlles 13,364 ~4 .5701 12.297 S7.429 63 374 43373 653.76 164 se;z 148.963 3 655 

Tcl:lldislrid: s 5,261.9118 $ 3214.953 
~- s 1 ,6 SOJ)J3 $ 3' 142,758 s (364.83•0 s 566,Bel s &9ll.957 s 94'.ni> $ 1.7-07,910 

Source< ACFR E.diOt A·2 . 

Nol."' ., 2()151h• eflec1r,..dale olGASB t:-0. 68 relo1ed "'pension liabTrlies (TPAF & PERS). an ...... lmen1 was made forlhep!O>is""' of!he net pension [...i;Ji1ylorPERS. Amounls fnlmyears p ri0<to2D15 are nccavab!lOe. 

Ir. 2018. 1~ elfectJv<> dote of GASB Ko. 75 "'la1ed IO posl..,mployme~ benefits (heaHh benefdS) on ad)u•1menl was made lor (ho ~rav\sion al 1h~ llab~ly - amounl• lor yean p,.... Lo 20t7 ..., ""'a•alable. 

an 2CJ12·1 GASS :Ne>.84 relaled 1D fiduciary ae:counting wais implemenled. 
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2012 2013 

General Fund 
Reserved 
UllreSefVed 
Reslricted s 1,397.130 s 350,081 
Assigned 245,362 
Maintenance 
Unassigrled 802.967 

Total geru:ral fund s 1.642.492 s U53.048 

All Other GoYemmental Funds 
Reserved 
l1"e.served, reponed In: 

Special revenue fund 
ReslriCled: 

Special revenue fund 
Capital projects lood 5.651,562 517,896 
Oeb1 service fund 127 975 26.180 

To!al all other gowmmen1al funds s 5.779.537 s 544.076 

Source: ACFR Exhibit S-1 . 

BOROUGH OF sourn RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

FUNOBALANCES - GOVERNMEHTAL FUNDS 
L AST TEN (10} FISCAL YEARS 

!UNAUDITED> 
(modmed accrlJal !Iasis of accounting' 

Fis.cal Yea Ending June 30, 
20'14 2015 2(116 2017 

$ 1,153.048 $ 1,662,184 $ 1.843,197 s 859,588 
16.298 16,298 829,930 

$ 1.153 048 s 1,678.482 s 1.859,495 s 1.689,518 

138,929 5 ,041,134 2.609.203 229,946 
7639 71.329 70.963 38,378 

s 146.568 s 5 ,112..463 s 2. 680.166 s 268.324 

Exhibit J-3 

2018 2019 2020 2021 

s 1,163,684 s 2.412,292 $ 3,028,827 $ 5,015,079 
1,309,537 559.585 783,595 8,516 

80,000 130,000 186,000 372,957 
194,837 

s 2 .553,m_ s 3, 101.877 ~996.422 s 5.591,388 

(16,928.35) 

17 8,889 
2,8.93 2,389 3 ,289 3,289 

1 270 41,445 9.019 

s 2.8.94 s 2.659 s 27,805 s 191.197 

Note: In 201 5 lhe el!ective date of GASS No. 68 rda1ed 1o pension liabilities (TPAF & PERS). an adjustmen1 was made ror the provision of the net pens.10n llalllity for PERS. AmctJnts rrom years prior to 2015 are na1 available. 

In 201 B, lhe~ive d ale of GASS No. 75 related to post-employment benefits (heallh benefits), an adjus1meal was made for 1he provision of 1lle llabili1y - amoun1s for years prior lo 2017 are not available. 

In 2021 GASS No..84 rel:aled lo riducialy accounting was irnpk!men1ed. 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX. 

CHA.NGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTA L FUNDS 
Ii.AST TEN [10} FISCAL YEARS 

IUNAUDITEtl! 
(modified accrual basiS of acoounlingJ 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 20'17 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Rewnues 
Tax levy $14,538.482 S14,811;257 .$15,373.187 S15.971,549 $16.416,850 $16.444,319 S16,724,849 S17, 462.20.2 $17,765.370 $18,146,571 
Tuillon 93.655 118.229 60.266 37,155 40,411 48,525 46,680 28.722 
!Reresl earnings 5,648 3,161 386 756 2,105 405 
Miscellaneous 354,343 1n,576 163,964 325,636 369,058 154,818 BOS.710 500,732 429.879 770,760 
Slate· sources 14,575.126 15,796.792 15,920.661 16·,407,002 16.756,987 17,131,612 17,989,644 20,085.657 21 ,928,112 24,329,383 
Federal sources 1,665,558 1,402.591 1,509.809 1.631,621 1.492,254 1,600,904 1,529,034 1,61.4.646 1,547.914 2,481 .348 

Total reveooe 31,232.812 32,309.606 33.028.273 34.373.719 35.0 77,670 35.380,583 37.095.917 39.692.009 41.671.275 45. 728.061 

Expenditures 
Instruction 

-" Regular Instruction 8,502.,541 8,796,081 9,374 .. 943 9,.250,349 9 ,224,780 9.270,752 8,037,924 8,554.697 8,508.694 8,926.499 
-" Special educat;on lns.lruelion 2.288.231 2,700.404 2,728.,685 2.886,019 3,109,241 3.105,054 4,382,554 4,972.376 5,574.250 6,719.946 
<O Olher special ln51rudian 396,867 296,103 336,,579 344,984 460,900 466,861 478.457 854.014 766.749 842,168 

Olher instruction 575,343 550.063 594.624 597,1 '15 614 ,752 614,339 633.106 621.476 622.495 631.625 
Support Services: 

Tuition 1,584,402 1,456,134 1,459,294 1,390,316 1,456,789 1.579,407 1,754,246 1.,232,033 1.131,987 666.949 
Sludent & inst rela&ed seivices 2,792,811 3,039.156 2,978,436 3 ,093,400 3,098,710 3,173,212 3.416,994 3,832.077 2,194.410 2 ,063.1616 
General administration 8 16 ,292 902,574 1,046.271 1,049,282 1.019,696 1, 112,788 1 ,000,548 1,153,898 1,985,768 1,984.279 
School administrative· SetVices 1..318,734 1,241.479 1,249,407 1,271,543 1.281 ,346 1,354,848 1.407,017 1,4n.621 2,882,696 2,807,199 
Plant opera1ions and maintenance 2;244,109 2.5911.331 2,m,5s2 2.903,500 2,953,949 3.317,052. 3,134,126 3,358,596 3, 140,996 3 ,772.685 
Pupil !raooporta1Jon 1.214,11 3 1,403.501 1,381,763 1,306,829 1,227,456 1.3.20,485 1,434,436 1,419,917 1,515,971 1,106.907 
Employee benerrts 6,622,522 7,232.586 6.412.642 7.020,944 7,822,593 8,,331,678 8.431,897 9,644,051 10, 174,283 12,444.205 

Charter schools 4,257 41,437 1&>.833 198,091 199,526 243,461 295,331 401,161 389,786 353.001 
Capi1al outlay 7.994,083 5,2a9,667 756,417 598,934 2,569,031 2.567,859 482,138 208,710 418,868 649..857 
Debi service: 

f>fincii:al 1,530,000 1.890.000 1.890,000 1,915,000 1,884,000 1.145,000 1,160,000 1,160,000 1,180,000 1,145,000 
Interest 670,885 571,863 508,425 431,625 406,186 354 606 326,380 296,600 218,755 222,56() 

T01al expenditures 38,555.190 ~.049.319. 33.651 ,121 34.257,931 37..328.955 37.962,402 36~5.155 39.187,231 4G.705,707 44,336.066 

Excess {Deficiency) of revenues 
ewer (under) expenditures (7.322,378) (5,739,773) (622.848) 115,788 (2,251,285) (2.581,819) 610,762 !'il4,777 955,568 1,391.996 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL OISTRJCT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

CHANGES IN FUNO BALANCES - GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
(modified acmial basis of accounting} 

F°1Scal Year Ending June JO. 

20t2 2013 2014 2015 2016 20'17 
Other Financing sources [uses} 

Prooeeds from borrowing 
Capital leases {nctHiudgetecl) 220,000 
Bond ProGeeds 14J!08 227.500 2.453.000 
State Sources 
Grant Awarded 2,768,982 
Grant Receivable Cancelled {68,601) 
Transfes-s in 5.648 3.161 386 
T ransf e:IS out (5;648! @.161} !386! 

Total ~her financing sowt:es (uses) - 14.868 227.500 5.,373,381 

Net change in f!Mld balances s (7,322.3Ifil_ s (5, 724.905) s (395.348) s 5.48'9.169 s (2..251,285) s (2,5a f.819) 

Debi setVice as a percen• of 
noncapital expenditte:s 7.20% 7.st•.l> 7..29% 6.97% 6 .59% 4.24% 

Source: .ACFR Eldlibil B-2 

Note: Noncapi!al expenc!ibJres are lotal expenditures less capital outlay. 

In 202.t GASB No.84 related 1o fid'uoiary accomllng was llllfllemented. 

:2018 2019 

{12.488! 

(12,.488! 

s 598.275 s 504.777 

4.13% 3.74% 

2020 

s 965.568 

3.47'% 

Extllbil J-4 
Sheel2 of 2 

2021 

9,020 

9,020 

s f.401 ,015 

3.13% 



Interest on 
Investments 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 

2011 s 42,091 
->. 2012 5,887 
N 
->. 2013 6,197 

2014 2,400 
2015 1,978 
2016 2,401 
2017 3,529 
2018 11 ,385 
2019 64,939 
2020 45,010 
2021 2,266 

Source: District records 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
(modified accroal basis of accounting) 

Refund of 
Prior Year 

Miscellaneous Athletic Events Expenditures 

$ 9,660 $ 4,903 $ 279,472 
145,371 5,262 193,140 
174,540 - -
41,586 5,026 114,953 
73,430 6,024 229,663 
39,980 6,823 272,930 
62,61 1 6,317 75,366 
54,437 6,446 667,264 
25,581 6,065 392,118 
17,420 5,473 288,512 
27,800 - 554,568 

Exhibit J-5 

Tuition Annual Totals 

$ 35,340 $ 371,466 
93,655 443,315 

118,229 298,966 
60,266 224,231 
37,155 348,250 
40,411 362,545 
48,525 196,348 
46,680 786,212 
28,722 517,425 
59,122 415,537 
67,458 652,092 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL 01S'TRICT 
COUNTY OF MlDDLESEX 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN {10} FISCAL YEARS 

!UNAUDITED} 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Total Assessed Public Tax-Exempt 
June3o, Vacanlland Residential Commefcial lnd1JS1Iia1 A~rtment Value Utilities" Proeerty 

2012 3,024,600 366,234,400 25,329,600 17,585,400 8,633,700 420,607,700 293,382 50.654,.200 
2013 3,031 ,600 3&0,459,700 24,176,900 17.289,900 8,392.700 413,35(),600 287,694 5D.529,600 
2014 2,926,800 360,673,40(} 24.,320.900 17.247, 100 a.n4,7oo 413.942, 900 198,325 97,657,100 
2015 2,965,000 358,560,500 .2.4,954,400 17,237,400 e,n4.7oo 41.2,492,000 - 49,583,200 
2016 2,929.600 357,919,900 24,922,700 17,141,900 e.n4.7oo 411,68.9,00(} 46.680,600 
2017 3,006,500 357,199,100 24,841 ,400 17,097,40(} 9,068,000 411,212,400 48.999,800 
2018 3,009,200 356,487,700 24,601..200 17,118,40(} 9,260,200 410,476,700 53.040,800 
2()19 3,()47,500 355,815,200 24,504,000 16.99'8,40(} 9,613.2.00 409,978,300 - 54,329,300 
2020 11,729,100 1,259, 103,:!VO 85,872,900 98,636,700 55,791.400 1,51 1,133,400 130.134, 10(} 
2021 11,4n,800 1.258,076.900 85,596,300 98.636,700 55,791 ,400 1,509,579, 100 130,939,300 

Source: Munlc'lpal Tax Assessor 

Note: Revaluation errectlve in 2020. 

Note: Real prlljlertyis reql.Jftdto be assessed at some percsntage orlruevalue (fairer mar1<e1 value) established by each Cllunly board oflaxa(ioo .. 

Reassessment ooc:urs when 1he County Board or Taxation requests Treasury to Ofder a reassessment 

a Taxable Value of Machinery. Implements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies 

b Tax rales are per$100 of assessed vaJua~on 

EJdlibil J-§ 

Estimated Actual Total Direct 

(County School Tax 

Net Valuation Egua!izedl Value Rate" 

471.755,282 1.441,461 ,958 3"517 
464.168,094 1,331 ,956,.265 3.717 
511,798,325 1,319,732.478 3.857 
462.075,200 1,293,849.676 3.980 
460,569,600 1,314,187 ;237 3.995 
460,212,200 1,354,166,613 4.068 
463,517,500 1,386,482,.532 4.254 
464,307,SCO 1,423.394,580 4.334 

1.641,267,500 1,45(),246, 131 1.201 
1.640,513,400 1,527,()21 ,701 1.204 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

(rate per $100 of assessed value) 

Borough of South River School Di:strict Direct Rate 

(From J-6) 
Total 

Overlapping Rates 

Basic Rate a 

General 
Obligation 

Debt Service b 

Direct 
School 

Tax Rate 

Municipality 
of South 

River 
County of 
Middlesex 

Exhibit J-7 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping Tax 

Rate 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 

2012 3.060 0.447 3.517 1.978 1.221 6.716 
2013 3.238 0.479 3.717 1.962 1..231 6.910 
2014 3.385 0.472 3.857 1.994 1.267 7.118 
2015 3.509 0.471 3.980 2.057 1.248 7.285 
2016 3.639 0.356 3.995 2.181 1.276 7.452 
2017 3.716 0.352 4.068 2.363 1.314 7.745 
2018 3.900 0.354 4254 2.443 1.342 8.039 
2019 3.952 0.382 4.334 2.558 1.345 8.237 
2020 1.113 0.088 1.201 0.711 0.375 2.287 
2021 1.115 0.089 1.204 0.733 0.400 2.337 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to o1her 
components of 1he district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth 
Umitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is 
greater, plus any spending growth adjustments. 

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable. 
b Rates for debt seivice are based on each year's requirements. 
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LIT Industrial LP 
LIT NDrthend LLC 
Leonardine Garden 
East Coast Village Green Apts 
Emess Apls Ud. 
Absolutely Property Management 
Fefmore Associates 
425 Whitehead, LLC 
Sherwood Court 
Zifovski, Zla.tan & Lube 

Total 

Total Assessed Valuation 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

$ 49,100,900 
32,810,300 
14,776,600 

9,745.300 
8,554.800 
4,174,500 
3,439,300 
3,338,600 
3,251 ,300 
3,157,100 

$ 132,348. 700 

$ 1.511.133.400 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MJDDLESEX 

2021 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE (9) YEARS AGO 

!UNAUDITED) 

% ofTotal 
Rank District Net 

(O(!lional] Assessed Valtie 

1 3.25% LIT Nortflend LLC 
2 2.17% Ea.st Coasl Leonardine VIiiage Green 
3 0.98% Emmess A:p.ts Ltd. 
4 0.64% Leonardine Associates LLC 
5 0.57% 425 Whitehead LLC 
6 0.28% Felmcire Associates 
7 0.23% Zifovskr, Zlatan &. Lul:>e 
8 0.22% Sherwood Court 
9 0.22% P&B Dinfcola 

10 0.21% Andre Construc6on and Soo 

8.76% 

Exhibit J-a 

2012 
Taxabte %ofTotal 

Assessed Rank Dislrict Net 
Value (Optional] Assessed Value 

$ 12,208,700 1 2.90% 
2.350,000 2 0.56% 
1,571,000 3 0.37% 
1,.200,000 4 0.29% 

980,000 5 0.23% 
700,000 6 0.17% 
IIB1 ,900 7 0.16% 
633,1 00 8 0.15% 
622,500 9 0.15% 
616.800 10 0.15% 

$ 21,564.000 5.12% 

$ 420,807. 700 



"' c.n 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June30_, _ 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTJONS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the 
Levy a 

Taxes Levied for Percentage of 
the Fiscal Year Amount Levy 

28,288,692 27,553,186 97.40% 
28,611,549 27,553,240 97.40% 
29,524,807 28,976,314 97.49% 
30,073,830 29,350,585 97.60% 
30,696,741 30,044,664 97.88% 
31 ,882,585 31, 128,301 97.63% 
33,031 ,601 32,381,286 98.03% 
33,823,894 33,266,659 98.35% 
34,572,067 34,060,000 98.52% 
35,339,555 34,855,353 98.62% 

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form) 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years 

569.445 
633,864 
640,721 
488,129 
636,498 
583,562 
692,610 
583,781 
524,499 
462,788 

a School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is 
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified prior 
to the end of the school year. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

General 
Obl1gation 

Bonds 

16,284,000 
14,394,000 
12,504,000 
13,042,000 
11, 158,000 
10,013,000 
8,853,000 
7,693,000 
6,258,000 
5,113,000 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN ( 1 O} FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Business-Type 
Governmental Activities Activities 

Bond 
Certificates Anticipation 

of Capital Notes 
Participation Leases (BANs) Capital leases Total District 

- 42,257 - - 16,326,257 
- 32,436 - 295,389 14,721,825 
- 250,134 - 234,822 12,988,956 
- 370,458 - 177,430 13,589,888 
- 271,726 - 119,171 11,548,897 
- 182,756 - 60,032 10,255.788 
- 92,191 - - 8,945,191 
- - - - 7,693,000 
- - - - 6,258,000 
- - - - 5,113,000 

Note: Details regarding the district's ootstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

Percentage of 
Personal 
Income a 

4.19% 
3.26% 
2.53% 
3.02% 
2.56% 
.2.27% 
1.98% 
1.70% 
1.39% 
0.94% 

a See Exhibit NJ J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and 
population for the prior calendar year. 
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Per Capita a 

1,123 
920 
811 
849 
721 
640 
559 
481 
391 
317 



Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 

2012 
_. 2013 )\) 
-...J 2014 

201 5 
2016 
2017 
2018 
201 9 
2020 
2021 

Notes: 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

General Net General 
Obligation Bonded Debt 

Bonds Deductions Outstanding 

16,284,000 - 16,284,000 
14,394,000 - 14,394,000 
12,504,000 - 12,504,000 
13,042,000 - 1.3,042,000 
11, 158,000 - 11,158,000 
10,013,000 - 10,013,000 
8,853,000 - 8,853,000 
7,693,000 - 7,693,000 
6,258,000 6,258,000 
5,113,000 5,113,000 

Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value a of 
Property 

3.45% 
3.10% 
2.44% 
2.83% 
2.43% 
2.17% 
1.91% 
1.66% 
0.38% 
0.34% 

Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data. 
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14. 

Per Capita b 

1,017 
899 
781 
815 
697 
675 
553 
481 
391 
317 

Deductions are allowable for resources that are restricted to repaying the principal of debt outstanding. 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021 

Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes 
Borough of South RJver 
County of Middlesex 

Olher debt 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Borough of South River District Direct Debt 
Issued and outstanding - Bonds 
Authorized but not Issued - Bonds and Notes 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

(UNAUDITED) 

Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 26,470,698 
458,585,518 

$ 5,113,000 
None 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable " 

100.000"/o 
1.2881% 

100% 
100% 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Middlesex County Board of Taxation. 
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District. 
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Estimated Share 
of Overlapping 

Debt 

s 

$ 

$ 

26,470,698 
5,907,040 

None 

32,377,738 

5,113,000 

37,490,738 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and 
businesses of Soulh River Borough. This process recognizes that. when considering the Districfs ability to issue and repay long-term debt, 
the entire debt burden borne by 1he residents and businesses should be taken into account However this does not imply that 
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying lhe debt, of each overlapping payment 

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the 
districfs bounnaries and dividing ii by each unit's total taxable value. 
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Debt limil 

Tolal net debt applicable to limil 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debl limit 

2012 

s 61.~7.935 

2:1, 136.2.85 

s 40.471 .650 

34.31% 

2013 

$ 58,040.039 

19,3-05.557 

s 38,734,482 

33.26% 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN 110) FISCAL YEARS 

!UNAUDrTEDI 

legal Debt Margin Calcula.tion for Flscal Year 2021 

Equaiz.ed valuation basis 
2(}2.0 s 1,523,31 9,960 
2019 1,440,543,219 
2018 1.419,843,307 

s 4.383,706.486 

Average equarized valuation of taxable property s 1.461,235,495 

Debt limit. (4 % of average equafaation value) 58,449.42.0 a 
Total Net Debi Applicable 1D Limil 5, 113.000 

Legal debt margin s 53,336.420 

RscalYear 

~ 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 20.20 

s 54,699.271 s 52,716,622 s 52,572,821 s 53,085,280 $ 54,296,731 s 55,382,780 s 56,586,787 

13,000.172 15,810.982 12.546.371 10,446,&56 8.~.771 7,693.000 6.258,000 

s 4' ,699.099 s 36.005.640 s 40,Cl26.450 $ 42,638,624 s 45.362, 960 s 47.689,78{) s 50.328,787 

23.77% 29.99% 23.86% 19.68% 16.45% 13.89''/o 11.Cl6% 

Source: Equalized valuation bases were obtained from the Annual Report or the State of New Jersey. 
Department of Treasury, Divisian of Taxation 

a Limit. set by f'USA 18A:24-19 klr a K through 12 dis1ric1; o1her % limit!> woold be applicable tor other cflSlricl types. 
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~ 

s 58.449,420 

___i:!.!3,000 

s 53.336.420 

8.75% 
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Year Population a 

2012 16,008 
2013 16,008 
2014 16,008 
2015 16,008 
2016 16,008 
2017 16,008 
2018 16,008 
2019 16,008 
2020 16,008 
2021 16,11.8 

Source: 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Per Capita 
Personal 

Personal Income b lncomec 

451,073,424 28,178 
451,073,424 28,178 
451,073,424 28,178 
451,073,424 28,178 
451 ,073,424 28,178 
451 ,073,424 28,178 
451,073,424 28,178 
451,073,424 28,178 
451 ,073,424 28,178 
545, 175,232 33,824 

a Population information provided by the 2010 census for 2012-2020 and the 2020 census for 2021. 

b Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capi1a 
personal income presented. 

c Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2010 census for 2012-2020 
and the 2020 census for 2021 published by the New Jersey Department of Labor. 

c1 Unemployment data provided by the New Jersey Deptartment of Labor and Workforce 
Development - previous year benchmark. 
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Unemployment 
Rate d 

11.60% 
11.70% 
13.40% 
8.20% 
7.10% 
6.30% 
5.50% 
5.40% 
4.40% 
10.70% 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE (9) YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

2021 

Percentage of 
Total 

Rank Municipal 
Employer Employees [Optional) Emplo:t.ment Emplo:t,ees 

South River Board of Education 298 1 0.00% 245 
Borough of South River 101 2 0.00% 104 
Wawa 53 3 0.00% 18 
Rite Aid 20 4 0.00% 9 
U.S. Postal Service 19 5 0.00% 26 

6 0.00% -
7 0.00% -
8 0.00% -
9 0.00% -
10 0.00% -· 

491 0.00% (1 ) 402 

Source: Borough of South .River 

(1) Total employment within Municipality not available from authoritalive source. 
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2011. 

Percentage of 
Total 

Rank Municipal 
[Optional] Employment 

1 0.00% 
2 0.00% 
4 0 .00% 
5 0 .00% 
3 0.00% 

0.00% 
0 .00% 
0.00% 
0 .00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL. DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN {10} FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 20.21 
Functionf Proqram 

Instruction 
Regular 128 128 131 131 131 131 132 151 153 163 
SpeciaJ education 34 34 38 38 48 48 48 47 48 55 
Other special education 
Vocational 
Other instruction 
Nonpublic school programs 
Adult/continuing education programs 

' 
-"' 
w Support Services: N 

Student & Instruction related services 26 26 26 25 26 26 26 42 42 42 
General administration 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 
School administrative services 16 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 
Other administrative services 
Central services 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 
Adminislrabve Information Technology 
Plant operations and maintenance 7 7 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 
Pupil transportation 
Other support services 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Special Schools 
Food Service 
Chitd Care 

Tola! 225.00 225.00 232.00 232.00 243.00 243.00 243.00 278.00 281.00 298.00 

Source: District Personnel Records 



~lbUJ-17 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
OPERATlt::!G STATISTICS 

LAST TEN [101 FISCAL YEAR§ 
!UNAUDITED) 

Pu2t11Teac.her Ratio 
Average 

Middle Senior Daily Awerage Da~y %Changeln Stud:ent 
Fiscal Operaling Cost Per Percentage Teaching Pffmarv Elementary Sc hoot High Enrollment Attendance Average Dally Attendance 

___.Y!!!.._ Enrollment Expenditures• Pu211 • Change Staff" (K-2)• (3..5) ~ School (ADEJ c (ADA)c Enrollment Percentage 

2012 2.319 28.360,222 12,220 5.56% 176.00 1:19 1:20 1:17 1:17 2317.0 2,189 3.48% 94.48% 
2013 2,329 3.o,297 ,649 13,009 6.37% 176.00 1:19 1:20 1:17 1:17 2338.0 2,202 0.91% 94.18% 
20\4 2.323 3.o.496,279 13,128 0.91% 176.00 1:19 1:20 1:17 1:17 2321.0 2,245 -0.73~~ 96.73% 
2015 2.in 31.312,373 13,752 4.75% 176.00 1:18 1:20 1:16 1:17 2260.0 2,151 -1.77% 94.34% 
2016 2.218 32.469,737 14,639 6.45% 179.00 1:18 1:20 1:16 1:17 2211.0 2,103 -3.03% 95.12% 
2.017 2.210 33.894,938 15,337 4.n% 181.00 1:18 1:20 1:16 U7 2206.0 2,074 -0.14·~ 93-93% 
201.8 2.193 34,516,637 15,739 2.62% 182.00 1:18 1:20 1:16 1:17' 2.192.1 2,073 ·Cl.72:% 94"5iS% 
2019 2.262 37,521,722 16,588 5.39% 198.00 1:15 1:15 1:15 1:15 2236.1 2,106 2.01 % !}4.18% 

_... 2020 2.319 38.888,064 16,76.9 1.09% 201.00 1:14 1:15 1:15 1:16 2311.0 2,153 1.62% 93.16'~ 
cu 2021 2.306 42,318,629 18,352 9 .44% 218.00 1:14 1:15 1:15 1:16 2287.0 2,172 ·1.04% 94.97% cw 

Sources: Dislrld records 

Note: Enrol)nent based on .bie diSlrid count 

a Operating expenditures equal 1otal eiq>endilures less de!lC service aid C3flilal <Mlay. 
b Teaching stalf includes. only full-lime equi'lalenls of ceftiftcaled staff. 
c Average daily enrollrnenl and average daily atlendance are obtaft!d from lhe Schcol Regista Summary (SRS). 
d Cost per pupil calculated by dividlng operating expenditu-es by emillment; nol inlendecl to represent lhe statulory calcula1ion of cost per pupil. 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRfCT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION 
LAST TEN (10} FISCAL YEARS 

!UNAUDITED! 

2012 '2013 2014 2015 2016 2D17 2018 .2019 2020 2021 
District Buflding 
Primary (2005) 

Square Feet 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58,350 58.350 
Capacity (Students} 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 ~40 440 
Enrollment 557 555 535 507 501 469 475 486 438 426 

Bemenlarv !1997) 
Square Feel 78,770 78,770 78,770 78,770 78,770 78,770 78,770 78.770 78,770 78,770 
Capacity (StUdenls) 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 540 
Enrollment 622 606 623 616 587 567 548 582 651 655 

' _,. 
(,.) Middle School (1997} 
~ 

Square Feet 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,180 73,1&1 
Capacity (stUdenls) 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 559 
Enrollment 497 539 552 542 516 534 533 525 538 512 

HiQh School (1 gs1} 
~uare Feel 102,768 102,768 102,768 102,768 102,766 102,768 102,768 102,768 102,768 102,768 
Capacity (Students) 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 
Enrollment 643 629 613 611 614 640 635 669 692 713 

Other 
Central Adminislralion 

~uare Feet 2,274 2,274 2,274 2,274 2.274 2,274 2,274 2,274 2,274 2.274 

Number of Schools at June 30, 2021 
Primary =1 
EJell'H!fltary = 1 
Middle School = 1 
Seniof ~h School = 1 

Source: Dislricl Facilities Offi<le 
Note: Year or original construction is shown in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of 

and additions. Enrollment is based on the end of fiscal year district count. 
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES 
LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED 
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILmEs 

11-000-261-xxx 
11-000-262-xxx 

* School Facilities High M1ddle Elementary K-2 Primary Administration 
Project# (s) School 

2012 NIA $ 248,914 
2013 NIA 324,600 
2014 NIA 249,938 
2015 NIA 257,256 
2016 NIA 262,150 
2017 NIA 217,150 
2018 NIA 194,651 
2019 NIA 291 ,209 
2020 NIA 216,748 
2021 NIA 452,050 

Total School Facilities $ 2,714,666 

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA. 
(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1 .2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-1.3) 

Source: District records 

School 

$ 198,400 
261,000 
229,762 
207,698 
192,800 
326,100 
194,586 
218, 135 
208,930 
235,290 

$ 2,272,701 

School School Office 

$ 197,850 $ 163,750 $ 14,260 
270,247 210,250 20,198 
236,623 98,066 27,455 
206,528 115,288 39,125 
180,100 133,500 23,418 
324,175 147,350 26,543 
174,107 107,725 35,200 
196,61 6 138,204 27,394 
206,075 140,423 24,429 
214,263 200,827 46,044 

$ 2,206,584 $ 1,455,383 $ 284,066 
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Total -
$ 823,174 

1,086,295 
841,844 
825,895 
791 ,968 

1,041,318 
706,269 
871,558 
796,605 

1,148,474 

$ 8,933,400 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDL§SJ;X 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30, 2021 
UNAUDITED 

Type of Policy Coverage 

MUL Tl PERIL PACKAGE POLICY 
PROPERTY 

Blanket Building and Contents $ 86 ,183.312 
Extra Expense 50,000,000 
Computers and Media 500,000 

ENERGY SYSTEMS 
Boiler and Machinery Included 

COMMERCIAL LIABILITY 
Bodily Injury/Property Damage 31,000,000 Each occurrence 
Products and Completed Operation 31,000,000 
Personal Injury/Advertising lnj. 31,000,000 
Medical Expense 10,000 
Employee Benefits Liability 31 ,000,000 

CRIME 
Money and Securities 50,000 Inside/Outside 
Employee Dishonesty 100,000 
Forgery or Alteration 100,000 

BUSINESS AUTO 
Bodily Injury/Prop Damage Liab. 31 ,000,000 
Personal Injury Protection Statuory 
Medical Payments (PIP) 10,000 
Unlnsured/Underinsured 1,000,000 
Comprehensive Deductible 
Collision Deductible 

SCHOOL BOARD LEGAL 
Coverage A 

Limit of Liability 30,000,000 
Each Claim 5,000 

Coverage B 
Limit of Liability 300,000 
Each Claim 100,000 
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Deductible 

$ 5,000 

500 
500 
500 

1,000 
1,000 

5,000 



Exhibit J-20
Sheet 2 of 2

SOUTH RIVER BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Type of Policy Coverage Deductible

BOARD OF EDUCATION

CATASTROPHE ACCESS PLAN  
Limit of Liability  50,000,000$     

 
WORKERS COMPENSATION

Section B  3,000,000

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY
Limit of Liability  1,000,000 Each Loss 10,000$       

1,000,000 Aggregate

STUDENT ACCIDENT
Limit of Liability 1,000,000
Interscholastic Sports 10,000,000

 
BONDS

Board Secretary - Ken Kokoszka 25,000
Treasurer of School Monies - Joseph Zanga 257,000
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Exhibit K-1 
Sheet 1of2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Borough of South River Board of Education 
County of Middlesex, New Jersey 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States: and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance Department, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Borough of South River Board of Education, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Borough of South 
River Board of Education's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 9, 
2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the South River Borough 
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the South 
River Borough School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE 0 1" CERTtrll!:O PU BLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

www. s amuelkle in-c pa-rma. com 
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Exhibit K-1 
Sheet 2 of 2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described ·in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that may not have been identified. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies In Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the Borough of South 
River School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements. noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass­
through entities In considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Freehold, New Jersey 
March 9, 2022 

)Ll~ 
Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY,.LLP 
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Exhibit K-2 
Sheet 1 of 3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Borough of South River Board of Education 
County of Middlesex, New Jersey 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

We have audited the Borough of South River Board of Education's compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described In the OMB Compliance Supplement and New Jersey State 
Aid/Grant Compliance supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of District's major 
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021 . The Borough of South River School 
District's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of find ings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Borough of South River Board of 
Education's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standC!lrds applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); the New Jersey State 
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement; the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy 
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and 
NJOMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether on compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about Borough of South River Board of Education's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

M i!: M l!IE'.Rs AME'.RICA N IN STIT U TE Of' CERTlf'I EO F'u a1..1c A ccou N TA N TS 

www.saml1olkloln-cpl!l·rma.com 

- 140 -



Exhibit K-2 
Sheet 2 of 3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE. FOR EACH M.AJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 
(CONTINUED) 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our unmodified opinion on compliance for each 
major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Borough 
of South River Board of Education's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the Borough of South River Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Borough of South River Board of Education is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Borough of South River 
Board of Education's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of South River Board of 
Education's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over oomplianoe exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over comp/lance ls a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
and state program will not be prevented, or detecteq and corrected, on a timely basis. A sfgnfficant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not Identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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.INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFQRM GUIDANCE AND NJOM_B 15-98 
{CONTINUED} 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any 
other purposes. 

Freehold, New Jersey 
March 9, 2022 

Gerard Stankiewicz 
Certified Public Accountant 
Licensed Public School Accountant #912 

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY, LLP 
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1. GENERAL 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

YEAR EN.DE.D JUNE 30, 2021. 

Exhibit K-5 
Sheet 1 of 2 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
include federal and state award actlVity of the Board of Education, Borough of South River School 
District. The information in this Schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2, 
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and NJOMB 15-08. The Board of 
Education is defined in Note 1 (A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state 
awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state 
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules or 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are 
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food 
service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting 
are described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The Information In this Schedule is 
presented In accordance with the requirements of Title 2, US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance) and NJOMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special 
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted 
by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is 
not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the last two (2) state aid payments in the current budget year, 
which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not 
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last two (2) 
state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the 
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances 
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH .OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Exhibit K-5 
Sheet 2 of 2 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of 
$70,546.00 for the General Fund and an increase of $16,928.35 for the Speclal Revenue Fund. See 
Note 1 (the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis 
to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and 
financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis 
as presented on the following: 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ 101 ,687.52 $ 22,653,671 .56 $ 22,755,359.08 
Special Revenue Fund 2,379,660. 17 1,675, 710.97 4,055,371 .14 
Food Service Fund 821,909.59 21,853.28 843,762.87 

$ 3,303,257.28 $ 24,351 ,235.81 $ 27 ,654.493. 09 

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related 
federal and state financial reports. 

5. FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING 

The District had no loans outstanding payable to federal or state entities at June 30, 2021 . 

6. OTHER 

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions and Post Retirement Medical Contributions 
represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 . TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the 
employer's share social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2021 . 

The State of New Jersey also makes TPAF post-retirement medical and pension contribution 
expenditures on-behalf of the District. These expenditures are not subject to New Jersey OMB 
Circular 15-08 because the contributions are made by the State directly and do not have any 
compliance related requirements, and therefore have not been included on the Schedule of State 
Awards, as directed by the funding agency. 

7. INDIRECT COSTS 

The District did not use the 10% di minimus indirect cost rate. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 
 
Financial Statements 
      Unmodified, dated 
Type of auditor’s report issued:    March 9, 2022   
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified?     yes  X   no 
 
2. Reportable condition(s) identified that are  
 not considered to be material weaknesses?      yes  X   none reported 
 
Noncompliance material to basic financial  
 statements noted?     yes  X   no 
 
Federal Awards 
Internal control over major programs: 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified?      yes  X   no 
 
2. Reportable condition(s) identified that are  
 not considered to be material weaknesses?      yes  X   none reported 
 
      Unmodified, dated 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:    March 9, 2022  
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
  in accordance with section .510(a) of Uniform Guidance?     yes  X   no 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 

 CFDA Number    Name of Federal Program or Cluster  

 84.010A    Title I, Title I Reallocated & Title S1A  

 84.027 & 84.173    IDEA Regular & IDEA Preschool  

 10,553 & 10.555    National School Lunch/Breakfast Program  

 84.425D    Educational Stabilization Fund  

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:   $750,000  
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?      yes  X   no 

 
 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

State Financial Assistaooe 

Internal control over major programs: 

1. Material weakness(es) Identified? ___ yes ___ x_ no 

Exhibit K-6 
Sheet 2 of 2 

2. Reportable condltlon(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? ___ yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

__ x __ none reported 

Unmodified, dated 
March 9

1 
2022 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with NJ 0MB Circular Letter 15-08? ___ yes _ ... x_ no 

Identification of major programs: 

GMIS Number Name of State Program or Cfuster 

21-495-034-5120-089 

21-495-034-5120-084 

21-495-034-5094-003 

21-495-034�5120-086 

Cluster: 
Categorical Special Education 

Equalization Aid 

Categorical Security Aid 

Reimbursed T.PAE ELCA_ContriblJilon 

Preschool Education 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type 8 programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _._.X_ yes ___ no 

Section II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

No financial statement findings noted that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Section Ill - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
Findings and Questioned Costs 

No federal or state award findings or questioned costs noted that are required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance or NJ 0MB 15-08. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF SOUTH RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020: 

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
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